
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

April 5, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by Reverend Rilla Barrett of St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Employee Recognition for Lisa Edlin, Police Department Receptionist - 10 years

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

April 5, 2016 6:00 PM

  CALL TO ORDER
  Invocation - Led by Reverend Rilla Barrett of St. Stephen’s Episcopal Church
  Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns
  Excuse Absent Councilmembers
 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Employee Recognition for Lisa Edlin, Police Department Receptionist - 10 years

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting on March 15, 2016, and the Workshop Meeting on 

March 23, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Ordinance No. 1764: Amending Bond Ordinance No. 1756
d. Ordinance No. 1759: Amending OHMC 2.310.050 regarding Professional Service Contracts

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the 
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting on March 15, 2016, and the Workshop Meeting on 

March 23, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Ordinance No. 1764: Amending Bond Ordinance No. 1756
d. Ordinance No. 1759: Amending OHMC 2.310.050 regarding Professional Service Contracts

1

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9198
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9401
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9401
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=7973
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9498
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9074
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9383


e. Ordinance No. 1762:  Repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 regarding ADA Review Committee and 
OHMC Ch. 2.35 regarding Program of Monetary Awards for City Employees

f. Resolution 16-12: Amending Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) of the Master Fee Schedule
g. Resolution 16-13: Supporting continued state funding of the MRSC with no conditions
h. Reappointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board
i. Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as Full Member 
j. Appointment: Julie Fakkema to the Park Board as the Alternate Member
k. Appointment: Alyssa Merriman to the Planning Commission
l. Appointment: Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Board
m. Appointment: Hal Hovey to the Planning Commission
n. City-Wide Auctioneer Agreement 2016
o. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Island County
p. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Oak Harbor School District
q. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-North Whidbey Fire and Rescue
r. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Town of Coupeville
s. Bid Award-Jail and Evidence Security System
t. North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association Range Agreement - Oak Harbor Police Department
u. F-Dock Breakwater Repair - Professional Services Agreement with Moffatt & Nichol for 

Engineering Services
v. Confirmation of Finance Director Patricia Soule

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
ii. 2016 Marathon Update by Race Director

b. Mayor

e. Ordinance No. 1762:  Repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 regarding ADA Review Committee and 
OHMC Ch. 2.35 regarding Program of Monetary Awards for City Employees

f. Resolution 16-12: Amending Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) of the Master Fee Schedule
g. Resolution 16-13: Supporting continued state funding of the MRSC with no conditions
h. Reappointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board
i. Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as Full Member 
j. Appointment: Julie Fakkema to the Park Board as the Alternate Member
k. Appointment: Alyssa Merriman to the Planning Commission
l. Appointment: Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Board
m. Appointment: Hal Hovey to the Planning Commission
n. City-Wide Auctioneer Agreement 2016
o. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Island County
p. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Oak Harbor School District
q. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-North Whidbey Fire and Rescue
r. Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Town of Coupeville
s. Bid Award-Jail and Evidence Security System
t. North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association Range Agreement - Oak Harbor Police Department
u. F-Dock Breakwater Repair - Professional Services Agreement with Moffatt & Nichol for 

Engineering Services
v. Confirmation of Finance Director Patricia Soule

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
ii. 2016 Marathon Update by Race Director

b. Mayorb. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #7

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

ADJOURN

b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #7

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

2

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9383
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9383
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9382
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9343
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9390
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9398
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9394
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9395
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9397
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9396
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9202
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9203
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9204
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9205
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9206
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9207
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9381
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9444
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9444
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9385
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9430
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9429
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1083&iID=9445


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting on March 15, 2016, 
and the Workshop Meeting on 
March 23, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 15, 2016 and the Workshop Minutes on March
23, 2016 as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
N/A

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting on March 15, 2016, 
and the Workshop Meeting on 
March 23, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 15, 2016 and the Workshop Minutes on March 
23, 2016 as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
N/A

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. March 15, 2016 Minutes
2. March 23, 2016 Minutes

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. March 15, 2016 Minutes
2. March 23, 2016 Minutes

3

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458775396_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459286677_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – March 15, 2016 
Page 1 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

March 15, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Joel Servatius  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Beth Munns City Engineer Joe Stowell 

Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Chief of Police Ed Green 
Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
Development Services Director Kathy Gifford 

Councilmember Almberg and Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao were absent. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Pastor John Ney of Christ the King Community Church provided the invocation, and then Mayor 
Severns led the led the pledge of allegiance. 

EXCUSE ABSENT COUNCILMEMBERS 

Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to excuse Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao and 
  Councilmember Almberg, seconded by Council member Campbell, unanimously 
  approved. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, motion 
  seconded by Councilmember Hizon, and the motion was unanimously approved. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Community Presentations 

Fire Department 2015 Annual Report 
Fire Chief Ray Merrill presented the Annual Report. 

4



Regular Meeting Minutes – March 15, 2016 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 

Councilmembers asked about false calls and fire inspections.  Councilmembers expressed their 
appreciation of the Fire Department personnel.  
 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 
 

Mayor Bob Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:39 p.m. 
 
 Citizens Speaking 
 Hal Hovey 
 
The comment period was closed at 6:44 p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on March 1, 2016 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers 
c. Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as a Full Member  
d. Re-appointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board 
e. Interlocal Agreement with Skagit Valley College – HVAC  
f. Tyler Technologies Agreement – Tyler Cashiering Software  
g. Purchase Authorization – Police Department Copier 
h. Janitorial Contract Services Extension 
i. Prothman PSA: HR Director Recruitment  

 
Motion:   Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Consent Agenda Items as presented,  

    motion seconded by Councilmember Hizon, motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 
 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Attorney Esparza and City Engineer Joe Stowell spoke to Mr. Hovey’s public comment. 
 

City Administrator 
 
Doug spoke about the Washington D.C. and his interaction with the Washington delegation 
which included conversations about municipal bond interest for the Treatment Plant, block grant 
opportunities and digital technologies. 
 
Dr. Merriman also announced the City Council Workshop on March 23, 2016 at 3:00 p.m. and 
the Investment Committee will meet at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Dr. Merriman thanked city staff for their work during the recent storm event. 
 
Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project.   
 
Councilmembers asked follow-up questions regarding the Clean Water Facility Project. 
 
 

5



Regular Meeting Minutes – March 15, 2016 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

Mayor 
 
Mayor Bob Severns spoke about the Washington D.C. trip.  He thanked the citizens and Council 
for giving him that opportunity.  He felt there were constructive conversations regarding the 
changes at NAS Whidbey Island.  The trip included a day at the Pentagon and several presen-
tations by the military about their plans and how we can work better together.  Mayor Severns 
also thanked Councilmember Munns for her work on the Board of the Association of Washing-
ton Cities. 
 
Councilmembers 
 
Councilmember Campbell spoke about his work on the Sister Cites Committee and the Task 
Force for the PBY Association. 
 
Councilmember Munns spoke about the Washington D.C. trip and her opportunity to exchange 
ideas with other Washington State communities.  She spoke about discussions about how to get 
broad band to our community, military connections through National League of Cities and Base 
Realignment Adjustment. 
 
Councilmember Servatius reported that the Washington D.C. trip was very reassuring regarding 
the future of NAS Whidbey Island, there were discussions about affordable housing, opioid her-
oin epidemic and digital connectivity.  Mr. Servatius also thanked City staff for their work during 
the storm event and spoke about erosion.  He also commended Angela Braunstein for work on 
the Fire Department annual report. 
 
Councilmember Hizon acknowledged Mr. Hovey’s point about Council doing a better job about 
explaining decisions once they are made. 
 
Councilmember Wasinger spoke about a meeting she attended between sports organization 
leaders and the Parks Department.  She thanked Hank Nydam and the Parks Department for 
coordinating with the organization on the many sports events in our community which enhances 
our quality of life. 
 
Mayor Severns called a five (5) minute recess at 7:20 p.m.  The meeting reconvened at 7:25 
p.m. 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS & PUBLIC MEETINGS 
 

Ordinance No. 1760:  2017-2018 Wastewater Rates  
City Administrator Dr. Merriman presented the staff report and recommended approval.  Mr. 
Shawn Koorn, consultant from HDR also made a presentation regarding the sewer utility and 
the rates. 
 
Councilmembers discussed, Dr. Merriman and Mr. Koorn responded to Council’s respective 
questions. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 7:44 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:44   
p.m. 
 
 
 

6



Regular Meeting Minutes – March 15, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

Ordinance No. 1760:  2017-2018 Wastewater Rates 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Hizon moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1760, seconded by  

   Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.  
 
 
Ordinance No. 1758:  SW 3rd Avenue Properties Rezoning Ordinance 
Senior Planner Cac Kamak provided the staff report and recommended approval. 
 
Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 7:56 p.m., no comments, closed at 7:56   
p.m. 
 
Ordinance No. 1758:  SW 3rd Avenue Properties Rezoning Ordinance 
 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Ordinance No. 1758, seconded by  

   Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.  
 
 
Councilmember Munns commented about a scam phone call that she received and the Police 
Department’s response. 
 
Councilmember Wasinger added that the Ms. Oak Harbor Scholarship Pageant is this Saturday 
and thanked River Powers and Jes Walker-Wyse for their work on the contest. 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Servatius,  

   unanimously approved.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 
           Kathy Gifford, Executive Assistant to the  
       Development Services Director  

7



Workshop Meeting Minutes – March 23, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Workshop Meeting Minutes 

March 23, 2016  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Pro Tem Paggao called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. and asked for introductions. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Beth Munns Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre 
Councilmember Joel Servatius 
Councilmember Rick Almberg 

City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Project Engineer Arnie Peterschmidt 
Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre 
Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Chief of Police Ed Green 

Mayor Severns and Councilmember Campbell were absent. 

1. DEPARTMENTAL BRIEFINGS

a. Transportation Plan Update – Project List/Financial Concepts – DS/ENG
Staff report provided by Senior Planner Dennis Lefevre and consultant team Kendra Breiland 
and Alex Riemondy. 

Questions from Council. 

b. Windjammer Park Integration Plan Project Update
Steve Powers, Development Director provided the staff report. 

c. 2016 Update – Urban Growth Areas Element
Steve Powers, Development Director presented the staff report. 

Comments from Members of Council.  

8



 
Workshop Meeting Minutes – March 23, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

2.  PENDING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

a. Clean Water Facility – Hoffman Concrete Services  
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided information to the Council regarding this pending item. 
 
Questions and discussion from City Council.  
 

3.  EMERGING ISSUES 
 
None. 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:48 p.m. 

 
Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

9



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165869 through 166072 in the amount of $3,271,599.41.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37504 - 37660.

- EFT check numbers 792 - 796.

- Payroll check numbers 98742 - 98794.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165869 through 166072 in the amount of $3,271,599.41.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 37504 - 37660.

- EFT check numbers 792 - 796.

- Payroll check numbers 98742 - 98794.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

10



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing

11

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459377084_at.pdf


03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165869 3/22/2016 0006638  WASHINGTON STATE PARKS & 032216 SPECIAL ACTIVITY PERMIT  250.00

Total :  250.00

 165870 3/22/2016 0000600  NORTHWEST CLEAN AIR AGENCY 031116 PERMIT FEE  1,122.00

Total :  1,122.00

 165871 3/24/2016 0007350  EVAN PILCHIK PHOTOGRAPHY X-8 PHOTOGRAPHY SERVICES  2,600.00

Total :  2,600.00

 165872 3/24/2016 0005912  GREENLAYER 7855 MARATHON SHIRTS  7,685.29

Total :  7,685.29

 165873 3/24/2016 0005912  GREENLAYER 7857 MARATHON SHIRTS  3,025.54

Total :  3,025.54

 165874 3/24/2016 0005912  GREENLAYER 7834 MARATHON SHIRTS  1,535.00

Total :  1,535.00

 165875 3/24/2016 0005912  GREENLAYER 7856 MARATHON SHIRTS  3,126.21

Total :  3,126.21

 165876 3/25/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 022916 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,669.69

Total :  4,669.69

 165877 3/25/2016 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 030416 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  250.00

Total :  250.00

 165878 3/25/2016 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 030316 SALES/USE TAX  45,615.37

Total :  45,615.37

 165879 3/30/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 25029 EXP REIMB  74.04

Total :  74.04

 165880 3/30/2016 0000007  AA ELECTRIC 9466 NE 7TH LIFT STATION  173.92

 15.45PHOTOCELL9468

Total :  189.37

1Page:

12



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165881 3/30/2016 0008080  ADORAMA 18063450 PROTERCTOR FILTER  61.00

Total :  61.00

 165882 3/30/2016 0005187  ALL AMERICAN GASKET, INC 13796 BOLT HOLES  222.87

Total :  222.87

 165883 3/30/2016 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 72245421 BATTERIES  166.12

Total :  166.12

 165884 3/30/2016 0000029  ALL PHASE ELECTRIC SUPPLY 0952-785462 STEEL TOP CAPS  95.59

Total :  95.59

 165885 3/30/2016 0005903  ALLDATA 2002026055 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL  1,630.50

Total :  1,630.50

 165886 3/30/2016 0008164  ALLEN, DAVID 2139 MOORAGE REFUND  131.21

Total :  131.21

 165887 3/30/2016 0000037  AMERICAN WATER WORKS 7001179439 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL  1,920.00

Total :  1,920.00

 165888 3/30/2016 0000712  AMERIGAS 3049817419 TANK RENTAL  107.61

 150.06PROPANE3050370832

Total :  257.67

 165889 3/30/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36588 MAR 2016 WEB HOSTING  75.00

 15.95MAR 2016 WEB HOSTING36596

 21.25SIGN UP LINK47573

 400.00WEBSITE REDESIGN47666

Total :  512.20

 165890 3/30/2016 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA 031116 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

 600.00PUBLIC DEFENSE031116A

 300.00PUBLIC DEFENSE032216

 300.00PUBLIC DEFENSE032216A

 300.00PUBLIC DEFENSE032216B

 600.00PUBLIC DEFENSE032216C

2Page:

13



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,400.00 165890 3/30/2016 0007077 0007077  ANDREWS, SARA

 165891 3/30/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 1988438190 UNIFORM SERVICES  23.06

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988438191

 20.19UNIFORM SERVICES1988438192

 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988438193

 20.99UNIFORM SERVICES1988438194

 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988438195

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988438196

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988442588

 26.96UNIFORM SERVICES1988442589

 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988449124

 49.18UNIFORM SERVICES1988449125

 17.74UNIFORM SERVICES1988449126

 15.95UNIFORM SERVICES1988449127

 25.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988449128

 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988449129

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988449130

 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988453465

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988453468

 26.96UNIFORM SERVICES1988453469

 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988459998

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988459999

 19.10UNIFORM SERVICES1988460000

 15.67UNIFORM SERVICES1988460001

 22.35UNIFORM SERVICES1988460002

 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988460003

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988460004

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988464414

 25.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988464415

 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988470934

 19.10UNIFORM SERVICES1988470935

 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988470936

 22.35UNIFORM SERVICES1988470937

 42.78UNIFORM SERVICES1988470938

 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988470939

 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988475285

3Page:

14



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165891 3/30/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK

 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988475288

 27.07UNIFORM SERVICES1988475289

 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES24.69

Total :  857.73

 165892 3/30/2016 0006865  ARMADA 032416 COLLECTION FEE/36-437404-07  282.34

Total :  282.34

 165893 3/30/2016 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 166086 CELL MAINTENANCE  108.70

Total :  108.70

 165894 3/30/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0883813-IN FUEL  3,908.83

Total :  3,908.83

 165895 3/30/2016 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 39712 2015 RETRO PROGRAM  12,951.19

Total :  12,951.19

 165896 3/30/2016 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0324201 AIRCARDS  407.35

Total :  407.35

 165897 3/30/2016 0000065  AVOCET ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING 1600605-IN TESTING  46.00

 105.00TESTING1600710-IN

Total :  151.00

 165898 3/30/2016 0007302  BAHLMANN, ANGELA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  15.00

Total :  15.00

 165899 3/30/2016 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 175372 SPLIT SYSTEM MAINTENANCE  265.12

Total :  265.12

 165900 3/30/2016 0000082  BAYSHORE OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC 0668294-001 BUDGET ARM/KEYBOARD TRAY  369.47

 3,863.64PENINSULA/DRAWER/FILE/HUTCH0668294-002

 2,733.81COUNTERTOP0671844-001

Total :  6,966.92

 165901 3/30/2016 0000097  BEST WESTERN HARBOR PLAZA 1741 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/HERRICK  109.59

4Page:

15



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  109.59 165901 3/30/2016 0000097 0000097  BEST WESTERN HARBOR PLAZA

 165902 3/30/2016 0000103  BLADE CHEVROLET, INC 167440 COOLER  142.44

-142.44COOLER167516

 59.41PUMP KIT170407

Total :  59.41

 165903 3/30/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2662 NAME TAGS  10.50

Total :  10.50

 165904 3/30/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82088178 STETHOSCOPES/BP SYSTEM/DEFIB PADS/GLUTOS 481.60

Total :  481.60

 165905 3/30/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 826574 SUPPLIES  439.13

 1,896.52SUPPLIES845549

Total :  2,335.65

 165906 3/30/2016 0006215  CAROLLO 0147930 PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PREL 478,935.35

 501,698.98PROF SVC/WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PREL0147931

Total :  980,634.33

 165907 3/30/2016 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 032316 PUBLIC DEFENSE  300.00

Total :  300.00

 165908 3/30/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 NATURAL GAS/210  25.80

 357.94NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 219.91NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 11.44NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 27.48NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 1,137.41NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION36624000000

 192.33NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 122.01NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 494.08NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 72.21NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 66.30NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 1,346.01NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 65.74NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

5Page:

16



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165908 3/30/2016 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 95.99NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  4,255.85

 165909 3/30/2016 0005889  CASCADE RECREATION, INC 7167 WASTE BAGS  253.73

Total :  253.73

 165910 3/30/2016 0000172  CHRISTIANS TOWING STORAGE 30238 TOWING SERVICES  194.57

Total :  194.57

 165911 3/30/2016 0004520  COASTAL WEAR PRODUCTS 6031 GUTTER BROOMS  714.12

Total :  714.12

 165912 3/30/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 BUSINESS SERVICES  119.76

 19.32XFINITY8498300270032028

 250.65INTERNET8498300290363841

Total :  389.73

 165913 3/30/2016 0002302  COUNTRYWIDE FENCE CENTER 16064 CHAIN LINK/FENCE TIES  320.08

Total :  320.08

 165914 3/30/2016 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 16-130 OAK LEAF-CORT  48.92

Total :  48.92

 165915 3/30/2016 0000225  DAILY JOURNAL OF COMMERCE 3310115 BIDS JAIL CAMERA SYS  195.00

Total :  195.00

 165916 3/30/2016 0000234  DAVID EVANS & ASSOCIATES, INC 372336 PROF SVC/VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK SIDEWALK 326.64

Total :  326.64

 165917 3/30/2016 0001815  DEPARTMENT OF RETIREMENT 1155596 2015 TAX YEAR OLD AGE AND SURVIVORS INSU  61.67

Total :  61.67

 165918 3/30/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-533144-3 PORTABLES  60.00

Total :  60.00

 165919 3/30/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 033116 MAR 2016 LAUNDRY SERVICES  328.20

6Page:

17



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165919 3/30/2016 (Continued)0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS

 4.35LAUNDRY SERVICES1101

Total :  332.55

 165920 3/30/2016 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 41963401 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE  747.86

Total :  747.86

 165921 3/30/2016 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 16-05011 TESTING  18.00

 1,096.00TESTING16-05020

 380.00TESTING16-05140

Total :  1,494.00

 165922 3/30/2016 0008160  EMERALD AUTO 1014 DETAIL  175.00

 175.00DETAIL1015

 175.00DETAIL1016

 175.00DETAIL1017

 175.00DETAIL1018

Total :  875.00

 165923 3/30/2016 0000278  EMERALD SERVICES, INC I398309 OIL RECYCLING  121.12

 117.00CHLOR TESTI398590

Total :  238.12

 165924 3/30/2016 0000394  EMPLOYERS UNITY, LLC 21197 2ND QTR UNEMPLOYMENT SERVICES  330.00

Total :  330.00

 165925 3/30/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK22458 MOUNTING TIE/CABLE TIE  12.48

 1,110.13TOILET PAPERWAOAK22492

 24.74DCW/COLD GALVWAOAK22496

 30.16GALVWAOAK22533

 27.98CABLE TIEWAOAK22583

Total :  1,205.49

 165926 3/30/2016 0007929  FEHR PEERS 106357 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR TRANSPORTATION ELEME 12,235.85

Total :  12,235.85

 165927 3/30/2016 0006661  FIELD TRAINING OFFICERS, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF2049 REGISTRATION/KRYSINSKI  100.00

7Page:

18



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  100.00 165927 3/30/2016 0006661 0006661  FIELD TRAINING OFFICERS, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF

 165928 3/30/2016 0006592  FIRST PROTECTION FIRE & SAFETY 22666 FIRE EXTINGUISHER  265.39

Total :  265.39

 165929 3/30/2016 0001314  FRAME USA, INC 446280 NATURAL OAK  34.99

Total :  34.99

 165930 3/30/2016 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 033116 MAR 2016 ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 165931 3/30/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 007-9244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  258.72

 72.91CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1060

 84.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-1841

 115.44CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-2236

 71.57CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 65.79CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 47.72CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-5190

 60.37CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 71.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2530

 200.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 75.04CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 35.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 28.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  1,187.20

 165932 3/30/2016 0000329  GALLS 004964013 LED STEADY CHARGE/PANTS  1,184.94

Total :  1,184.94

 165933 3/30/2016 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  400.00

Total :  400.00

 165934 3/30/2016 0000330  GARDNER, TERI EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  216.60

Total :  216.60

 165935 3/30/2016 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC 2015895 CARD READER REPLACEMENT  569.59

 667.24NIGHT ENTRY DOOR MAINTENANCE2015917

8Page:

19



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,236.83 165935 3/30/2016 0002767 0002767  GATEWAY CONTROLS, INC

 165936 3/30/2016 0003064  GC SYSTEMS, INC 32879 SEAL KIT  76.54

Total :  76.54

 165937 3/30/2016 0008166  GLASS, GAYLE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  30.00

Total :  30.00

 165938 3/30/2016 0000344  GLOBAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY 109207022 DOOR CLOSER  244.55

Total :  244.55

 165939 3/30/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9045243376 MARKING CHALK  89.35

 92.35MARKING PAINT9045243384

Total :  181.70

 165940 3/30/2016 0008121  GRANICUS, INC 73963 SOFTWARE  2,700.00

Total :  2,700.00

 165941 3/30/2016 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 15637.00 PROF SVC/10 INCH PIPELINE BRIDGE HANGER  4,555.50

Total :  4,555.50

 165942 3/30/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 032816 ADVERTISING  3,020.00

Total :  3,020.00

 165943 3/30/2016 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8368 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

 165944 3/30/2016 0005311  HB JAEGER COMPANY, LLC 169910/1 GATE VALVE  230.44

 86.96RATCHET WRENCH169911/1

 599.68CLAMP/IP46568/2

Total :  917.08

 165945 3/30/2016 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4147748 MARKING PAINT  221.27

 83.93METER THREADI4154941

 195.53VALVESI4155081

 37.15FREIGHTI4156816

Total :  537.88

9Page:

20



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165946 3/30/2016 0000694  HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS F191731 RUBBER  344.37

Total :  344.37

 165947 3/30/2016 0008159  HEADINGS, JENNIFER 030816 CPL FEE REFUND  32.00

Total :  32.00

 165948 3/30/2016 0000380  HEALTH, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 031616 CERTIFICATION EXAM/CARROLL  87.00

Total :  87.00

 165949 3/30/2016 0007871  HERRICK POLYGRAPH SERVICE 494 POLYGRAPH SERVICES  318.90

Total :  318.90

 165950 3/30/2016 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 56800425 COMPUTER  999.72

Total :  999.72

 165951 3/30/2016 0003562  HIGH PERFORMANCE SIGNS 20305 VINYL PANEL  436.00

Total :  436.00

 165952 3/30/2016 0006452  HOAGLAND, JAMES EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  151.32

Total :  151.32

 165953 3/30/2016 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY CWFC10 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY  1,632,507.11

 16,512.73PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITYP15

Total :  1,649,019.84

 165954 3/30/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2025296 STRIPS/SEAT  30.26

 34.62NIPPLES/CLAMP/BUSHING/ADAPTER/TEE22915

 97.93WING NUTS/VISE/BOLTS2570806

 32.65NVYBLUE2584299

 54.24SIMPLE GREEN3023813

 22.832X2X84023696

 70.10GLOSS/CNCEPXSYR/SHEET/TACK4592898

 101.97CONN/GLOVES/PLUGS5024897

 5.96CRPT TAPE5130575

 193.49CHARGER/BATTERIES560938

 531.92COUPLINGS/THREAD SEAL6022139

 24.88NUTS/WASHERS/THREADED ROD6022237

 98.65BC FIR PLY6023411

10Page:

21



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165954 3/30/2016 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES

 12.98357 3 PACK6024789

 186.65SEAL/ANCHOR/ROPE6042503

 79.32CORD6042504

 223.57SHOWER RODS/KITS/DOOR STOP/RINGS6565036

 19.02WEDGE/PIPE6592796

 826.1117 IN EXTEN6753398

 78.92HINGE/BC FIR PLY7570578

 18.35TB PNW 3LB7593768

 8.05WNHTLIT8024483

 32.11ANGLES8024555

 26.03GFCI WLP CVR BRZ8593739

 15.46BRUSHES9593149

Total :  2,826.07

 165955 3/30/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 426156 STIR STICKS  5.42

Total :  5.42

 165956 3/30/2016 0006047  HORIZON EP120225 IDLER PULLEY  103.03

Total :  103.03

 165957 3/30/2016 0005588  HYTECH ROOFING, INC 19138 ROOF REPAIR  444.58

Total :  444.58

 165958 3/30/2016 0000417  INDUSTRIAL BOLT & SUPPLY 610727-1 TIE WRAP/ELBOW  539.06

Total :  539.06

 165959 3/30/2016 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 1549 HEPATITIS B IMMUNIZATIONS  105.00

Total :  105.00

 165960 3/30/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 030216 FEB 2016 COLLECTION CHARGES  21,298.94

 103.43ANIMAL SHELTER4275714

Total :  21,402.37

 165961 3/30/2016 0000445  JACKSON HIRSH, INC 0938652 LAMINATING SUPPLIES  152.50

Total :  152.50

 165962 3/30/2016 0000447  JAMESON, KEITH TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  259.00

11Page:

22



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  259.00 165962 3/30/2016 0000447 0000447  JAMESON, KEITH

 165963 3/30/2016 0007412  KATY ISAKSEN ASSOCIATES OAKFUND15 2-16 PROF SVC/2017 ECOLOGY SRF LOAN APPLICATI  871.00

Total :  871.00

 165964 3/30/2016 0006362  KBA, INC 3002682 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY & OUTFALL 81,471.23

Total :  81,471.23

 165965 3/30/2016 0000476  KERR, JACK 03-16 MAR 2016 PUBLIC DEFENSE SCREENING  1,400.00

Total :  1,400.00

 165966 3/30/2016 0007537  KESSELRING TACTICAL SUPPLY 1307 HOR LE 308 WIN 168GR A-MAX  660.44

Total :  660.44

 165967 3/30/2016 0008162  KRYSINSKI, MATTHEW TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  151.00

Total :  151.00

 165968 3/30/2016 0007930  LACY & PAR 70557 PROF SVC/CITY LIMITS POSTCARD PRIMT  1,396.50

Total :  1,396.50

 165969 3/30/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5103601MB ASPHALT  298.81

Total :  298.81

 165970 3/30/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400235094 TIRES  245.86

 34.80FLAT REPAIR41400236309

Total :  280.66

 165971 3/30/2016 0005367  LIFESTYLES RECREATIONAL 18935 LAWNMOWER  1,246.67

Total :  1,246.67

 165972 3/30/2016 0004863  LIND ELECTRONICS, INC 313196 TIMER  140.95

Total :  140.95

 165973 3/30/2016 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2134996-00 CARGO PANTS  93.37

 206.53STRIKER TORRENT SIDE ZIP2135427-01

Total :  299.90

 165974 3/30/2016 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  129.00

12Page:

23



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165974 3/30/2016 (Continued)0001909  LONG, JAY

 99.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 111.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  339.00

 165975 3/30/2016 0002729  MAILFINANCE N5818428 LEASE PAYMENT  610.53

Total :  610.53

 165976 3/30/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 110259 YARD WASTE  123.80

Total :  123.80

 165977 3/30/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 050906 GROCERIES  436.90

 318.70GROCERIES051021

 403.36GROCERIES950982

Total :  1,158.96

 165978 3/30/2016 0005025  MASCOTT EQUIPMENT 362234 NOZZLES/INSULATOR  285.04

Total :  285.04

 165979 3/30/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P44117 FEB 2016 POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTS  3,014.69

Total :  3,014.69

 165980 3/30/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 44116 FEB 2016 MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  253.71

 893.30FEB 2016 MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS44117

Total :  1,147.01

 165981 3/30/2016 0000040  MATRIX 608463153 LONG DISTANCE  477.63

Total :  477.63

 165982 3/30/2016 0000546  MATTHEWS, PHILLIP EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  150.00

Total :  150.00

 165983 3/30/2016 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  35.19

Total :  35.19

 165984 3/30/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  111.00

 622.69TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

13Page:

24



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  733.69 165984 3/30/2016 0000561 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS

 165985 3/30/2016 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 031016 MAR 2016 HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,708.33

Total :  1,708.33

 165986 3/30/2016 0003369  MICRON CONSUMER PRODUCTS GROUP 252065458 HP UPGRADE  74.31

Total :  74.31

 165987 3/30/2016 0007786  MISSION COMMUNICATIONS, LLC 1000988 SERVICE PACKAGE RENEWAL  407.40

Total :  407.40

 165988 3/30/2016 0006355  MOBILE EQUIPMENT SYSTEMS 122326 GASKETS/PLATE  218.18

Total :  218.18

 165989 3/30/2016 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MV131096 SAL RNG/CLAMP  32.52

 68.46ELBOWMV131760

 156.21BRAKE SPRINGMV132132

 191.50BLOCK HEATERMV132302

Total :  448.69

 165990 3/30/2016 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES IN1011257 SHIRTS  132.70

 71.14SHIRTIN1011803

Total :  203.84

 165991 3/30/2016 0007507  NELSON, JOYCE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  393.73

Total :  393.73

 165992 3/30/2016 0007670  NETWORKFLEET, INC OSV000000368307 FEB 2016 MONTHLY SERVICE  217.13

Total :  217.13

 165993 3/30/2016 0000616  NEW PIG CORPORATION 4709157-00 OIL ABSORBENT  1,193.04

Total :  1,193.04

 165994 3/30/2016 0000610  NORTH CENTRAL LABORATORIES 369419 STANDARD/NUTRIENT  288.92

Total :  288.92

 165995 3/30/2016 0000645  NORTH WHIDBEY & LACONNER 121218 VET SERVICES  158.04

14Page:

25



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  158.04 165995 3/30/2016 0000645 0000645  NORTH WHIDBEY & LACONNER

 165996 3/30/2016 0000648  NORTHWEST PUMP & EQUIPMENT CO 2686440-00 SEAL KIT  863.26

Total :  863.26

 165997 3/30/2016 0005767  NORTHWEST RUNNER MAGAZINE 3016 ADVERTISING  253.33

 760.00APR 2016 ADVERTISING4018

Total :  1,013.33

 165998 3/30/2016 0006855  NORTHWEST YACHTING MAGAZINE 50123 ADVERTISING  574.00

Total :  574.00

 165999 3/30/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 268151 COUPLE/ADAPTER/ELBOW/TIES  8.94

 12.30BULBS/PAINTBRUSHES268176

 4.88SPRAYPAINT268253

 10.30MEASURING CUPS/EPSOM SALT268258

 4.89LOCK WASHERS268267

 33.70TARGETS268333

 79.64PAINT/BRUSH268338

 39.12PAINT268390

 43.27PIPE/COUPLE/STRAP/CEMENT/BUSHING/TEE268397

 10.32TUBE268408

 3.57COUPLE/BUSHING268413

 19.56GAS CAN268429

 18.47OIL268432

 11.11BRAID TUBE/NIPPLES/ELBOWS268480

 8.69ELBOW268519

 32.39CLAMPS/ADAPTERS268537

 26.07STEMS268555

 5.42RSTP SPRAY268581

 6.51SAFETY HASP268584

 1.95SCREWEYE268590

 37.22SCREEN REPAIR PARTS268597

 9.23SILICONE268610

 17.37COUPLINGS268612

 4.34TACKLE BOX ORGANIZER268631

 43.45PAIL/LOCK/BUCKET268633

15Page:

26



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165999 3/30/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 4.24ACID BRUSH268639

 15.21SCREWDRIVER268673

 6.52STUD268681

 79.83PAINT/PRIMER/PAPER/TAPE/PAINTBRUSHES268689

 35.86FLASHLIGHT268700

 44.89BLEACH/BULBS/FASTENERS/ROD268704

 2.49CAP268778

 8.29BULB/FASTENERS268788

 23.89LIGHT CONTROL/BKR268791

 1.08BUSHING268810

 0.96FASTENERS268815

 4.88TWINE268816

 44.53PAINT/MINERAL268863

 9.77VOLT TESTER268865

 4.51FASTENERS268891

 8.69MOISTURE TESTER268945

 27.12BULBS268982

 41.15FASTENERS269004

 19.73FREIGHT269036

Total :  876.35

 166000 3/30/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-264594 DRIP PANS -287.86

 9.48FILTERS001-264911

 91.08FILTERS001-265067

 15.55ELECTRICAL PROD001-265068

 7.82QUICK CONNECT001-265085

 4.47FILTERS001-265462

 4.84FILTERS001-265750

 189.19BRAKE/CYLINDER001-266130

 13.43BK UP LAMP001-266131

 8.01MASTER CYLINDER001-266195

 11.42BRAKE FLUID DOT001-266199

 9.71SUCTION GUN001-266236

-24.46CORE001-266350

 34.88PROPORTIONING VA001-266435

 34.88PROPORTIONING VA001-266436

16Page:

27



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166000 3/30/2016 (Continued)0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER

 34.88PROPORTIONING VA001-266438

 13.85FILTERS001-266444

 7.19FILTERS001-266670

 1.67MINI LAMP001-266757

 26.70ELECTRICAL PROD001-266889

 4.57FILTERS001-266895

 3.42CLEARANCE LIGHT001-266902

 6.19OFFSE001-266921

-25.49PS/HOSE001-266922

 26.07RATCHET001-266999

 45.76FILTERS001-267008

 3.18MINI LAMPS001-267022

 74.60AUTO SH/PUMP001-267036

 0.35FUSE001-267037

 86.89ROTOR/CERAMIC PADS001-267080

-17.10CERAMIC PADS001-267082

 143.28FILTERS001-267085

 113.66MONRO-MATIC PLUS001-267093

 35.05IDLER ARM001-267094

 195.66TAILLIGHTS001-267514

-16.31RETURN/BATTERY/CORE001-267564

 9.33FILTERS001-267618

 125.37ELO GAL001-267920

 62.69ELO GAL001-267934

 143.28FILTERS001-268031

 315.38OIL LINE001-268039

 13.78FILTERS001-268113

 12.99FILTERS001-268265

 12.11BRAKE FLUID PREM001-268276

 10.20COUPLER001-268284

 26.33WIPER BLADES001-268350

 4.32RAD CAP00-267261

Total :  1,622.29

 166001 3/30/2016 0000673  OAK HARBOR MOTORS 47130 PANEL/SHEILD  246.84

17Page:

28



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  246.84 166001 3/30/2016 0000673 0000673  OAK HARBOR MOTORS

 166002 3/30/2016 0007653  OAK HARBOR PRIMARY CARE, PLLC 021616 PREV VISIT  150.00

 150.00PREV VISIT021616A

Total :  300.00

 166003 3/30/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150111 MAR 2016 COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  11,092.00

Total :  11,092.00

 166004 3/30/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150068 STADIUM MAINTENANCE  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 166005 3/30/2016 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 827830179001 FLUOR  111.41

Total :  111.41

 166006 3/30/2016 0000665  OFFICEMAX, INC 484202 SERTA SL  413.05

Total :  413.05

 166007 3/30/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0096570 TIRES  111.76

 344.68TIRES0096819

Total :  456.44

 166008 3/30/2016 0007491  PADRTA, NATHAN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  280.50

Total :  280.50

 166009 3/30/2016 0001349  PARTNER CONSTRUCTION PRODUCTS 7647 TACK  4,233.43

Total :  4,233.43

 166010 3/30/2016 0000702  PAYNE, RANDY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  7.00

 260.62EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  267.62

 166011 3/30/2016 0000709  PERS 01152845 FEB 2016 UNFUNDED LIABILITY  26.98

Total :  26.98

 166012 3/30/2016 0000721  PLACE, GEORGE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  130.44

Total :  130.44

18Page:

29



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

19

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166013 3/30/2016 0000710  PLATT ELECTRIC SUPPLY, INC I943602 FUSE  144.63

Total :  144.63

 166014 3/30/2016 0003084  POLLARDWATER.COM 0037406 OIL  84.59

 923.84CASING/SEAT WRCH BASE0037871

Total :  1,008.43

 166015 3/30/2016 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  179.00

Total :  179.00

 166016 3/30/2016 0006866  PROTHMAN 2016-5272 HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR SEARCH  6,166.67

Total :  6,166.67

 166017 3/30/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR DISPLT  1,228.23

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST WIND200000919684

 2,078.65ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR EBATH200001097589

 21.14ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 110.51ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 45.35ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SIGN200002036719

 69.80ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D200002036917

 28.64ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST200002037097

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT PUMP200002037261

 112.11ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS ST LF200002037501

 10.16ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 11.15ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 186.60ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTST200002723381

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 181.91ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RESTRM200003459654

 30.85ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 78.77ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD LIGHT200004562878

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.16ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 10.95ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR WKITCH200005461666

 4,015.69ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGOON200005933094

 10.16ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 178.03ELECTRICITY/SE ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

19Page:

30



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

20

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166017 3/30/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 106.42ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.16ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.77ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 18.01ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 35.35ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 131.25ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 20.31ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 55.24ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LIGHTS200010530240

 147.81ELECTRICITY/1501 SE CITY BEACH ST PARK200010530802

 179.08ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY CAB200010531024

 10.77ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP IRRIG200010531172

 113.63ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CABI200010531354

 130.25ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 27.50ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLPK200010699706

 488.52ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 45.35ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 25.31ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.16ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 884.50ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 4,445.60ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 14.68ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 4,618.21ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 844.73ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 211.07ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIFTST200013968405

 41.14ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 810.00ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 135.59ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 74.81ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 563.47ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 480.67ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 59.59ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGNAL200017575347

 81.68ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 217.04ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR PUMP200017654415

 11.34ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,476.56ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

20Page:

31



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

21

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166017 3/30/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 30.55ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHTS200019043344

 39.81ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUMP200019500517

 34.37ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 973.65ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 10.16ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR KITEST200020308330

 84.82ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 27.36ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 36.63ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

 40.54ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFIC200023360569

 31.98ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTPMP200024715845

 125.82ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 165.43ELECTRICITY/ANIMAL SHELTER220000598098

 76.77ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB ROAD220002244337

 13.58ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY PIONT & SW CARNEG220002247165

 895.91ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 787.87ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 24.79ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 230.98ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955

 29.78ELECTRICITY/2900 N OAK HARBOR RD PUMP220007681624

 397.65ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000005003

 65.14ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 50.44ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906

 63.71ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000010409

 162.20ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010458

 103.31ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010516

 3,711.43REPAIR WORK400000816001

Total :  33,231.68

 166018 3/30/2016 0002997  QUINTON DESIGN & ELECTRICAL 2721 HEATER REPLACEMENT  346.75

Total :  346.75

 166019 3/30/2016 0003060  RED LION HOTEL YAKIMA CENTER 27638 HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS/MERRILL  201.94

Total :  201.94

 166020 3/30/2016 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC 033116 MAR 2016/PARKING LOT RENTAL  1,650.00

21Page:

32



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

22

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,650.00 166020 3/30/2016 0007885 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC

 166021 3/30/2016 0006587  RF INSTALLATIONS, LLC BL-005223 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  25.00

Total :  25.00

 166022 3/30/2016 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1652 TAPING SERVICES  2,758.50

 1,959.80TAPING SERVICES10-1657

Total :  4,718.30

 166023 3/30/2016 0005827  ROBINSON, JACK TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  76.00

Total :  76.00

 166024 3/30/2016 0000775  ROSEN, CATHERINE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  115.50

Total :  115.50

 166025 3/30/2016 0006455  SCHNEIDER, BRIAN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  76.00

Total :  76.00

 166026 3/30/2016 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  457.10

Total :  457.10

 166027 3/30/2016 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-813904 SENSOR  45.39

 80.82SENSORS6-892102

Total :  126.21

 166028 3/30/2016 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 59899 PROF SVC/BARGAINING  170.00

Total :  170.00

 166029 3/30/2016 0005085  SEVERNS, ROBERT TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  158.22

Total :  158.22

 166030 3/30/2016 0000816  SHELL FLEET PLUS 0000000065163545603 FUEL  71.95

Total :  71.95

 166031 3/30/2016 0000817  SHELLEY, TIM TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  138.50

Total :  138.50

 166032 3/30/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9409645124 SHREDDING  56.68

22Page:

33



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

23

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166032 3/30/2016 (Continued)0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC

 56.68SHREDDING9409645157

Total :  113.36

 166033 3/30/2016 0008163  SIEMERS, GAIL LYN 032316 PUBLIC DEFENSE  3,600.00

Total :  3,600.00

 166034 3/30/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-319475 TRANSFER TANK  603.56

Total :  603.56

 166035 3/30/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 445022 WATER TANK  521.75

Total :  521.75

 166036 3/30/2016 0007890  SMARSH, INC INV00137354 ARCHIVING PLATFORM  220.50

 220.50ARCHIVING PLATFORMINV00142742

Total :  441.00

 166037 3/30/2016 0004821  SME SOLUTIONS, LLC 210049 REPAIR SERVICES  192.95

Total :  192.95

 166038 3/30/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING 7659851 JAN 2016/PUBLICATIONS-ACCT#80125600  1,997.01

 176.93BIDS JAIL CAMERA SYSWCW683119

 67.28CITY ORDINANCESWCW686257

 118.37CITY NOTICESWCW686269

 88.47CITY ORDINANCESWCW686662

 134.57CITY APPLICATIONSWCW688086

 58.56CITY NOTICESWCW688106

 42.36CITY ORDINANCESWCW689004

Total :  2,683.55

 166039 3/30/2016 0007992  SPOHN, BARBARA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  56.16

 129.90TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  186.06

 166040 3/30/2016 0004203  SRV CONSTRUCTION, INC 4 PROF SVC/AULT FIELD BOOSTER PUMP REPLACE 518.51

Total :  518.51

 166041 3/30/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3293188623 CLEANER -54.56

23Page:

34



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

24

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 166041 3/30/2016 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE

-296.84CHAIR3293188624

 1,043.43CND 20MP PSHT ELPH3294748607

 48.89USB ADAPTER CABLE3294748608

 76.63POCKET3294748609

 22.81LABELS3294748610

 27.22MICROBAN CL/CUPS3294748611

 15.80FOLDERS3294748612

 81.68BPA FREE THERMA3294748613

 116.81FRAME/FOLDERS3294748614

 41.73DUSTPAN3294748615

 47.81CABLE3295635976

 19.76LABELS3295635977

 37.04RACK/FLASH DRIVE3295635978

 33.39WASTEBASKET/CONTAINER/MOUSE/PAD3295635979

 34.91PENS/WASTEBASKET/PAPER3295635980

 112.60POST ITS/LEGAL PADS/INK/GLUE3295635981

 66.93CHAIRMAT3295635982

 79.20MOUSE/CUPS/SCISSORS/WIRELESS COMBO3295635983

 2.49STIR STICKS3296169682

 578.09TONER3296169683

 446.34TONER3296169684

 76.60TONER3296169686

 416.31CHAIR3296169687

Total :  3,075.07

 166042 3/30/2016 0008165  STIERN, JEFF 4229 MOORAGE REFUND  281.18

Total :  281.18

 166043 3/30/2016 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0009975 BOOTS/SELDAL  138.29

Total :  138.29

 166044 3/30/2016 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  120.00

 114.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 102.00DRIVING SERVICES1

 90.00DRIVING SERVICES1

24Page:

35



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

25

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  426.00 166044 3/30/2016 0003749 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L

 166045 3/30/2016 0003897  SULLIVAN, KINDLE EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  55.18

Total :  55.18

 166046 3/30/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1095004 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1095006

 38.05PEST EXTERMINATION1095007

 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1095010

 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1095014

 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1095023

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1098498

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1099265

 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION1099873

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1100136

Total :  452.22

 166047 3/30/2016 0007265  THOMPSON, ANNA TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  393.85

Total :  393.85

 166048 3/30/2016 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 109454 BLANKS  299.69

Total :  299.69

 166049 3/30/2016 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OFRE-41-JA9223-L002 PROF SVC/PIPELINE REPLACEMENT  803.77

Total :  803.77

 166050 3/30/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W116 SHIPPING  20.13

 19.46SHIPPING000A0182W096

Total :  39.59

 166051 3/30/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001332901 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  4,261.88

Total :  4,261.88

 166052 3/30/2016 0008167  US BANK AND HOFFMAN CONST 242213000 RETAINAGE-ACCOUNT 242213000  78,712.99

 172,933.77RETAINAGE-ACCOUNT 242213000242213000

Total :  251,646.76

 166053 3/30/2016 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC 2260640031 GASKET/PLUG  50.92

25Page:

36



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

26

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  50.92 166053 3/30/2016 0000937 0000937  VALLEY FREIGHTLINER, INC

 166054 3/30/2016 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9761797099 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  6,709.85

Total :  6,709.85

 166055 3/30/2016 0007509  VOITECKY, KAREN 1 TRAVEL REFUND  105.00

 80.00TRAVEL REFUND1

Total :  185.00

 166056 3/30/2016 0007173  VON HADEN, BRADLEY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  259.00

Total :  259.00

 166057 3/30/2016 0007424  WASHINGTON ASPHALT PAVEMENT 20530 REGISTRATION/SMITH  130.00

Total :  130.00

 166058 3/30/2016 0001044  WASHINGTON CRIMINAL JUSTICE 201125981 REGISTRATION/MORGAN  85.00

Total :  85.00

 166059 3/30/2016 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I16006118 BACKGROUND CHECKS  767.00

Total :  767.00

 166060 3/30/2016 0007331  WASHINGTON TRACTOR 931800 SEAL/GASKET/COVER/FITTING/THERMOSTAT/WAT 523.06

 78.03O=RING938124

Total :  601.09

 166061 3/30/2016 0006267  WESTERN REFUSE & RECYCLING 142300 BUTTERFLY VALVE  174.80

Total :  174.80

 166062 3/30/2016 0005064  WHATCOM COUNTY AS FINANCE 24348 1ST QTR 2016 MINI CHAIN  1,051.75

Total :  1,051.75

 166063 3/30/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 276069 TEST KIT  46.73

 73.12TOWELS/PASTE276806

 8.39MALE CONN/STREET EL277737

Total :  128.24

 166064 3/30/2016 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS 281608 FLAG REPAIR  244.58

26Page:

37



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

27

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  244.58 166064 3/30/2016 0001007 0001007  WHIDBEY CLEANERS

 166065 3/30/2016 0000675  WHIDBEY COMMUNITY PHYSICIANS 011216 PHYSICAL/FAKKEMA  150.00

 150.00PHYSICAL/RAMIREZ012516

 150.00PHYSICAL/TYHUIS012616

Total :  450.00

 166066 3/30/2016 0001005  WHIDBEY GENERAL HOSPITAL WAE23533 INMATE SERVICES  226.10

 2,527.05INMATE SERVICESWAE23733

Total :  2,753.15

 166067 3/30/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48382 BUSINESS CARDS/EMERY  59.79

 54.35BUSINESS CARDS/TYHUIS48404

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/SCHMAL48408

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/SOULE48409

Total :  233.72

 166068 3/30/2016 0007078  WHIDBEY SIGN COMPANY 15707 SIGNS  250.01

Total :  250.01

 166069 3/30/2016 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3961757 CURRENT NET SERVICES  41.45

 65.23ALARM MONITORING3964624

Total :  106.68

 166070 3/30/2016 0006775  WORKSAFE SERVICE, INC 221644 DRUG TESTING  120.00

Total :  120.00

 166071 3/30/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 083776067 COPIES  37.45

Total :  37.45

 166072 3/30/2016 0007269  XYLEM DEWATERING SOLUTIONS, IN 400590393 HOSE/FLANGE FITTINGS/GASKET  1,133.33

Total :  1,133.33

Bank total :  3,271,599.41 204 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 3,271,599.41Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 204

27Page:

38



03/30/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

28

 1:46:06PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

28Page:

39



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1764: Amending 
Bond Ordinance No. 1756

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1764

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On March 1, 2016, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 1756 authorizing the issuance and sale of the 
City’s Waterworks Utility Revenue Bonds, 2016 (the “Bonds”) for funding of the new Clean Water 
Facility.  Upon subsequent review of Ordinance No 1756, it has been determined that in order to 
maintain the greatest flexibility and potential cost savings to the City, it is in the best interest of the City 
and its ratepayers to delegate the ability to set the amount of the reserve requirement for the Bonds to the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1764: Amending 
Bond Ordinance No. 1756

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1764

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On March 1, 2016, the City Council passed Ordinance No. 1756 authorizing the issuance and sale of the 
City’s Waterworks Utility Revenue Bonds, 2016 (the “Bonds”) for funding of the new Clean Water 
Facility.  Upon subsequent review of Ordinance No 1756, it has been determined that in order to 
maintain the greatest flexibility and potential cost savings to the City, it is in the best interest of the City 
and its ratepayers to delegate the ability to set the amount of the reserve requirement for the Bonds to the and its ratepayers to delegate the ability to set the amount of the reserve requirement for the Bonds to the 
"Designated Representative".  Ordinance No. 1764 amends Ordinance No. 1756 (the original Bond 
Ordinance) effectively delegating to the City Administrator, or in the absence of the City Administrator, 
the Finance Director (the “Designated Representative”) the ability to set several terms of the Bonds within
certain parameters.

The issue at hand is the past practice of the City, when issuing utility revenue bonds, is to simultaneously
hold an additional reserve in an amount that shall not exceed the least of (1) Maximum Annual Debt 
Service payment, (2) 125% of Average Annual Debt Service for all years, or (3) 10% of the original 
bond proceeds. 

While the carrying of this form of an additional reserve has been appropriate practice from a market 
attractiveness perspective for the relatively smaller bond issues the City has made in the past, doing so on
this issue would be quite costly as the City would have to borrow up to $5,000,000 in additional funds, at
an interest rate approximately 4%, to simply hold for 30 years as an additional reserve.  The City has 
already demonstrated strong financial policies and the commitment to carrying sufficient reserves as a 
general practice, making the carrying of an additional level of reserve both redundant and costly.  In the 
best interest of our ratepayers, it would be wise to amend Ordinance No 1756 to give the City the option
to forgo our carrying an additional reserve if the final analysis of the bond issue determines the reserve is 
financially unnecessary.

and its ratepayers to delegate the ability to set the amount of the reserve requirement for the Bonds to the 
"Designated Representative".  Ordinance No. 1764 amends Ordinance No. 1756 (the original Bond 
Ordinance) effectively delegating to the City Administrator, or in the absence of the City Administrator, 
the Finance Director (the “Designated Representative”) the ability to set several terms of the Bonds within 
certain parameters.

The issue at hand is the past practice of the City, when issuing utility revenue bonds, is to simultaneously 
hold an additional reserve in an amount that shall not exceed the least of (1) Maximum Annual Debt 
Service payment, (2) 125% of Average Annual Debt Service for all years, or (3) 10% of the original 
bond proceeds. 

While the carrying of this form of an additional reserve has been appropriate practice from a market 
attractiveness perspective for the relatively smaller bond issues the City has made in the past, doing so on 
this issue would be quite costly as the City would have to borrow up to $5,000,000 in additional funds, at 
an interest rate approximately 4%, to simply hold for 30 years as an additional reserve.  The City has 
already demonstrated strong financial policies and the commitment to carrying sufficient reserves as a 
general practice, making the carrying of an additional level of reserve both redundant and costly.  In the 
best interest of our ratepayers, it would be wise to amend Ordinance No 1756 to give the City the option 
to forgo our carrying an additional reserve if the final analysis of the bond issue determines the reserve is 
financially unnecessary.

40



From an economic perspective, it would be more prudent for the City to possibly forgo the reserve as the 
inherent interest cost would be much higher than any perceived benefit in the market place to having the 
additional reserve.  The option to forgo the reserve would have no impact on the S&P rating of the 
bonds.  Accordingly, Finance proposed Ordinance No. 1764 which effectively delegates the decision to 
establish or to not establish the reserve to the City Administrator or his designee.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this action, if the decision is made to forgo an additional bond reserve, is a savings in 
interest costs up to the amount of approximately $3.67 million dollars over the 30-year life of the bond 
issue.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1764

From an economic perspective, it would be more prudent for the City to possibly forgo the reserve as the 
inherent interest cost would be much higher than any perceived benefit in the market place to having the 
additional reserve.  The option to forgo the reserve would have no impact on the S&P rating of the 
bonds.  Accordingly, Finance proposed Ordinance No. 1764 which effectively delegates the decision to 
establish or to not establish the reserve to the City Administrator or his designee.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
The fiscal impact of this action, if the decision is made to forgo an additional bond reserve, is a savings in 
interest costs up to the amount of approximately $3.67 million dollars over the 30-year life of the bond 
issue.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1764

41

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459534003_at.pdf


CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

ORDINANCE NO.  1764 

AN ORDINANCE of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington, amending Ordinance No. 1756 to 
delegate to the City’s designated representative the ability to set the reserve requirement in 
connection with the City’s Waterworks Utility Revenue Bonds, 2016. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington (the “City”) passed 
Ordinance No. 1756 on March 1, 2016 (the “Bond Ordinance”) authorizing the issuance and sale 
of the City’s Waterworks Utility Revenue Bonds, 2016 (the “Bonds”); and  

WHEREAS, the Bond Ordinance delegates to the City Administrator, or in the absence of the 
City Administrator, the Finance Director (the “Designated Representative”) the ability to set 
several terms of the Bonds within certain parameters; and  

WHEREAS, in order to maintain the greatest flexibility and potential cost savings to the City, it 
is in the best interest of the City and its ratepayers to delegate the ability to set the amount of the 
reserve requirement for the Bonds to the Designated Representative;  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, DO HEREBY 
ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Change in Reserve Requirement.  This ordinance shall amend Ordinance 
No. 1756, as appropriate, to allow the reserve requirement to be set by the Designated 
Representative.  In connection, Section 2(zz) of Ordinance No. 1756 shall be amended as 
follows:   

“Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to the Bonds, an amount to be set by 
the Designated Representative, which amount (which may be zero) shall not 
exceed the least of (1) Maximum Annual Debt Service, (2) 125% of Average 
Annual Debt Service, or (3) 10% of the original proceeds of those then-
outstanding Parity Bonds.  Any Reserve Requirement shall be satisfied in 
accordance with Section 13(c).  In connection with any Reserve Security, the 
amount credited against the required deposit into the Reserve Account shall be 
equal to the maximum amount payable under such Reserve Security. 

All other provisions of Ordinance No. 1756 shall remain unchanged.  

Section 2. General Authorization.  The City’s Mayor, City Clerk, City Administrator and 
Finance Director are authorized to take any action necessary to implement this ordinance. 

Section 3. Effective Date of Ordinance.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force 
from and after its passage and five days following its publication as required by law. 

42



-2- 
 

PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Oak Harbor, 
Washington, at an open public meeting thereof, this 5th day of April, 2016. 

 
 

              
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
              
        Date 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
      
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
Published:      
 

43



 

 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Oak Harbor, Washington (the “City”), 
hereby certify as follows: 

1. The attached copy of Ordinance No. 1764 (the “Ordinance”) is a full, true and 
correct copy of an ordinance duly passed at a regular meeting of the City Council 
of the City held at the regular meeting place thereof on April 5th, 2016, as that 
ordinance appears on the minute book of the City. 

2. The Ordinance will be in full force and effect five days after publication in the 
City’s official newspaper. 

3 A quorum of the members of the City Council was present throughout the 
meeting and a majority of the members voted in the proper manner for the 
passage of the Ordinance. 

Dated: ____________, 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 
 
 
 
 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

 
 

44



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1759: Amending 
OHMC 2.310.050 regarding 
Professional Service Contracts

FROM: Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1759 amending OHMC 2.310.050 entitled "Professional service contracts".

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to 2012, the Mayor and Department Heads had the authority to enter into contracts for up to 
$30,000.  In 2012, Council declared a fiscal emergency and limited contract authority of the Mayor and 
Department Heads to $10,000.  Some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal 
emergency has been lifted by City Council.  On January 19, 2016, the City Council passed Ordinance 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1759: Amending 
OHMC 2.310.050 regarding 
Professional Service Contracts

FROM: Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1759 amending OHMC 2.310.050 entitled "Professional service contracts".

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to 2012, the Mayor and Department Heads had the authority to enter into contracts for up to 
$30,000.  In 2012, Council declared a fiscal emergency and limited contract authority of the Mayor and 
Department Heads to $10,000.  Some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal 
emergency has been lifted by City Council.  On January 19, 2016, the City Council passed Ordinance emergency has been lifted by City Council.  On January 19, 2016, the City Council passed Ordinance 
1755, which raised the general contract authority of the Mayor and Department Heads back to 
$30,000.  The authority to enter into Professional Services Contracts up to $30,000 was inadvertently 
left out of Ordinance 1755 and the amount currently remains at $10,000.  Ordinance 1759 is a 
housekeeping amendment intended to ensure consistency between OHMC 2.390 and OHMC 
2.310.050.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1759

emergency has been lifted by City Council.  On January 19, 2016, the City Council passed Ordinance 
1755, which raised the general contract authority of the Mayor and Department Heads back to 
$30,000.  The authority to enter into Professional Services Contracts up to $30,000 was inadvertently 
left out of Ordinance 1755 and the amount currently remains at $10,000.  Ordinance 1759 is a 
housekeeping amendment intended to ensure consistency between OHMC 2.390 and OHMC 
2.310.050.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1759

45

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458149973_at.pdf


 

Ordinance No. 1759 amending OHMC 2.310.050 - 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 1759 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING OAK HARBOR 

MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2.310.050 REGARDING PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 

CONTRACTS 

 

WHEREAS, prior to 2012, the Mayor and Department Heads had the authority to enter into 

contracts for up to $30,000; and   

 

WHEREAS, in 2012, Council declared a fiscal emergency and limited the contract authority of 

the Mayor and Department Heads to $10,000; and  

 

WHEREAS, some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal emergency has 

been lifted by City Council; and  

WHEREAS, raising the contract authority back to the $30,000 cap would increase efficiencies 

and provide for timely procurement of goods and services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Section 2.310.050 entitled "Professional service 

contracts" last amended by Ordinance No. 1629 (2012) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

2.310.050  Professional service contracts.  Contracts for professional services, including 

contracts for legal and consulting services, are not subject to the bidding requirements of this 

chapter through Chapter 2.390 OHMC. The mayor or his/her designee shall promulgate 

procedures and standards for the approval of such contracts. Contracts for architectural and 

engineering services shall be awarded in accordance with Chapter 2.350 OHMC and Chapter 

39.80 RCW. For purposes of this section, “professional services” are those services involving 

skill, education and special knowledge and where the work is predominately mental and 

intellectual, rather than physical and mechanical. The mayor shall establish guidelines and 

procedures for obtaining professional services. Professional service contracts in excess of 

$10,000$30,000 shall require approval by the city council. Contracts for professional services 

under $10,000$30,000 shall be reviewed by the finance director and the city attorney prior to 

signing to assure compliance with the Oak Harbor biennial budget, provisions of Chapter 2.390 

OHMC and purchasing policies promulgated by the mayor. 

 

Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 

circumstance is held invalid, the remainder or the Ordinance or the application of the provision 

to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 

 

46



 

Ordinance No. 1759 amending OHMC 2.310.050 - 2 

 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 

after publication. 

 

PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of ___________________, 2016. 

 

       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

   Veto   (    ) 

   Approve (     ) 

       By       

        Robert Severns, Mayor 

 

       Dated:        

 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

       

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

Published:        

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\Contract Authority OHMC 2.310.050 -- Ordinance 1759.docx 

47



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1762:  Repealing 
OHMC Ch. 2.246 regarding 
ADA Review Committee and 
OHMC Ch. 2.35 regarding 
Program of Monetary Awards 
for City Employees

FROM: Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Pass Ordinance No. 1762 repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 entitled "ADA Review Committee" and OHMC 
Ch. 2.35 entitled "Program of Monetary Awards for City Employees.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.e
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Ordinance No. 1762:  Repealing 
OHMC Ch. 2.246 regarding 
ADA Review Committee and 
OHMC Ch. 2.35 regarding 
Program of Monetary Awards 
for City Employees

FROM: Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Pass Ordinance No. 1762 repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 entitled "ADA Review Committee" and OHMC 
Ch. 2.35 entitled "Program of Monetary Awards for City Employees.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An efficient use of public resources is an important operational goal of the City of Oak Harbor.

In order to consistently meet this goal it is appropriate from time-to-time to review the City's 
organizational structure and determine if changes are warranted.

After one such review it was determined that the City has certain committees on the books that are no 
longer utilized for various reasons.

One such committee is the ADA Review Committee and the other is the Suggestion Award Board.

The roles played by these committees have been absorbed into the organization and their duties 
accomplished as part of daily operations.

In light of the above it is no longer necessary to maintain these committees and they should be removed 
from the City's active committee list.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
An efficient use of public resources is an important operational goal of the City of Oak Harbor.

In order to consistently meet this goal it is appropriate from time-to-time to review the City's 
organizational structure and determine if changes are warranted.

After one such review it was determined that the City has certain committees on the books that are no 
longer utilized for various reasons.

One such committee is the ADA Review Committee and the other is the Suggestion Award Board.

The roles played by these committees have been absorbed into the organization and their duties 
accomplished as part of daily operations.

In light of the above it is no longer necessary to maintain these committees and they should be removed 
from the City's active committee list.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

48



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1762

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1762

49

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458751942_at.pdf


Ordinance No. 1762 repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 

and OHMC Ch. 2.35 - Page 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 1762 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR REPEALING OAK HARBOR 

MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.246 ENTITLED "ADA REVIEW COMMITTEE" AND 

OAK HARBOR MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.35 ENTITLED "PROGRAM OF 

MONETARY AWARDS FOR CITY EMPLOYEES" 

WHEREAS, an efficient use of public resources is an important operational goal of the City of 

Oak Harbor; and 

WHEREAS, in order to consistently meet this goal it is appropriate from time-to-time to review 

the City's organizational structure and determine if changes are warranted; and 

WHEREAS, after one such review it was determined that the City has certain committees on the 

books that are no longer utilized for various reasons; and 

WHEREAS, one such committee is the ADA Review Committee and the other is the Suggestion 

Award Board; and 

WHEREAS, the roles played by these committees have been absorbed into the organization and 

their duties accomplished as part of daily operations; and 

WHEREAS, in light of the above it is no longer necessary to maintain these committees and they 

should be removed from the City's active committee list; now, therefore,  

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 2.246 entitled "ADA Review Committee" is 

hereby repealed. 

Section Two.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 2.35 entitled "Program of Monetary Awards 

for City Employees" is hereby repealed. 

Section Three.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person 

or circumstance is held invalid, the remainder or the Ordinance or the application of the 

provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

Section Four.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days after 

publication. 

PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of ___________________, 2016. 

THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

Veto (    ) 

Approve (     ) By 

Robert Severns, Mayor 

Dated: 

50



Ordinance No. 1762 repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 

and OHMC Ch. 2.35 - Page 2 

 

Attest: 

 

       

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

       

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

Published:        
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\ADA Review Committee and Program of Monetary Awards - Ord 1762.docx 

51



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-12: Amending 
Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) 
of the Master Fee Schedule

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 16-12 amending Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) of the Master Fee Schedule.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1711 on December 1, 2015 adding a new Chapter 5.31 to the 
Oak Harbor Municipal Code entitled "Horse Drawn Carriages, Carts or Conveyances".

Section 5.31.020 entitled "License Fee" requires that a non-refundable fee be paid upon approval of a 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-12: Amending 
Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) 
of the Master Fee Schedule

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Resolution No. 16-12 amending Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) of the Master Fee Schedule.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1711 on December 1, 2015 adding a new Chapter 5.31 to the 
Oak Harbor Municipal Code entitled "Horse Drawn Carriages, Carts or Conveyances".

Section 5.31.020 entitled "License Fee" requires that a non-refundable fee be paid upon approval of a Section 5.31.020 entitled "License Fee" requires that a non-refundable fee be paid upon approval of a 
submitted license.

When the Finance & Utilities Master Fee Schedule was last amended by Resolution No. 16-04 on 
January 19, 2016, this license fee was inadvertently omitted.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 16-12
2. Schedule B - Finance & Utilities Master Fee Schedule

Section 5.31.020 entitled "License Fee" requires that a non-refundable fee be paid upon approval of a 
submitted license.

When the Finance & Utilities Master Fee Schedule was last amended by Resolution No. 16-04 on 
January 19, 2016, this license fee was inadvertently omitted.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 16-12
2. Schedule B - Finance & Utilities Master Fee Schedule

C/A 4.f

52

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458683161_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458682819_at.pdf


Resolution No. 16-12: Finance & Utilities 

Master Fee Schedule      4-5-16 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-12 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING 

SCHEDULE B (FINANCE & UTILITIES) OF THE MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1711 on December 1, 2015 

adding a new Chapter 5.31 to the Oak Harbor Municipal Code entitled "Horse 

Drawn Carriages, Carts or Conveyances"; and 

WHEREAS, Section 5.31.020 entitled "License Fee" requires that a non-

refundable fee be paid upon approval of a submitted license; and 

WHEREAS, when the Finance & Utilities Master Fee Schedule was last amended 

by Resolution No. 16-04 on January 19, 2016, this license fee was inadvertently 

omitted;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 

as follows: 

1. Adoption of the Finance & Utilities Master Fee Schedule.  The City hereby adopts

by reference and incorporates herein the attached Master Fee Schedule for

Finance & Utilities setting the fees, rates, deposits, and other charges.  The

attached Master Fee Schedule for Finance & Utilities replaces Schedule B of the

Master Fee Schedule that was adopted by Resolution No. 16-04 on January 19,

2016.  

2. Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution or its application to any person

or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the Resolution or the

application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected.

3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately.

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this ______ day of April, 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

__________________________ 

ROBERT SEVERNS, MAYOR 

Attest: Approved as to form: 

___________________________ _______________________________ 

Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\2016 Master Fee Schedule Resolution No 16-12    4-5-16.docx 

53



1 

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

FINANCE/UTILITY DEPARTMENT
Chapter 3.64 FEE SCHEDULE FEE 

3.64.525 Water utility fees. 

• Account setup fee

• Hydrant use permits:

- Hydrant meter deposit

- Hydrant meter base fee

•Hydrant water consumption

*0 to 300 cubic feet

*400 to 600 cubic feet

*700 and above cubic feet

•Hydrant meter rent per day

•Water connection fee

•Hydrant meter permit

$25.00 

$1,000.00 

$26.25 minimum charge 

per month 

$2.85 per 100 cubic feet 

$4.30 per hundred cubic 

feet 

$6.75 per hundred cubic 

feet 

$5.00/day 

$15.00/month 

$10.00/month 

Chapter 3.70 BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION LICENSE TAX FEE 

3.70.030(3) Occupation license required. 

• Annual application fee $50.00 

Chapter 3.95 UTILITY BILLING AND COLLECTION 

PROCEDURES 

FEE 

3.95.040 Application – Account initiation fee. 

• Account initiation fee $25.00 

3.95.080 Delinquency. 

• Delinquency payment $15.00 

3.95.080(5) Delinquency. 

• Charge for cutting off the water and/or meter

removal 

$10.00 

3.95.100 Water cut-offs – Lien enforcement. 

• Turning off water $10.00 

3.95.120 Turning water on – Charges. 

•Turning water on for service

•Turning water on for service after 5 p.m. on any work

day or on weekends 

$15.00 

$75.00 

3.95.170 NSF check – Fee for collection. 

• Nonsufficient fund check $40.00 or amount of NSF 

check, whichever is less 

Chapter 5.03 BUSINESS LICENSES FEE 

5.03.160 Class 1. 

• License fee for taverns, fraternal organizations

serving food or liquor, restaurant businesses serving 

liquor, grocery stores/supermarkets containing over 

3,000 square feet of sales area and manufacturing and 

other businesses employing 50 or more full- and/or 

part-time employees. 

$100.00 

54



2 
 

5.03.170 Class 2. 

• License fee for financial institutions including savings 

and loan businesses, credit unions, and banks; and 

professional businesses including law businesses, 

accounting businesses, dentists, doctors, optometrists, 

veterinarians, engineers, surveyors, architects, real 

estate brokers, insurance brokers, building and 

landscape designers, chiropractors, automobile 

dealerships and auto part dealers. 

 

$50.00 

5.03.180 Class 3. 

• Annual License fee for businesses located outside the 

corporate limits of the city engaged in sales or sales of 

services within the corporate limits of the city, or 

making retail sales or sales and deliveries within the 

corporate limits of the city; contractors and 

subcontractors providing building services, or materials 

or equipment within the corporate limits of the city; all 

other businesses not classified as either Class 1 or  

Class 2. 

 

$25.00 

Chapter 5.04 POOL AND BILLIARDS FEE 

5.04.040 License – Fee. 

• Annual license fee 

 

$50.00 

Chapter 5.08 CARD TABLES FEE 

5.08.020 License fee. 

• First table 

• Each additional table 

 

$50.00 per year 

$5.00 per year 

Chapter 5.12 AMUSEMENT DEVICES FEE 

5.12.020 License required – Fee – Penalty for violation. 

• Annual license fee per device 

 

$25.00  

Chapter 5.16 PUBLIC DANCES AND DANCEHALLS FEE 

5.16.040 Granting of license - Fee. 

• License not to exceed one year in duration 

• One day license 

 

$20.00 

May be waived 

Chapter 5.20 ADULT ENTERTAINMENT FEE 

5.20.050 License fees. 

• Adult entertainment establishment license 

• Adult entertainer's license 

• Adult entertainment manager's license 

 

$720.00 per year 

$145.00 per year 

$145.00 per year 

Chapter 5.22 NIGHTCLUBS FEE 

5.22.050 Annual license fee. 

• Annual nightclub license 

• Annual WATCH criminal background check 

 

$200.00 plus  

$12.00  

Chapter 5.24 PAWNBROKERS FEE 

5.24.020 License required – Regulations. 

• License fee 

 

$30.00 per year 

 

 

55



3 
 

Chapter 5.30 FOR HIRE VEHICLES FEE 

5.30.020 License required. 

• License fee for the first two taxicabs owned and 

operated by any person, firm or corporation. 

• For each additional taxicab to the same owner 

 

$50.00 per year 

 

$25.00 per year 

5.30.040 Driver’s license required - Parking stall charge.  

• Taxi parking charge  

 

$5.00 per month per 

parking stall 

Chapter 5.31 HORSE DRAWN CARRIAGES, CARTS OR 

CONVEYANCES 

FEE 

5.31.020 License Fee. 

•License fee for the first two horse drawn carriages, 

carts or conveyances owned and operated by any 

person, firm or corporation 

•For each additional horse drawn carriage, cart or 

conveyance to the same owner 

 

$50.00 per year 

 

 

$25.00 per year 

Chapter 5.32 FIREWORKS SALE FEE 

5.32.030(6) Application form and requirements. 

• Application fee 

 

$50.00  

Chapter 5.44 AMUSEMENT ARCADES FEE 

5.44.030 License – Required – Application procedure – Hearing. 

• Nonrefundable application fee 

 

$25.00 

5.44.050 License – Fee – Issuance conditions – Application 

update. 

• Annual license fee 

 

 

$100.00 

Chapter 5.52 HAWKERS, PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS FEE 

5.52.050(1) License – Fee. 

• Fee for a peddler, canvasser or solicitor license – first 

day 

• Fee for each additional day 

 

$22.00  

 

$10.00 

5.52.050(2) License – Fee. 

• Fee for all persons per calendar year 

• Use of streets, parks, walks and other public places 

for the sale and/or display of wares or goods and may 

set dates and hours of operation. 

 

$5.00 

May waive fees required 

in this section 

Chapter 7.12 DOG AND CAT LICENSES FEE 

7.12.030(1) Fees - Schedule. 

• For each unneutered male dog 

• For each unneutered male cat 

• For each unspayed female dog 

• For each unspayed female cat 

• For each neutered male dog 

• For each neutered male cat 

• For each spayed female dog 

• For each spayed female cat 

 

$35.00 

$35.00 

$35.00 

$35.00 

$10.00 

$10.00 

$10.00 

$10.00 

 

 

 

56



4 
 

7.12.035 Fees – Procedure for senior citizens.   

For persons who are 65 years of age or over and who 

certify to the clerk of the city under oath that he or she 

is over this age and is the owner of the cat or dog to be 

licensed. 

 

50% of the fee stated in 

OHMC 7.12.030 

 

 

 

7.12.040 When purchased – Late fee – Term. 

• Late charge fee 

 

$5.00 

7.12.080 Duplicate tag – Fee – License not transferable. 

• Replacement fee for duplicate license tag 

 

$3.00 

Chapter 15.04 MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FEE 

15.04.150(1) Solid waste collection rates. 

• Residential roll cart service – Monthly charges 

  - Roll cart size: 20 gallon 

  - Roll cart size: 35 gallon 

  - Roll cart size: 65 gallon 

  - Roll cart size: 95 gallon 

 

 

$14.53 

$19.90 

$33.36 

$44.37 

15.04.165(7)(a) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 

• March – November services (weekly) 

 

$9.72 per month 

15.04.165(7)(b) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 

• December – February services (monthly) 

 

$3.25 per month 

15.04.165(7)(c) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 

• Delivery charge for first container 

• Delivery charge thereafter 

 

No charge 

$25.70 per delivery 

15.04.165(7)(d) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 

• Brown yard waste bags 

 

 $3.50 per bag 

15.04.165(7)(e) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 

• Nonscheduled special pick-up trip fee 

 

$25.70 

15.04.165(7)(f) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 

• Timing and fee for change in service/Delivery fee 

 

$25.70 

15.04.170(5) Temporary service. 

• Set-up fee for temporary service account 

 

$28.62 

15.04.170(8) Temporary service. 

• Pick-up fee on temporary service account 

 

 

• Special trip fee 

 

30% of the monthly 

charge for similar-sized 

container plus 

$25.70 per pick-up 

15.04.180(2) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 

• Special pick-up request/trip fee 

 

$25.70 

15.04.180(3) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 

• Time for collection and fee/Return trip charge 

• Time for collection and fee/Each additional 

nonscheduled pick-up 

 

$25.70  

$25.70  

15.04.180(4) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 

• Recycling containers contaminated with 

garbage/Return trip charge to empty container 

 

$62.32 

15.04.180(5) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 

• Extra garbage bag fee 

 

$4.85 

57



5 
 

15.04.190(2) Nonresidential collection provisions and special 

charges. 

• Charges for inconvenient location/Return trip charge 

• Charges for inconvenient location/Each additional 

nonscheduled pick-up  

 

 

$25.70 

$25.70 

15.04.220(1) General applicable rates. 

• Uncontained cleanup 

 

$114.50 per hour 

15.04.220(2) General applicable rates. 

• Temporarily stopping service while property vacant 

 

$16.25 

15.04.220(3) General applicable rates. 

• Timing and fee for change in service 

 

$25.70 

15.04.230(13)(a) Recycling – Rates and collection practices. 

• Commercial 

  - One recycling roll cart (65 or 95 gallon sizes) 

  - Additional roll carts 

 

 

No cost 

$8.00 per container 

15.04.230(13)(b) Recycling – Rates and collection practices. 

• Residential 

  - One 65 gallon roll cart 

 

 

No cost 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\2016 Master Fee Schedule - Finance - Utility Depts 4-5-16.docx 

58



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-13: Supporting 
continued state funding of the 
MRSC with no conditions

FROM: Nikki C. Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 16-13

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The original state Budget Bill ESSB 6246 sought to eliminate funding for Municipal Research and 
Services Center ("MRSC").  MRSC has provided comprehensive and objective guidance on complex 
issues to local governments in Washington for over 80 years, providing analysis, answers, and assistance 
on a wide variety of issues such as public records, purchasing and contracting, governmental operations, 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.g
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-13: Supporting 
continued state funding of the 
MRSC with no conditions

FROM: Nikki C. Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution 16-13

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The original state Budget Bill ESSB 6246 sought to eliminate funding for Municipal Research and 
Services Center ("MRSC").  MRSC has provided comprehensive and objective guidance on complex 
issues to local governments in Washington for over 80 years, providing analysis, answers, and assistance 
on a wide variety of issues such as public records, purchasing and contracting, governmental operations, on a wide variety of issues such as public records, purchasing and contracting, governmental operations, 
public works rosters, planning and legal issues.  MRSC has also provided publications that affect local 
government.

The current senate budget proposes conditions for the funds for MRSC as it "investigates" whether 
contracts for such services should continue or be modified or terminated.  If that provision is enacted as
part of the final budget adopted by the House and Senate, MRSC's funding could be reduced or 
eliminated, which would be catastrophic to MRSC's operations.  This is troubling because many cities 
and counties, both large and small, rely on MRSC for critically needed guidance, analysis, answers, and 
assistance on a wide variety of issues.  

PSSB 6667 (Supplemental Operating Budget Proposal) as set out on Friday, March 11, 2016, states in
relevant parts of the Budget:

            Sec. 937. RCW 66.08.190 and 2012 2nd sp.s. c 5 s 8 are each amended to read as follows:

            (1) Except for fiscal year 2017, prior to making distributions described in subsection (2)
of this section, amounts must be retained to support allotments under RCW 43.88.110 from any 
legislative appropriation for municipal research and services. The legislative appropriation for

on a wide variety of issues such as public records, purchasing and contracting, governmental operations, 
public works rosters, planning and legal issues.  MRSC has also provided publications that affect local 
government.

The current senate budget proposes conditions for the funds for MRSC as it "investigates" whether 
contracts for such services should continue or be modified or terminated.  If that provision is enacted as 
part of the final budget adopted by the House and Senate, MRSC's funding could be reduced or 
eliminated, which would be catastrophic to MRSC's operations.  This is troubling because many cities 
and counties, both large and small, rely on MRSC for critically needed guidance, analysis, answers, and 
assistance on a wide variety of issues.  

PSSB 6667 (Supplemental Operating Budget Proposal) as set out on Friday, March 11, 2016, states in 
relevant parts of the Budget:

            Sec. 937. RCW 66.08.190 and 2012 2nd sp.s. c 5 s 8 are each amended to read as follows:

            (1) Except for fiscal year 2017, prior to making distributions described in subsection (2) 
of this section, amounts must be retained to support allotments under RCW 43.88.110 from any 
legislative appropriation for municipal research and services. The legislative appropriation for 

59



such services must be in the amount specified under RCW 66.24.065.

            (2) When excess funds are distributed during the months of June, September, December, and 
March of each year, all moneys subject to distribution must be disbursed to border areas, counties, cities, 
and towns as provided in RCW 66.24.065.

            (3) The amount remaining after distributions under subsections (1) and (2) of this section must be 
deposited into the general fund.

            (4) It is the intent of the legislature to continue the policy under subsection (1) of this 
section into the 2017-2019 fiscal biennium to cease the retaining of funds for municipal 
research and services as it investigates whether contracts for such services should continue or 
be modified or terminated.

 

            Sec. 938. RCW 66.24.065 and 2012 c 2 s 302 are each amended to read as follows:

            (1) The distribution of spirits license fees under RCW 66.24.630 and 66.24.055 through the 
liquor revolving fund to border areas, counties, cities, towns, and the municipal research center must be 
made in a manner that provides that each category of recipients receive, in the aggregate, no less than it 
received from the liquor revolving fund during comparable periods prior to December 8, 2011.

An additional distribution of ten million dollars per year from the spirits license fees must be provided to 
border areas, counties, cities, and towns through the liquor revolving fund for the purpose of enhancing 
public safety programs.

            (2) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, for fiscal year 2017, the distributions 

such services must be in the amount specified under RCW 66.24.065.

            (2) When excess funds are distributed during the months of June, September, December, and 
March of each year, all moneys subject to distribution must be disbursed to border areas, counties, cities, 
and towns as provided in RCW 66.24.065.

            (3) The amount remaining after distributions under subsections (1) and (2) of this section must be 
deposited into the general fund.

            (4) It is the intent of the legislature to continue the policy under subsection (1) of this 
section into the 2017-2019 fiscal biennium to cease the retaining of funds for municipal 
research and services as it investigates whether contracts for such services should continue or 
be modified or terminated.

 

            Sec. 938. RCW 66.24.065 and 2012 c 2 s 302 are each amended to read as follows:

            (1) The distribution of spirits license fees under RCW 66.24.630 and 66.24.055 through the 
liquor revolving fund to border areas, counties, cities, towns, and the municipal research center must be 
made in a manner that provides that each category of recipients receive, in the aggregate, no less than it 
received from the liquor revolving fund during comparable periods prior to December 8, 2011.

An additional distribution of ten million dollars per year from the spirits license fees must be provided to 
border areas, counties, cities, and towns through the liquor revolving fund for the purpose of enhancing 
public safety programs.

            (2) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, for fiscal year 2017, the distributions             (2) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, for fiscal year 2017, the distributions 
made to border areas, counties, cities and towns shall be reduced in such amounts necessary to 
support allotments under RCW 43.88.110 from any legislative appropriation for 17 municipal 
research and services. It is the intent of the legislature to continue this policy into the 2017-
2019 fiscal biennium as it investigates whether contracts for such services should continue or 
be modified or terminated.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
If MRSC funding is eliminated, cities and counties throughout the state will incur new and increased costs 
in obtaining similar high-level services as currently provided by MRSC. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 16-13

            (2) Notwithstanding subsection (1) of this section, for fiscal year 2017, the distributions 
made to border areas, counties, cities and towns shall be reduced in such amounts necessary to 
support allotments under RCW 43.88.110 from any legislative appropriation for 17 municipal 
research and services. It is the intent of the legislature to continue this policy into the 2017-
2019 fiscal biennium as it investigates whether contracts for such services should continue or 
be modified or terminated.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
If MRSC funding is eliminated, cities and counties throughout the state will incur new and increased costs 
in obtaining similar high-level services as currently provided by MRSC. 

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 16-13

60

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458592631_at.pdf


Resolution No. 16-13 in Support of Full State Funding of MRSC 

Page 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-13 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR EXPRESSING SUPPORT FOR FULL STATE 

FUNDING OF THE MUNICIPAL RESEARCH AND SERVICES CENTER WITH NO 

CONDITIONS 

WHEREAS, for over 80 years, the Municipal Research and Services Center ("MRSC") has 

provided comprehensive and objective guidance on complex legal and policy issues to local 

governments in Washington, including the City of Oak Harbor; and 

WHEREAS, MRSC has been a trusted and dedicated provider to the City of Oak Harbor of 

guidance, analysis, answers, and assistance on a wide variety of issues such as public records, 

purchasing and contracting, governmental operations, statutory information and updates, and 

financial management and reporting, through public works rosters and publications; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Oak Harbor relies on MRSC for substantive advice, research, opinions 

and information through direct contact with MRSC staff and through MRSC's website; and 

WHEREAS, MRSC efficiently provides information and resources to all cities and counties, and 

thus saves public funds statewide; and 

WHEREAS, the current senate budget proposes conditions for state funding of MRSC as it 

"investigates" whether contracts for such services should continue or be modified or 

terminated which would deprive the City of Oak Harbor and many other cities and counties of 

important, useful, and valuable services;   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor as follows:  

1. The City of Oak Harbor supports full funding of MRSC from the state budget with no

conditions now and in the future.

2. The City Council authorizes City staff to take action in accordance with this Resolution to

support full funding of MRSC with no conditions from the state budget.

PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this ____ day of April, 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

Robert Severns, Mayor 

61



 

 

Resolution No. 16-13 in Support of Full State Funding of MRSC 

Page 2 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

      

Anna Thompson, City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

 

      

Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
L:\LGLG\2016 Civil\2016 Ord and Res\MRSC resolution.docx 

62



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Nora Daniel to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Reappoint Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board (CAB) Position 3 for a 4-year term, 
beginning March 1, 2016 and ending March 1, 2020.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Nora Daniel was reappointed to the CAB on the March 15, 2016 Council Meeting. The agenda bill 
listed the appointment as 3 years versus 4 years as set forth in OHMC 2.50.030 (c).  This agenda bill 
amends the term from 3 years to 4 years, with Ms. Daniel's term beginning March 1, 2016 and ending 
March 1, 2020.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.h
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Reappointment: Nora Daniel to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Reappoint Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board (CAB) Position 3 for a 4-year term, 
beginning March 1, 2016 and ending March 1, 2020.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Nora Daniel was reappointed to the CAB on the March 15, 2016 Council Meeting. The agenda bill 
listed the appointment as 3 years versus 4 years as set forth in OHMC 2.50.030 (c).  This agenda bill 
amends the term from 3 years to 4 years, with Ms. Daniel's term beginning March 1, 2016 and ending 
March 1, 2020.March 1, 2020.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.030 (c).

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
March 15, 2016 Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS

March 1, 2020.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.030 (c).

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
March 15, 2016 Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS

63



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Melissa Riker to 
the Parks Board as Full Member 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm Melissa Riker's appointment as Full Parks Board Member, Position 5, beginning January 26, 
2016 and ending December 1, 2016.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Ms. Riker was appointed and confirmed as Full Parks Board Member on March 15, 2016 with an 
incorrect term ending date. This seeks to amend the end term date to December 1, 2016.  Melissa Riker
was appointed to fulfill Ms. Wasinger's unexpired term (Position 5) of December 1, 2013 through 
December 1, 2016. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.i
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Melissa Riker to 
the Parks Board as Full Member 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm Melissa Riker's appointment as Full Parks Board Member, Position 5, beginning January 26, 
2016 and ending December 1, 2016.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Ms. Riker was appointed and confirmed as Full Parks Board Member on March 15, 2016 with an 
incorrect term ending date. This seeks to amend the end term date to December 1, 2016.  Melissa Riker 
was appointed to fulfill Ms. Wasinger's unexpired term (Position 5) of December 1, 2013 through 
December 1, 2016. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.30.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
March 15, 2016 Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.30.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
March 15, 2016 Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS

64



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Julie Fakkema to 
the Park Board as the Alternate 
Member

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm Julie Fakkema's appointment to the Parks Board as the Alternate Member beginning April 5, 
2016 and ending February 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Julie Fakkema to serve as the Park Board Alternate.  Melissa Riker resigned as
Park Board Alternate when she was appointed as Full Park Board Member on March 15, 2016.  If 
confirmed, Julie Fakkema will finish the unexpired term of Park Board Alternate beginning April 5, 2016 
and ending February 1, 2017. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.j
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Julie Fakkema to 
the Park Board as the Alternate 
Member

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm Julie Fakkema's appointment to the Parks Board as the Alternate Member beginning April 5, 
2016 and ending February 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Julie Fakkema to serve as the Park Board Alternate.  Melissa Riker resigned as 
Park Board Alternate when she was appointed as Full Park Board Member on March 15, 2016.  If 
confirmed, Julie Fakkema will finish the unexpired term of Park Board Alternate beginning April 5, 2016 
and ending February 1, 2017. and ending February 1, 2017. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.30.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Biography of Julie Fakkema

and ending February 1, 2017. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.30.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Biography of Julie Fakkema

65

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458771155_at.pdf


Biography Form 

Recom~en~ed ~ard Appointment for: I ~ 

Name:( k~ ,-e,.-\-Q.X~Y\CL.J Date: 3 _ ;}l _ \ L9 
Addres: ,-J-'.i-0 ~ ~ 0£-°"=-+--Uf~\r--. ~-. ...--~-,-'0-\ ---

City, state, zip:O~;\d;'Y:Jor-) ~ G\'"}-:\-+ 
Telephone Number:~O ·- C\\_9q- Email Address:.\\~.kX .. ~.~ _L.. 

Ol\U°l? \..J ~:;,.f; {\jl_' 
Mailing Address (if different from above): ____________ _ 

Resident of Oak Harbor/Whidbey Island for: ·.:) 0+·1...._\.Q_0...['<2, 
\ j 

·r r~edi.J."eference previous 
. -&.) \-", \\ 

~1 Aup or Civic Affiliations: 

66



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Alyssa Merriman 
to the Planning Commission

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm appointment of Alyssa Merriman, Position 5, to the Planning Commission, beginning April 5, 
2016 and ending March 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Alyssa Merriman to serve on the Planning Commission. If confirmed, Ms. 
Merriman will serve out the remainder of Ana Schlect's position.  Mrs. Schlect resigned on January 26, 
2016.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.k
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Alyssa Merriman 
to the Planning Commission

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm appointment of Alyssa Merriman, Position 5, to the Planning Commission, beginning April 5, 
2016 and ending March 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Alyssa Merriman to serve on the Planning Commission. If confirmed, Ms. 
Merriman will serve out the remainder of Ana Schlect's position.  Mrs. Schlect resigned on January 26, 
2016.  

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Alyssa Merriman - Biography Form

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Alyssa Merriman - Biography Form

67

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459198112_at.pdf


68



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Cheryl Lawler to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm the appointment of Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Committee, Position 4, 
beginning April 5, 2016 and ending March 1, 2019.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Committee (CAB) to serve 
the remainder of Position 4.  Lucas Yonkman recently resigned from the CAB on February 8, 2016. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.l
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Cheryl Lawler to 
the Police Community Advisory 
Board

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm the appointment of Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Committee, Position 4, 
beginning April 5, 2016 and ending March 1, 2019.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Committee (CAB) to serve 
the remainder of Position 4.  Lucas Yonkman recently resigned from the CAB on February 8, 2016. 

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.020-030.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 2.50.020-030.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

69



Boards & Commissions - Biography Form                                                                                             3/2016 

Boards and Commissions  
Biography Form  

  
 
 
Recommended Board Appointment for: Citizens Advisory Board – Police 

Dept. 
 
Name: Cheryl L. Lawler Date: March 23, 2016 
  
Address: 1080 SW Harbor Vista Circle 
  
City, State, Zip:  Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
  
Phone Number: 206-427-1295 Email Address: Ch_lawler@comcast.net 
 
Mailing Address: (if different from above)  
  
Resident of Oak Harbor City 
Limits? If yes, how long? 

 
Yes - 11 years 

 
Occupation and Place of Employment: 
(if retired, reference previous occupation(s)) 

 

Employed by SaviBank – VP and Human Resources Manager.  
 
Local Group or Civic Affiliations:  
 I am the Head Mentor Mom for the Mothers of Preschoolers (MOPS) group at 
Family Bible Church and have been serving as a Mentor in this program for the 
past eight years. I am an active member of Skagit Island Human Resources 
(SIHRM) Association and a past Board member. I am a15 year member of the 
Society of Human Resources Management (SHRM). I have volunteered during 
the Oak Harbor Music Festival for the past couple of years and am active 
member of Family Bible Church of Oak Harbor. 
  
Special Interests:  
I greatly enjoy spending time with family and friends. I also enjoy walking and 
did my first marathon 12 years ago. I love to read, help others, and learning 
new things.  
    
Education and Other General Comments:  
Bachelor of Science degree in Business Management.  Two professional Human 
Resources certifications: (1) Senior Professional Human Resources (SPHR) 
through the Human Resources Certification Institute and (2) Senior Certified 
Professional (SHRM – SCP) through Society of Human Resource Management.  

70



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Hal Hovey to the 
Planning Commission

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm appointment of Hal Hovey to the Planning Commission, Position 6, beginning April 5, 2016 and 
ending July 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Hal Hovey to the Planning Commission to serve out the remainder of Mike 
Piccone's position.  Mr. Piccone resigned from the Planning Commission on February 4, 2016. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.m
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Appointment: Hal Hovey to the 
Planning Commission

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Confirm appointment of Hal Hovey to the Planning Commission, Position 6, beginning April 5, 2016 and 
ending July 1, 2017.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Mayor Severns appoints Hal Hovey to the Planning Commission to serve out the remainder of Mike 
Piccone's position.  Mr. Piccone resigned from the Planning Commission on February 4, 2016. 

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Biography Form

LEGAL AUTHORITY
OHMC 18.04.

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Biography Form

71

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459189793_at.pdf


Boards & Commissions - Biography Form          3/2016 

Boards and Commissions 
Biography Form 

Recommended Board Appointment for: Planning Commission 

Name: Hal Hovey Date: March 28, 2016 

Address: 2765 SW Scenic Heights St 

City, State, Zip:  Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Phone Number: (360) 929-0261 Email Address: halhovey@gmail.com 

Mailing Address: (if different from above) 

Resident of Oak Harbor City 
Limits? If yes, how long? 

Yes, 10 years 

Occupation and Place of Employment: 
(if retired, reference previous occupation(s)) 

Realtor® 

Coldwell Banker Koetje Real Estate, 415 SE Pioneer Way, Oak Harbor 
Previously – Pilot, Northwest Airlines, 1999-2003 
Retired USAF Fighter Pilot – Lieutenant Colonel, USAF (Ret), 1979-1999 

Local Group or Civic Affiliations: 

Member Main Street Association 
Member Oak Harbor Yacht Club 

Special Interests: 

- Fiscal responsibility of government 
- Transparency & Accountability of government agencies to the public 
- Well planned maintenance & improvement of public resources 

Education and Other General Comments: 

- Graduate – Georgetown University, 1978 
- Graduate – USAF Air Command & Staff College 
- Adjunct Instructor – College of Southern Nevada – Political Science 

Dept – 2003-2008 

72



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: City-Wide Auctioneer 
Agreement 2016

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to enter into a contract with Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers for auctioneer services for the 
2016 City-Wide auction. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City-Wide auction date has been set for Saturday, June 11, 2016 with a preview on Friday, June 

10th.  Following our procurement procedures, and after reviewing the available auctioneering firms on the 
Small Works Roster, Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers is being presented to City Council as the 
recommended provider of auctioneering services for this year's event.

Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers of Spanaway, Washington has provided auctioneer services for the 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.n
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: City-Wide Auctioneer 
Agreement 2016

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to enter into a contract with Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers for auctioneer services for the 
2016 City-Wide auction. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The City-Wide auction date has been set for Saturday, June 11, 2016 with a preview on Friday, June 

10th.  Following our procurement procedures, and after reviewing the available auctioneering firms on the 
Small Works Roster, Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers is being presented to City Council as the 
recommended provider of auctioneering services for this year's event.

Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers of Spanaway, Washington has provided auctioneer services for the Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers of Spanaway, Washington has provided auctioneer services for the 
2005-2009 and the 2015 City-Wide auctions.  They have always been professional, prepared and acted 
in our best interest.  

The services of an auctioneer include, but are not limited to, setup and layout of merchandise, advertising
via printed brochures and newspaper ads, and crew and staff for set-up and auction day duties. 

A typical 10% buyer’s premium will be charged to the buyer at the time of purchase, as part of the 
Auctioneer’s compensation.  Labor and advertising costs will not exceed $5,500.00.  The labor and 
advertising cost will be spread among all agencies involved. The auctioneer’s commission rate will be an
8% flat commission rate of the gross sales. 

Staff is highly recommending Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers due to their past performance and excellent
auctioneer reputation.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         $5,500.00 plus 8% of gross auction proceeds             

Appropriation Source:

Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers of Spanaway, Washington has provided auctioneer services for the 
2005-2009 and the 2015 City-Wide auctions.  They have always been professional, prepared and acted 
in our best interest.  

The services of an auctioneer include, but are not limited to, setup and layout of merchandise, advertising 
via printed brochures and newspaper ads, and crew and staff for set-up and auction day duties. 

A typical 10% buyer’s premium will be charged to the buyer at the time of purchase, as part of the 
Auctioneer’s compensation.  Labor and advertising costs will not exceed $5,500.00.  The labor and 
advertising cost will be spread among all agencies involved. The auctioneer’s commission rate will be an 
8% flat commission rate of the gross sales. 

Staff is highly recommending Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers due to their past performance and excellent 
auctioneer reputation.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:         $5,500.00 plus 8% of gross auction proceeds             

Appropriation Source:

73



Appropriation Source:                                                                                     

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement
2. Exhibit "A"-Auctioneer Proposal

Appropriation Source:                                                                                     

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement
2. Exhibit "A"-Auctioneer Proposal

74

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458848998_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458848863_at.pdf


1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

AND HAROLD MATHER INC. AUCTIONEERS 
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City of Oak 
Harbor, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers, 
a Washington Inc. ("Consultant") 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and performances 
contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding the City-
Wide Auction as scheduled on June 11, 2016, as described in Article II. The general terms and 
conditions of the relationship between the City and the Consultant are specified in this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Consultant’s profession. 

ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes,
amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the 
City when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed 
delivery schedule.  Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in 
cost or schedules will be addressed as follows: 

Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 
services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 
considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at 
no cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

75



2 
 

III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all documents 
produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and upon 
completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant 
will be responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted 
by the City. 

 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 

Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work 
product of the Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or 
termination, shall become the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall 
tender the work product and summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a 
prerequisite to final payment under this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be 
prepared at no additional cost to the City. 

 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 

or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this 
Agreement without the written authorization of Consultant. 

 
III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on April 5, 2016 and shall 

terminate at midnight, June 30, 2016.  The parties may extend the term of this Agreement 
by written mutual agreement. 

 
III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 

assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in the 

performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, 
shall be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all 
claims that may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any 
said employees while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a 
consequence of any negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its 
employees while so engaged in any of the work or services provided herein shall be the 
sole obligation of the Consultant. 

 
III.6 INDEMNIFICATION/HOLD HARMLESS.  Consultant shall defend, indemnify and 

hold the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all 
claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or 
resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 

76



3 
 

extent of the Consultant's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant's waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
III.7 INSURANCE.   
 

a. Insurance Term.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of 
the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives or employees. 

 
b. No Limitation.  Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required by the 

agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the 
coverage provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the City's recourse to any 
remedy available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance.  Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types 

and coverage described below: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and 
leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability 
coverage. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 

occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and 
advertising injury.  The City shall be named as an additional insured under 
the Consultant's Commercial General Liability insurance policy with 
respect to the work performed for the City using an additional insured 
endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance 

laws of the State of Washington. 
 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's profession. 

 
d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain the following 

insurance limits: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for 
bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 

77



4 
 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no 
less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 

 
3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with the limits no less 

than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 

e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant's Automobile Liability and 
Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to 
contain that they shall be primary insurance as respect the City.  Any insurance, 
self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the City shall be 
excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current 

A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 
 
g. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the City with original 

certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements including, but not 
necessarily limited to, the additional insured endorsement evidencing the 
insurance requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

 
h.   Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the City with written 

notice of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such 
notice. 

 
i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain 

the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the City may, after giving five business days' notice to the Consultant to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure 
or renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, 
with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City on demand, or at the sole 
discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant from the City. 

 
j. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits.  If the Consultant 

maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the City shall 
be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such 
limits maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this 
contract or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences 
limits of liability lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
III.8 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 

OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal 
opportunity employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for 
employment or for services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital 
status, sex, sexual orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification with regard, but not limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; 

78



5 
 

demotion or transfer; recruitment or any recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; 
rates of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, rendition of services.  
The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous 
places, setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant 
understands and agrees that if it violates this nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement 
may be terminated by the City, and further that the Consultant will be barred from 
performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a showing is made 
satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and that 
recurrence of such action is unlikely. 

 
III.9 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this Agreement, 

the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair employment 
practices. 

 
III.10 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and local 

laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The 
Consultant represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City 
project are in full compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing 
activities to be performed and that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under 
this Agreement are fully qualified and properly licensed to perform the work to which 
they will be assigned.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and construed in accordance 
with the laws of Washington.  Venue for any litigation commenced relating to this 
Agreement shall be in Island County Superior Court. 

 
III.11 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the Consultant is 

an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his 
status as an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services 
required under this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part 
independent contractor test set forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  
The Consultant, as an independent contractor, assumes the entire responsibility 
for carrying out and accomplishing the services required under this Agreement.  
The Consultant shall make no claim of City employment nor shall claim any 
related employment benefits, social security, and/or retirement benefits. 

 
b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, and 

assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions 
from income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a 
result of this Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a 
result of this Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 

79



6 
 

c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent 
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

 
d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business license 

from the City. 
 

III.12 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the City of 
any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or 
potential conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a 
conflict is irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 

 
III.13 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict confidence, 

and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any 
information regarding the City or services provided to the City. 

 
III.14 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 

 
a. The Consultant shall be responsible for all work performed by 

subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 
 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they directly 

hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, 
must be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the 
following Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit ____: 

            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 
c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants without 

the written approval of the City. 
 
d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance coverages and 

limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide verification 
of said insurance coverage. 

 

80



7 
 

 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City for services rendered under this 
Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as provided in this section.  
In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this Agreement 
exceed  See Exhibit “A”     Dollars ($  ) 
without the written agreement of the Consultant and the City.  Such payment shall 
be full compensation for work performed and services rendered and for all labor, 
materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the work.  In 
the event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set forth in 
Exhibit "A", the City shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services performed 

in the previous calendar month in a format acceptable to the City.  The Consultant 
shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City upon 
request. 

 
c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before the 

20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 

contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the 
approval of the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been 
completed in compliance with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 

 
IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall maintain all 

books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
practices.  All such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall 
be subject to inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington 
State Auditor at all reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities 
for such inspection and audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State 
Auditor may copy such books, accounts and records where necessary to conduct or 
document an audit.  The Consultant shall preserve and make available all such books of 
account and records for a period of three (3) years after final payment under this 
Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any discrepancy in such 
financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate clarification 
and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 

 
 
 
 
 

81



8 
 

 ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 
 
V.1 NOTICES.  Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
  

 Mayor 
 City of Oak Harbor  
 865 SE Barrington Drive 
 Oak Harbor, WA 98277 
 

 Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
 

Harold Mather 
Harold Mather Inc. Auctioneers 
3010 208th Street East 
Spanaway, WA  98387 

  
 
 Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 

notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 
 
V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement in 

whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 
 
 If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 

shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of 
termination in accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 

 
V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation and 

compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

 
V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together with 

attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the 
parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral.  This Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written 
instrument properly signed by both parties. 

 
V.5 SEVERABILITY 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this 
Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the 
remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations 
shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory 
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be 

82



9 
 

deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be 
deemed modified to conform to such statutory provision. 

V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party hereto of 
any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not in 
default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of 
either party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of 
this Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall 
not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, 
condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair meaning and 
shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of authorship.  
This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall lie in the 
Superior Court of Washington for Island County, Washington. 

V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the 
same Agreement. 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  The 
undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to 
bind the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

 
DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 
 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR HAROLD MATHER INC. 

AUCTIONEERS 
 
By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
 _____________, Mayor   Harold Mather, Owner    

         
Approved as to form: 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
Attest:   
 
      
City Clerk 
 

83



10 
 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

84



85



86



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-Island County

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and Island County to join together to surplus items 
via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.o
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-Island County

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and Island County to join together to surplus items 
via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising 
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-Island County

and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-Island County

87

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458856122_at.pdf


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR MUTAL AID AND COOPERATION OF AUCTION SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR, WASHINGTON AND THE ISLAND COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ___________ day of _____________, 2016, by and between the 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Oak Harbor”, and ISLAND 

COUNTY, WASHINGTON, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Island County”. 

WINESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Island County desires to join the City of Oak Harbor in the annual City-Wide Auction; and 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended and codified in Chapter 39.34 RCW provides for 

interlocal cooperation between government agencies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants herein contained, the parties 

agree as follows: 

Purpose:  The purpose of this agreement is to establish mutual aid and cooperation in allowing both Oak Harbor 

and Island County to join together to surplus items via an auction method. 

Responsibilities of Oak Harbor:  Oak Harbor shall have the following duties and responsibilities under this 

Agreement; 

1. Oak Harbor will procure the Auctioneer and be responsible of all transactions with said vendor.

2. Oak Harbor will provide the auction site and all security necessary to ensure auction items are stored, sold

and removed from site.

3. Oak Harbor will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

4. Oak Harbor will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of Oak Harbor items.

  Responsibilities of Island County:  Island County shall have the following duties and responsibilities under this 

Agreement; 

1. Island County will surplus their items as outlined in their surplus and disposal procedures.

2. Island County will provide Oak Harbor with a detailed list of items to be sold.

3. Island County will provide Oak Harbor with all surplus vehicle and equipment titles, if applicable.

4. Island County will transport all items to designated area by the designated time set forward by the

auctioneer.

5. Island County will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

6. Island County will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of Island County items.

Representation, Warranties, and Indemnities: 

88



 

 

A. Oak Harbor represents and warrants to Island County that it has authority to enter into this Interlocal 

Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

B. Island County represents and warrants to Oak Harbor that it has authority to enter into this Interlocal 

Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

C. It is understood and agreed between the parties hereto that both Oak Harbor and Island County agree to 

protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless one another, its council, agents, departments and employees 

against any and all liabilities, claims, damages, penalties, actions, costs, and expenses (including reasonable 

attorney’s fees) which may arise for any reason as a result of the performance of the Agreement by either party. 

Duration of Agreement.  This agreement will expire June 30, 2016. 

Termination of Agreement.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, by providing written notice to the 

designated contact for each party identified in the “Notices” section of this Agreement.  This written notice must be 

served on the other party within thirty days (30) of the date of termination. 

Partial Invalidity.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to 

be effective and valid under applicable law.  Any provisions of this Agreement, which shall prove to be invalid, void, or 

illegal, shall in no way affect, impair, or invalidate any other provisions herein, and such other provisions shall remain in 

full force and effect. 

No Third-Party Rights.  Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 

anyone other than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns to rely upon the covenants and agreements 

herein not to give any such third party a cause of action (as a third-party beneficiary or otherwise) on account of 

nonperformance hereunder. 

Assignability.  The rights, duties, and other obligations of either party to this Agreement may not be assigned to any 

third party without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Interlocal Cooperation Act.  No special budget or funds are anticipated, nor shall be created.  It is not intended that 

a separate legal entity be established to conduct this cooperative undertaking, nor is the acquisition, holding, or  

disposing of real or personal property other than as specifically provided within the terms of this Agreement anticipated.  

Oak Harbor shall be designated as the Administrator of this Interlocal Agreement. 

Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and any amendments thereto mutually agreed to by the parties, constitutes the 

entire Agreement between the parties hereto and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties.  Either party may request changes to the 

Agreement.  Proposed changes that are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written amendment hereto. 

Insurance.  Each party shall maintain in effect insurance with limits in the amount each entity currently has in place. 

Dispute Resolution.  It is the parties’ intent to resolve any disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 

this Agreement informally through discussions at the staff level.  In the event disputes cannot be resolved informally at 

the staff level, then the parties agree to first submit the dispute to non-binding mediation/dispute resolution before 

resorting to litigation. 

89



 

 

Litigation.  In the event that any suite or action is instituted by either party to enforce compliance with or interpret 

any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect, in addition 

to necessary court costs, such sums as the court may adjudge as reasonable attorney fees.  The venue for any action to 

enforce and interpret this Agreement shall lie in the Superior Court for Island County, Washington. 

Notices.  All notices and demands shall be in writing and sent to the parties hereto at their address as follows: 

 

To Oak Harbor:     To Island County: 

Robert Severns     ____________________________ 

Mayor      ___________________________  

865 SE Barrington Drive    ____________________________ 

Oak Harbor, WA  98277    _____________________________ 

 

Filing of Agreement.  Executed copies of this agreement shall be filed as required by Section 39.34.040 of the 
Revised Code of Washington prior to this agreement becoming effective. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF said parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by the duly authorized officials on 
the day and year first above written. 

ENTERED this ____ day of     , 2016. 

 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR    

 

________________________________  

Mayor       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

 

ISLAND COUNTY 

   

90



 

 

________________________________  

(Title)      

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

(Title) 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

(Title) 
 

91



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-Oak Harbor School 
District

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor School District to join together
to surplus items via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.p
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-Oak Harbor School 
District

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and the Oak Harbor School District to join together 
to surplus items via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising 
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-Oak Harbor School District

costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-Oak Harbor School District

92

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458856185_at.pdf


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR MUTAL AID AND COOPERATION OF AUCTION SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR, WASHINGTON AND THE OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT, WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ___________ day of _____________, 2016, by and between the 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Oak Harbor”, and OAK 

HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT, WASHINGTON, a public corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Oak Harbor School District”. 

WINESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Oak Harbor School District desires to join the City of Oak Harbor in the annual City-Wide Auction; and 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended and codified in Chapter 39.34 RCW provides for 

interlocal cooperation between government agencies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants herein contained, the parties 

agree as follows: 

Purpose:  The purpose of this agreement is to establish mutual aid and cooperation in allowing both Oak Harbor 

and Oak Harbor School District to join together to surplus items via an auction method. 

Responsibilities of Oak Harbor:  Oak Harbor shall have the following duties and responsibilities under this 

Agreement; 

1. Oak Harbor will procure the Auctioneer and be responsible of all transactions with said vendor.

2. Oak Harbor will provide the auction site and all security necessary to ensure auction items are stored, sold

and removed from site.

3. Oak Harbor will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

4. Oak Harbor will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of Oak Harbor.

  Responsibilities of Oak Harbor School District:  Oak Harbor School District shall have the following duties and 

responsibilities under this Agreement; 

1. Oak Harbor School District will surplus their items as outlined in their surplus and disposal procedures.

2. Oak Harbor School District will provide Oak Harbor with a detailed list of items to be sold.

3. Oak Harbor School District will provide Oak Harbor with all surplus vehicle and equipment titles, if

applicable.

4. Oak Harbor School District will transport all items to designated area by the designated time set forward by

the auctioneer.

5. Oak Harbor School District will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

6. Oak Harbor School District will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of Oak Harbor School District

items.

93



 

 

Representation, Warranties, and Indemnities: 

A. Oak Harbor represents and warrants to Oak Harbor School District that it has authority to enter into this 

Interlocal Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

B. Oak Harbor School District represents and warrants to Oak Harbor that it has authority to enter into this 

Interlocal Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

C. It is understood and agreed between the parties hereto that both Oak Harbor and Oak Harbor School District 

agree to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless one another, its council, agents, departments and 

employees against any and all liabilities, claims, damages, penalties, actions, costs, and expenses (including 

reasonable attorney’s fees) which may arise for any reason as a result of the performance of the Agreement by 

either party. 

Duration of Agreement.  This agreement will expire June 30, 2016. 

Termination of Agreement.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, by providing written notice to the 

designated contact for each party identified in the “Notices” section of this Agreement.  This written notice must be 

served on the other party within thirty days (30) of the date of termination. 

Partial Invalidity.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to 

be effective and valid under applicable law.  Any provisions of this Agreement, which shall prove to be invalid, void, or 

illegal, shall in no way affect, impair, or invalidate any other provisions herein, and such other provisions shall remain in 

full force and effect. 

No Third-Party Rights.  Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 

anyone other than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns to rely upon the covenants and agreements 

herein not to give any such third party a cause of action (as a third-party beneficiary or otherwise) on account of 

nonperformance hereunder. 

Assignability.  The rights, duties, and other obligations of either party to this Agreement may not be assigned to any 

third party without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Interlocal Cooperation Act.  No special budget or funds are anticipated, nor shall be created.  It is not intended that 

a separate legal entity be established to conduct this cooperative undertaking, nor is the acquisition, holding, or  

disposing of real or personal property other than as specifically provided within the terms of this Agreement anticipated.  

Oak Harbor shall be designated as the Administrator of this Interlocal Agreement. 

Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and any amendments thereto mutually agreed to by the parties, constitutes the 

entire Agreement between the parties hereto and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties.  Either party may request changes to the 

Agreement.  Proposed changes that are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written amendment hereto. 

Insurance.  Each party shall maintain in effect insurance with limits in the amount each entity currently has in place. 

Dispute Resolution.  It is the parties’ intent to resolve any disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 

this Agreement informally through discussions at the staff level.  In the event disputes cannot be resolved informally at 

94



 

 

the staff level, then the parties agree to first submit the dispute to non-binding mediation/dispute resolution before 

resorting to litigation. 

Litigation.  In the event that any suite or action is instituted by either party to enforce compliance with or interpret 

any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect, in addition 

to necessary court costs, such sums as the court may adjudge as reasonable attorney fees.  The venue for any action to 

enforce and interpret this Agreement shall lie in the Superior Court for Oak Harbor School District, Washington. 

Notices.  All notices and demands shall be in writing and sent to the parties hereto at their address as follows: 

 

To Oak Harbor:     To Oak Harbor School District: 

Robert Severns     ____________________________ 

Mayor      ___________________________  

865 SE Barrington Drive    ____________________________ 

Oak Harbor, WA  98277    _____________________________ 

 

Filing of Agreement.  Executed copies of this agreement shall be filed as required by Section 39.34.040 of the 
Revised Code of Washington prior to this agreement becoming effective. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF said parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by the duly authorized officials on 
the day and year first above written. 

ENTERED this ____ day of     , 2016. 

 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR    

 

________________________________  

Mayor       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

95



 

 

 

OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 

   

________________________________  

(Title)      

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

(Title) 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

(Title) 
 

96



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-North Whidbey Fire 
and Rescue

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and North Whidbey Fire and Rescure to join 
together to surplus items via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.q
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-North Whidbey Fire 
and Rescue

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and North Whidbey Fire and Rescure to join 
together to surplus items via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising 
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-North Whidbey Fire and Rescue

costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-North Whidbey Fire and Rescue

97

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459530019_at.pdf


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR MUTAL AID AND COOPERATION OF AUCTION SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR, WASHINGTON AND THE NORTH WHIDBEY FIRE, WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ___________ day of _____________, 2016, by and between the 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Oak Harbor”, and NORTH 

WHIDBEY FIRE, WASHINGTON, a Fire District, hereinafter referred to as “North Whidbey Fire”. 

WINESSETH: 

WHEREAS, North Whidbey Fire desires to join the City of Oak Harbor in the annual City-Wide Auction; and 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended and codified in Chapter 39.34 RCW provides for 

interlocal cooperation between government agencies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants herein contained, the parties 

agree as follows: 

Purpose:  The purpose of this agreement is to establish mutual aid and cooperation in allowing both Oak Harbor 

and North Whidbey Fire to join together to surplus items via an auction method. 

Responsibilities of Oak Harbor:  Oak Harbor shall have the following duties and responsibilities under this 

Agreement; 

1. Oak Harbor will procure the Auctioneer and be responsible of all transactions with said vendor.

2. Oak Harbor will provide the auction site and all security necessary to ensure auction items are stored, sold

and removed from site.

3. Oak Harbor will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

4. Oak Harbor will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of Oak Harbor items.

  Responsibilities of North Whidbey Fire:  North Whidbey Fire shall have the following duties and responsibilities 

under this Agreement; 

1. North Whidbey Fire will surplus their items as outlined in their surplus and disposal procedures.

2. North Whidbey Fire will provide Oak Harbor with a detailed list of items to be sold.

3. North Whidbey Fire will provide Oak Harbor with all surplus vehicle and equipment titles, if applicable.

4. North Whidbey Fire will transport all items to designated area by the designated time set forward by the

auctioneer.

5. North Whidbey Fire will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

6. North Whidbey Fire will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of North Whidbey Fire items.

Representation, Warranties, and Indemnities: 

98



 

 

A. Oak Harbor represents and warrants to North Whidbey Fire that it has authority to enter into this Interlocal 

Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

B. North Whidbey Fire represents and warrants to Oak Harbor that it has authority to enter into this Interlocal 

Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

C. It is understood and agreed between the parties hereto that both Oak Harbor and North Whidbey Fire agree to 

protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless one another, its council, agents, departments and employees 

against any and all liabilities, claims, damages, penalties, actions, costs, and expenses (including reasonable 

attorney’s fees) which may arise for any reason as a result of the performance of the Agreement by either party. 

Duration of Agreement.  This agreement will expire June 30, 2016. 

Termination of Agreement.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, by providing written notice to the 

designated contact for each party identified in the “Notices” section of this Agreement.  This written notice must be 

served on the other party within thirty days (30) of the date of termination. 

Partial Invalidity.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to 

be effective and valid under applicable law.  Any provisions of this Agreement, which shall prove to be invalid, void, or 

illegal, shall in no way affect, impair, or invalidate any other provisions herein, and such other provisions shall remain in 

full force and effect. 

No Third-Party Rights.  Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 

anyone other than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns to rely upon the covenants and agreements 

herein not to give any such third party a cause of action (as a third-party beneficiary or otherwise) on account of 

nonperformance hereunder. 

Assignability.  The rights, duties, and other obligations of either party to this Agreement may not be assigned to any 

third party without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Interlocal Cooperation Act.  No special budget or funds are anticipated, nor shall be created.  It is not intended that 

a separate legal entity be established to conduct this cooperative undertaking, nor is the acquisition, holding, or  

disposing of real or personal property other than as specifically provided within the terms of this Agreement anticipated.  

Oak Harbor shall be designated as the Administrator of this Interlocal Agreement. 

Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and any amendments thereto mutually agreed to by the parties, constitutes the 

entire Agreement between the parties hereto and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties.  Either party may request changes to the 

Agreement.  Proposed changes that are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written amendment hereto. 

Insurance.  Each party shall maintain in effect insurance with limits in the amount each entity currently has in place. 

Dispute Resolution.  It is the parties’ intent to resolve any disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 

this Agreement informally through discussions at the staff level.  In the event disputes cannot be resolved informally at 

the staff level, then the parties agree to first submit the dispute to non-binding mediation/dispute resolution before 

resorting to litigation. 

99



 

 

Litigation.  In the event that any suite or action is instituted by either party to enforce compliance with or interpret 

any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect, in addition 

to necessary court costs, such sums as the court may adjudge as reasonable attorney fees.  The venue for any action to 

enforce and interpret this Agreement shall lie in the Superior Court for North Whidbey Fire, Washington. 

Notices.  All notices and demands shall be in writing and sent to the parties hereto at their address as follows: 

 

To Oak Harbor:     To North Whidbey Fire: 

Robert Severns     ____________________________ 

Mayor      ___________________________  

865 SE Barrington Drive    ____________________________ 

Oak Harbor, WA  98277    _____________________________ 

 

Filing of Agreement.  Executed copies of this agreement shall be filed as required by Section 39.34.040 of the 
Revised Code of Washington prior to this agreement becoming effective. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF said parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by the duly authorized officials on 
the day and year first above written. 

ENTERED this ____ day of     , 2016. 

 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR    

 

________________________________  

Mayor       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

 

NORTH WHIDBEY FIRE 

   

100



 

 

________________________________  

(Title)      

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

(Title) 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

(Title) 
 

101



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-Town of Coupeville

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and the Town of Coupeville to join together to 
surplus items via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.r
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Interlocal Agreement for Auction 
Services-Town of Coupeville

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the Mayor to enter into an Interlocal Agreement to establish mutual aid and 
cooperation in allowing both the City of Oak Harbor and the Town of Coupeville to join together to 
surplus items via an auction method.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the past, the City of Oak Harbor has joined forces with a variety of entities to ensure a successful and 
cost effective auction.  The auctioneer fee is based on the potential size of the auction and the advertising 
costs are shared among all entities.  This allows for the City to save money by lowering the auctioneer fee 
and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-Town of Coupeville

and by sharing the operating and advertising costs.  

The City of Oak Harbor will take the lead, as we have done in the past and our responsibilities and those 
of our joint partners are outlined in the interlocal agreement attached.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW Chapter 39.34 allows government entities to enter into cooperative agreements. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement-Town of Coupeville

102

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458856278_at.pdf


INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR MUTAL AID AND COOPERATION OF AUCTION SERVICES BETWEEN THE CITY OF OAK 

HARBOR, WASHINGTON AND THE TOWN OF COUPEVILLE, WASHINGTON 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this ___________ day of _____________, 2016, by and between the 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, a municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Oak Harbor”, and TOWN OF 

COUPEVILLE, WASHINGTON, a public corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Town of Coupeville”. 

WINESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Town of Coupeville desires to join the City of Oak Harbor in the annual City-Wide Auction; and 

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended and codified in Chapter 39.34 RCW provides for 

interlocal cooperation between government agencies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements and covenants herein contained, the parties 

agree as follows: 

Purpose:  The purpose of this agreement is to establish mutual aid and cooperation in allowing both Oak Harbor 

and Town of Coupeville to join together to surplus items via an auction method. 

Responsibilities of Oak Harbor:  Oak Harbor shall have the following duties and responsibilities under this 

Agreement; 

1. Oak Harbor will procure the Auctioneer and be responsible of all transactions with said vendor.

2. Oak Harbor will provide the auction site and all security necessary to ensure auction items are stored, sold

and removed from site.

3. Oak Harbor will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

4. Oak Harbor will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of Oak Harbor.

  Responsibilities of Town of Coupeville:  Town of Coupeville shall have the following duties and responsibilities 

under this Agreement; 

1. Town of Coupeville will surplus their items as outlined in their surplus and disposal procedures.

2. Town of Coupeville will provide Oak Harbor with a detailed list of items to be sold.

3. Town of Coupeville will provide Oak Harbor with all surplus vehicle and equipment titles, if applicable.

4. Town of Coupeville will transport all items to designated area by the designated time set forward by the

auctioneer.

5. Town of Coupeville will pay their fair share of operating and advertising costs.

6. Town of Coupeville will pay the 8% auction fee based on the gross total of Town of Coupeville items.

Representation, Warranties, and Indemnities: 

103



 

 

A. Oak Harbor represents and warrants to Town of Coupeville that it has authority to enter into this Interlocal 

Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

B. Town of Coupeville represents and warrants to Oak Harbor that it has authority to enter into this Interlocal 

Agreement pursuant to RCW 39.34.030(2). 

C. It is understood and agreed between the parties hereto that both Oak Harbor and Town of Coupeville agree to 

protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless one another, its council, agents, departments and employees 

against any and all liabilities, claims, damages, penalties, actions, costs, and expenses (including reasonable 

attorney’s fees) which may arise for any reason as a result of the performance of the Agreement by either party. 

Duration of Agreement.  This agreement will expire June 30, 2016. 

Termination of Agreement.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, by providing written notice to the 

designated contact for each party identified in the “Notices” section of this Agreement.  This written notice must be 

served on the other party within thirty days (30) of the date of termination. 

Partial Invalidity.  Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to 

be effective and valid under applicable law.  Any provisions of this Agreement, which shall prove to be invalid, void, or 

illegal, shall in no way affect, impair, or invalidate any other provisions herein, and such other provisions shall remain in 

full force and effect. 

No Third-Party Rights.  Except as expressly provided herein, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to permit 

anyone other than the parties hereto and their successors and assigns to rely upon the covenants and agreements 

herein not to give any such third party a cause of action (as a third-party beneficiary or otherwise) on account of 

nonperformance hereunder. 

Assignability.  The rights, duties, and other obligations of either party to this Agreement may not be assigned to any 

third party without the prior written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Interlocal Cooperation Act.  No special budget or funds are anticipated, nor shall be created.  It is not intended that 

a separate legal entity be established to conduct this cooperative undertaking, nor is the acquisition, holding, or  

disposing of real or personal property other than as specifically provided within the terms of this Agreement anticipated.  

Oak Harbor shall be designated as the Administrator of this Interlocal Agreement. 

Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and any amendments thereto mutually agreed to by the parties, constitutes the 

entire Agreement between the parties hereto and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter 

of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties.  Either party may request changes to the 

Agreement.  Proposed changes that are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written amendment hereto. 

Insurance.  Each party shall maintain in effect insurance with limits in the amount each entity currently has in place. 

Dispute Resolution.  It is the parties’ intent to resolve any disputes relating to the interpretation or application of 

this Agreement informally through discussions at the staff level.  In the event disputes cannot be resolved informally at 

the staff level, then the parties agree to first submit the dispute to non-binding mediation/dispute resolution before 

resorting to litigation. 

104



 

 

Litigation.  In the event that any suite or action is instituted by either party to enforce compliance with or interpret 

any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect, in addition 

to necessary court costs, such sums as the court may adjudge as reasonable attorney fees.  The venue for any action to 

enforce and interpret this Agreement shall lie in the Superior Court for Town of Coupeville, Washington. 

Notices.  All notices and demands shall be in writing and sent to the parties hereto at their address as follows: 

 

To Oak Harbor:     To Town of Coupeville: 

Robert Severns     ____________________________ 

Mayor      ___________________________  

865 SE Barrington Drive    ____________________________ 

Oak Harbor, WA  98277    _____________________________ 

 

Filing of Agreement.  Executed copies of this agreement shall be filed as required by Section 39.34.040 of the 
Revised Code of Washington prior to this agreement becoming effective. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF said parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by the duly authorized officials on 
the day and year first above written. 

ENTERED this ____ day of     , 2016. 

 

 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR    

 

________________________________  

Mayor       

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

 

TOWN OF COUPEVILLE 

   

105



 

 

________________________________  

(Title)      

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________ 

(Title) 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

___________________________ 

(Title) 
 

106



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Bid Award-Jail and Evidence 
Security System

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to award the bid for one (1) Jail and Evidence Security System to Efficient Communication 
Systems in the amount of $45,544.35.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On February 17, 2016 staff solicited bids for two weeks for one (1) Jail and Evidence Security System
to be used by the Police Department to upgrade their current security system.  The existing system was 
installed with in-house staff and is now outdated and needs to be improved to cover all of the Police 
Department needs. 

Staff researched multiple options and found that there is a need for additional cameras inside and outside 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.s
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Bid Award-Jail and Evidence 
Security System

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to award the bid for one (1) Jail and Evidence Security System to Efficient Communication 
Systems in the amount of $45,544.35.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On February 17, 2016 staff solicited bids for two weeks for one (1) Jail and Evidence Security System 
to be used by the Police Department to upgrade their current security system.  The existing system was 
installed with in-house staff and is now outdated and needs to be improved to cover all of the Police 
Department needs. 

Staff researched multiple options and found that there is a need for additional cameras inside and outside Staff researched multiple options and found that there is a need for additional cameras inside and outside 
of the Police Department, a more secure set up for the digital recorder and a system that can allow for a
video court, which will enhance the safety of the officers and inmates.   

The bid was advertised in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey New Times.

Staff received and opened four sealed bids on March 10, 2016.  

 The bid totals are tabulated below:

Staff reviewed the bid prices and has determined that Efficient Communication Solutions will meet the 

VENDOR BID AMOUNT

Efficient Communication Solutions $ 45,544.35

Cook Security Group $ 47,574.19

Gateway Controls $ 51,626.52

Building Control Systems $ 61,337.00

Staff researched multiple options and found that there is a need for additional cameras inside and outside 
of the Police Department, a more secure set up for the digital recorder and a system that can allow for a 
video court, which will enhance the safety of the officers and inmates.   

The bid was advertised in the Daily Journal of Commerce and Whidbey New Times.

Staff received and opened four sealed bids on March 10, 2016.  

 The bid totals are tabulated below:

Staff reviewed the bid prices and has determined that Efficient Communication Solutions will meet the 

VENDOR BID AMOUNT

Efficient Communication Solutions $ 45,544.35

Cook Security Group $ 47,574.19

Gateway Controls $ 51,626.52

Building Control Systems $ 61,337.00

107



needs of the Police Department for both quality of products and service.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:   $45,544.35                              

Appropriation Source:       Carried over funds from 2015         

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. ECS Bid

needs of the Police Department for both quality of products and service.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:   $45,544.35                              

Appropriation Source:       Carried over funds from 2015         

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. ECS Bid

108

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458854002_at.pdf


109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: North Whidbey Sportsmen's 
Association Range Agreement -
Oak Harbor Police Department

FROM: Chief of Police Ed Green

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review the agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign it. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association (NWSA) and the Oak Harbor Police Department have 
been working with an old agreement (2010)  for use of the firearms range to conduct law enforcement 
training. The agreement had no expiration date, set an inadequate rate fee of $850.00 (annually), and did 
not allow for training outside of the designated times outlined in the agreement. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.t
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: North Whidbey Sportsmen's 
Association Range Agreement -
Oak Harbor Police Department

FROM: Chief of Police Ed Green

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review the agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign it. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association (NWSA) and the Oak Harbor Police Department have 
been working with an old agreement (2010)  for use of the firearms range to conduct law enforcement 
training. The agreement had no expiration date, set an inadequate rate fee of $850.00 (annually), and did 
not allow for training outside of the designated times outlined in the agreement. not allow for training outside of the designated times outlined in the agreement. 

By mutual agreement both parties agreed to enter into negotiation with the idea of updating the 
agreement, placing an expiration date on it, establishing a more conducive system for 
range reservation for training, and to pay a more appropriate amount for range usage. 

This agreement represents several months of discussions allowing the Oak Harbor Police Department to 
continue to use the range for its necessary training, while compensating the NWSA at a more appropriate 
level ($1,500.00 annually). It allows is an annual, agreement (January 1 - December 31), allowing both 
parties to update it as needed at the first of each year. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Budgeted Annual Expense:

$1,500.00

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

not allow for training outside of the designated times outlined in the agreement. 

By mutual agreement both parties agreed to enter into negotiation with the idea of updating the 
agreement, placing an expiration date on it, establishing a more conducive system for 
range reservation for training, and to pay a more appropriate amount for range usage. 

This agreement represents several months of discussions allowing the Oak Harbor Police Department to 
continue to use the range for its necessary training, while compensating the NWSA at a more appropriate 
level ($1,500.00 annually). It allows is an annual, agreement (January 1 - December 31), allowing both 
parties to update it as needed at the first of each year. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Budgeted Annual Expense:

$1,500.00

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

166



ATTACHMENTS
1. 2016 North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association Range Use Agreement 
ATTACHMENTS
1. 2016 North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association Range Use Agreement 

167

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458682241_at.pdf


168



169



170



171



172



173



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: F-Dock Breakwater Repair -
Professional Services Agreement 
with Moffatt & Nichol for 
Engineering Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Moffatt & Nichol for the 
scope of services described herein in for a not to exceed amount of $74,957.00. 

Additionally, a motion authorizing a management reserve of $3,748.00 (5%) to allow the City Engineer 
the ability to authorize minor contract changes should they occur.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.u
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: F-Dock Breakwater Repair -
Professional Services Agreement 
with Moffatt & Nichol for 
Engineering Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to sign a Professional Services Agreement with Moffatt & Nichol for the 
scope of services described herein in for a not to exceed amount of $74,957.00. 

Additionally, a motion authorizing a management reserve of $3,748.00 (5%) to allow the City Engineer 
the ability to authorize minor contract changes should they occur.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
A windstorm in the fall of 2015 damaged the Oak Harbor Marina breakwater, which is an offset floating
breakwater consisting of vertical panels connected to the outermost F-Dock. It was observed that 
several panels of the breakwater had shifted and dropped several inches, indicating damage to the 
underwater portions of the breakwater.

A claim was submitted by the City to the Marina insurers, who stated that after the City pays a 
$5,000.00 deductible, work related to repairing the breakwater storm damage will be covered by 
insurance. This includes City staff time, engineering services, and cost to repair.

The City of Oak Harbor issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) to obtain engineering services to assist 
with this repair. Moffatt & Nichol responded to this RFP and was selected by City staff to perform this 
work. Moffatt & Nichol has significant experience conducting underwater inspections for structures using
engineer-divers.

The scope of work that Moffatt & Nichol will perform is as follows:

Proposed scope of services



BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
A windstorm in the fall of 2015 damaged the Oak Harbor Marina breakwater, which is an offset floating 
breakwater consisting of vertical panels connected to the outermost F-Dock. It was observed that 
several panels of the breakwater had shifted and dropped several inches, indicating damage to the 
underwater portions of the breakwater.

A claim was submitted by the City to the Marina insurers, who stated that after the City pays a 
$5,000.00 deductible, work related to repairing the breakwater storm damage will be covered by 
insurance. This includes City staff time, engineering services, and cost to repair.

The City of Oak Harbor issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) to obtain engineering services to assist 
with this repair. Moffatt & Nichol responded to this RFP and was selected by City staff to perform this 
work. Moffatt & Nichol has significant experience conducting underwater inspections for structures using 
engineer-divers.

The scope of work that Moffatt & Nichol will perform is as follows:

Proposed scope of services



174



 North Breakwater Above-water and Underwater Inspection
 Draft Facilities Condition Assessment Report (FCAR)
 Final FCAR
 90% Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimate
 Final Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimate
 Permitting Support
 Bid Support
 Construction Support

Schedule:

The schedule is highly dependent upon the permitting process and regulatory agency review time and 
requirements. 

 Inspection and the Facilities Condition Assessment Report is planned to be performed and 
completed in April 2016,

 Design services are planned to begin in April 2016 and concluded by May 2016,
 Permitting assistance is planned to begin in April 2016 and concluded by August 2016,
 Project bidding is planned to take place in June 2016.
 Construction and construction support services are anticipated to take place in August 2016.

Funding:

The Oak Harbor Marina has an insurance policy with the WCIA for $750,000 with a $5,000 deductible, 
which will cover the cost of the engineering services described herein along with the cost of the repairs.

 North Breakwater Above-water and Underwater Inspection
 Draft Facilities Condition Assessment Report (FCAR)
 Final FCAR
 90% Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimate
 Final Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimate
 Permitting Support
 Bid Support
 Construction Support

Schedule:

The schedule is highly dependent upon the permitting process and regulatory agency review time and 
requirements. 

 Inspection and the Facilities Condition Assessment Report is planned to be performed and 
completed in April 2016,

 Design services are planned to begin in April 2016 and concluded by May 2016,
 Permitting assistance is planned to begin in April 2016 and concluded by August 2016,
 Project bidding is planned to take place in June 2016.
 Construction and construction support services are anticipated to take place in August 2016.

Funding:

The Oak Harbor Marina has an insurance policy with the WCIA for $750,000 with a $5,000 deductible, 
which will cover the cost of the engineering services described herein along with the cost of the repairs.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:

Total Contract:   $78,705.00 ($74,957.00 + 3,748.00 Reserve)      

Contract funding is projected to come from the Marina Fund #410 in the amount of $5,000 to pay for the 
insurance deductible, with the remaining funds in the amount of $73,705.00 to be derived from WCIA 
insurance coverage proceeds.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
There has not been any prior action regarding this item.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit A: Consultant Scope of Services
2. Evergreen Adjustment Service - Report of Investigation
3. WCIA - Property joint Protection Program 2015

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:

Total Contract:   $78,705.00 ($74,957.00 + 3,748.00 Reserve)      

Contract funding is projected to come from the Marina Fund #410 in the amount of $5,000 to pay for the 
insurance deductible, with the remaining funds in the amount of $73,705.00 to be derived from WCIA 
insurance coverage proceeds.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
There has not been any prior action regarding this item.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit A: Consultant Scope of Services
2. Evergreen Adjustment Service - Report of Investigation
3. WCIA - Property joint Protection Program 2015

175

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459205338_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459205338_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459205401_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459205464_at.pdf


1 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

AND MOFFATT & NICHOL 
FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

Project Name: F Dock Breakwater Repair 
Contract Number: ENG 15-07 
Contract Amount: NTE $74,957.00 
Expiration Date: December 31, 2016 

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement’) is made and entered into by and between the City 
of OAK HARBOR, a Washington State municipal corporation (“City”), and Moffatt & Nichol, 
a Washington Incorporation. ("Consultant"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions, covenants and 
performances contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Agreement is to provide the City with consultant services regarding 
the inspection, design of repairs, permitting, and bid and construction support for the storm-
damaged F-Dock Breakwater at the Oak Harbor Marina, as described in Article II. The general 
terms and conditions of the relationship between the City and the Consultant are specified in this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE II.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference (“Scope of Services”).  All services and materials necessary to accomplish the tasks 
outlined in the Scope of Services shall be provided by the Consultant unless noted otherwise in 
the Scope of Services or this Agreement.  All such services shall be provided in accordance with 
the standards of the Consultant’s profession. 

ARTICLE III.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSULTANT 

III.1 MINOR CHANGES IN SCOPE.  The Consultant shall accept minor changes,
amendments, or revision in the detail of the Scope of Services as may be required by the City 
when such changes will not have any impact on the service costs or proposed delivery schedule. 
Extra work, if any, involving substantial changes and/or changes in cost or schedules will be 
addressed as follows: 

Extra Work.  The City may desire to have the Consultant perform work or render 
services in connection with each project in addition to or other than work provided for by 
the expressed intent of the Scope of Services in the scope of services.  Such work will be 

176



2 
 

considered as extra work and will be specified in a written supplement to the scope of 
services, to be signed by both parties, which will set forth the nature and the scope 
thereof.  All proposals for extra work or services shall be prepared by the Consultant at 
no cost to the City.  Work under a supplemental agreement shall not proceed until 
executed in writing by the parties. 

 
 III.2 WORK PRODUCT AND DOCUMENTS.  The work product and all 
documents produced under this Agreement shall be furnished by the Consultant to the City, and 
upon completion of the work shall become the property of the City, except that the Consultant 
may retain one copy of the work product and documents for its records.  The Consultant will be 
responsible for the accuracy of the work, even though the work has been accepted by the City. 
 
 In the event that the Consultant shall default on this Agreement or in the event that this 
Agreement shall be terminated prior to its completion as herein provided, all work product of the 
Consultant, along with a summary of work as of the date of default or termination, shall become 
the property of the City.  Upon request, the Consultant shall tender the work product and 
summary to the City.  Tender of said work product shall be a prerequisite to final payment under 
this Agreement.  The summary of work done shall be prepared at no additional cost to the City. 
 
 Consultant will not be held liable for reuse of documents produced under this Agreement 
or modifications thereof for any purpose other than those authorized under this Agreement 
without the written authorization of Consultant. 
 
 III.3 TERM.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on April 5, 2016 and shall 
terminate at midnight, December 31, 2016.  The parties may extend the term of this Agreement 
by written mutual agreement. 
 
 III.4 NONASSIGNABLE.  The services to be provided by the Consultant shall not be 
assigned or subcontracted without the express written consent of the City. 
 
 III.5 EMPLOYMENT.  Any and all employees of the Consultant, while engaged in 
the performance of any work or services required by the Consultant under this Agreement, shall 
be considered employees of the Consultant only and not of the City, and any and all claims that 
may or might arise under the Workman's Compensation Act on behalf of any said employees 
while so engaged, and any and all claims made by any third party as a consequence of any 
negligent act or omission on the part of the Consultant or its employees while so engaged in any 
of the work or services provided herein shall be the sole obligation of the Consultant. 
 
 III.6 INDEMNIFICATION / HOLD HARMLESS.  Consultant shall defend, 
indemnify and hold the Public Entity, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless 
from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of 
or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this 
Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the Public Entity. 
 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW 
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or 

177



3 
 

damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Consultant and 
the Public Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Consultant's liability, 
including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s 
negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood that the indemnification provided 
herein constitutes the Consultant’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 
RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated 
by the parties.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

a. Insurance Term.  The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the 
duration of the Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 

 
b. No Limitation.  Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the 

agreement shall not be construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage 
provided by such insurance, or otherwise limit the Public Entity’s recourse to any remedy 
available at law or in equity. 

 
c. Minimum Scope of Insurance. Consultant shall obtain insurance of the 

types and coverage described below: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, 
hired and leased vehicles.  Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office 
(ISO) form CA 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad 

as ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, 
operations, stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and advertising 
injury.  The Public Entity shall be named as an additional insured under the 
Consultant’s Commercial General Liability insurance policy with respect to the 
work performed for the Public Entity using an additional insured endorsement at 
least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial 

Insurance laws of the State of Washington. 
 

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s 
profession. 

 
d. Minimum Amounts of Insurance.  Consultant shall maintain the 

following insurance limits: 
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single 
limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 

178



4 
 

2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with 
limits no less than $1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 

3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 
 
e. Other Insurance Provision.  The Consultant’s Automobile Liability and 

Commercial General Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain 
that they shall be primary insurance as respect the Public Entity.  Any Insurance, self-
insurance, or self-insured pool coverage maintained by the Public Entity shall be excess 
of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 
f. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 

current A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII. 
 
g. Verification of Coverage.  Consultant shall furnish the Public Entity with 

original certificates and a copy of the amendatory endorsements, including but not 
necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance 
requirements of the Consultant before commencement of the work. 

 
h. Notice of Cancellation.  The Consultant shall provide the Public Entity 

with written notice of any policy cancellation within two business days of their receipt of 
such notice. 

 
i. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Failure on the part of the Consultant to 

maintain the insurance as required shall constitute a material breach of contract, upon 
which the Public Entity may, after giving five business days notice to the Consultant to 
correct the breach, immediately terminate the contract or, at its discretion, procure or 
renew such insurance and pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, with any 
sums so expended to be repaid to the Public Entity on demand, or at the sole discretion of 
the Public Entity, offset against funds due the Consultant from the Public Entity. 

 
j. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits.  If the Consultant 

maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the Public Entity 
shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such limits 
maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this contract or whether 
any certificate of insurance furnished to the Public Entity evidences limits of liability 
lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
 
 III.7 DISCRIMINATION PROHIBITED AND COMPLIANCE WITH EQUAL 
OPPORTUNITY LEGISLATION.  The Consultant agrees to comply with equal opportunity 
employment and not to discriminate against client, employee, or applicant for employment or for 
services because of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, marital status, sex, sexual 
orientation, age or handicap except for a bona fide occupational qualification with regard, but not 

179



5 
 

limited to, the following:  employment upgrading; demotion or transfer; recruitment or any 
recruitment advertising; layoff or terminations; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 
selection for training, rendition of services.  The Consultant further agrees to maintain (as 
appropriate) notices, posted in conspicuous places, setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant understands and agrees that if it violates this 
nondiscrimination provision, this Agreement may be terminated by the City, and further that the 
Consultant will be barred from performing any services for the City now or in the future, unless a 
showing is made satisfactory to the City that discriminatory practices have been terminated and 
that recurrence of such action is unlikely. 
 
 III.8 UNFAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES.  During the performance of this 
Agreement, the Consultant agrees to comply with RCW 49.60.180, prohibiting unfair 
employment practices. 
 
 III.9 LEGAL RELATIONS.  The Consultant shall comply with all federal, state and 
local laws and ordinances applicable to work to be done under this Agreement.  The Consultant 
represents that the firm and all employees assigned to work on any City project are in full 
compliance with the statutes of the State of Washington governing activities to be performed and 
that all personnel to be assigned to the work required under this Agreement are fully qualified 
and properly licensed to perform the work to which they will be assigned.  This Agreement shall 
be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of Washington.  Venue for any 
litigation commenced relating to this Agreement shall be in Island County Superior Court. 
 
 III.10 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

 
a. The Consultant and the City understand and expressly agree that the 

Consultant is an independent contractor in the performance of each and every part of this 
Agreement.  The Consultant expressly represents, warrants and agrees that his status as 
an independent contractor in the performance of the work and services required under 
this Agreement is consistent with and meets the six-part independent contractor test set 
forth in RCW 51.08.195 or as hereafter amended.  The Consultant, as an independent 
contractor, assumes the entire responsibility for carrying out and accomplishing the 
services required under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall make no claim of City 
employment nor shall claim any related employment benefits, social security, and/or 
retirement benefits. 

b. The Consultant shall be solely responsible for paying all taxes, deductions, 
and assessments, including but not limited to federal income tax, FICA, social security 
tax, assessments for unemployment and industrial injury, and other deductions from 
income which may be required by law or assessed against either party as a result of this 
Agreement.  In the event the City is assessed a tax or assessment as a result of this 
Agreement, the Consultant shall pay the same before it becomes due. 

 
c. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other 

independent contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs 
hereunder. 

 

180



6 
 

d. Prior to commencement of work, the Consultant shall obtain a business 
license from the City. 

 
III.11 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  The Consultant agrees to and shall notify the 

City of any potential conflicts of interest in Consultant’s client base and shall obtain written 
permission from the City prior to providing services to third parties where a conflict or potential 
conflict of interest is apparent. If the City determines in its sole discretion that a conflict is 
irreconcilable, the City reserves the right to terminate this Agreement. 
 
 III.12 CITY CONFIDENCES.  The Consultant agrees to and will keep in strict 
confidence, and will not disclose, communicate or advertise to third parties without specific prior 
written consent from the City in each instance, the confidences of the City or any information 
regarding the City or services provided to the City. 
 

III.13 SUBCONTRACTORS/SUBCONSULTANTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall is responsible for all work performed by 
subcontractors/subconsultants pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
b. The Consultant must verify that any subcontractors/subconsultants they 

directly hire meet the responsibility criteria for the project. Verification that a 
subcontractor/subconsultant has proper license and bonding, if required by statute, must 
be included in the verification process. The Consultant will use the following 
Subcontractors/Subconsultants or as set forth in Exhibit ____: 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
            _____________________________________________ 
 

c. The Consultant may not substitute or add subcontractors/subconsultants 
without the written approval of the City. 
 

d. All Subcontractors/Subconsultants shall have the same insurance 
coverages and limits as set forth in this Agreement and the Consultant shall provide 
verification of said insurance coverage. 

 

181



7 
 

 ARTICLE IV.  OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY 
 
 IV.1 PAYMENTS. 
 

a. The Consultant shall be paid by the City on a time and materials basis for 
services rendered under this Agreement as described in the Scope of Services and as 
provided in this section.  In no event shall the compensation paid to Consultant under this 
Agreement exceed $74,957.00 without the written agreement of the Consultant and the 
City.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed and services rendered 
and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment and incidentals necessary to complete the 
work.  In the event the City elects to expand the scope of services from that set forth in 
Exhibit A, the City shall pay Consultant a mutually agreed amount. 

 
b. The Consultant shall submit a monthly invoice to the City for services 

performed in the previous calendar month.  At a minimum, invoices shall include (1) a 
summary of previous invoices; (2) current invoice amount; (3) total current monthly 
billing; (4) amount authorized under this agreement; and (5) total authorized amount still 
remaining under the agreement.  The Consultant shall maintain time and expense records 
and provide them to the Cities upon request. 

 
  c. The City will pay timely submitted and approved invoices received before 

the 20th of each month within thirty (30) days of receipt. 
 
 IV.2 CITY APPROVAL.  Notwithstanding the Consultant's status as an independent 
contractor, results of the work performed pursuant to this Agreement must meet the approval of 
the City, which shall not be unreasonably withheld if work has been completed in compliance 
with the Scope of Services and City requirements. 
 

IV.3 MAINTENANCE/INSPECTION OF RECORDS.  The Consultant shall 
maintain all books, records, documents and other evidence pertaining to the costs and expenses 
allowable under this Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.  All 
such books and records required to be maintained by this Agreement shall be subject to 
inspection and audit by representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor at all 
reasonable times, and the Consultant shall afford the proper facilities for such inspection and 
audit.  Representatives of the City and/or the Washington State Auditor may copy such books, 
accounts and records where necessary to conduct or document an audit.  The Consultant shall 
preserve and make available all such books of account and records for a period of three (3) years 
after final payment under this Agreement.  In the event that any audit or inspection identifies any 
discrepancy in such financial records, the Consultant shall provide the City with appropriate 
clarification and/or financial adjustments within thirty (30) calendar days of notification of the 
discrepancy. 
 
  

182



8 

ARTICLE V.  GENERAL 

 V.1 NOTICES. 

Notices to the City shall be sent to the following address: 
ALEX WARNER, PE 
CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
865 SE BARRINGTON DRIVE 
OAK HARBOR, WA 98277 

Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 
BRUCE OSTBO, PE, SE 
600 UNIVERSITY ST., SUITE 610 
SEATTLE, WA  98101 

Receipt of any notice shall be deemed effective three (3) days after deposit of written 
notice in the U.S. mail with proper postage and address. 

 V.2 TERMINATION.  The right is reserved by the City to terminate this Agreement 
in whole or in part at any time upon ten (10) calendar days' written notice to the Consultant. 

If this Agreement is terminated in its entirety by the City for its convenience, the City 
shall pay the Consultant for satisfactory services performed through the date of termination in 
accordance with payment provisions of Section VI.1. 

 V.3 DISPUTES.  The parties agree that, following reasonable attempts at negotiation 
and compromise, any unresolved dispute arising under this Agreement may be resolved by a 
mutually agreed-upon alternative dispute resolution of arbitration or mediation. 

V.4 EXTENT OF AGREEMENT/MODIFICATION.  This Agreement, together 
with attachments or addenda, represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties 
and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.  This 
Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written instrument properly signed by 
both parties. 

V.5 SEVERABILITY 
a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of

this Agreement to be illegal or invalid, in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining 
provisions shall not be affected, and the parties’ rights and obligations shall be construed 
and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the particular provision held to be 
invalid. 

b. If any provision of this Agreement is in direct conflict with any statutory
provision of the State of Washington, that provision which may conflict shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void insofar as it may conflict, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 

 V.6 NONWAIVER.  A waiver by either party hereto of a breach by the other party 

183



9 

hereto of any covenant or condition of this Agreement shall not impair the right of the party not 
in default to avail itself of any subsequent breach thereof.  Leniency, delay or failure of either 
party to insist upon strict performance of any agreement, covenant or condition of this 
Agreement, or to exercise any right herein given in any one or more instances, shall not be 
construed as a waiver or relinquishment of any such agreement, covenant, condition or right. 

V.7 FAIR MEANING.  The terms of this Agreement shall be given their fair 
meaning and shall not be construed in favor of or against either party hereto because of 
authorship.  This Agreement shall be deemed to have been drafted by both of the parties. 

V.8 GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. 

V.9 VENUE.  The venue for any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall 
lie in the Superior Court of Washington for Snohomish County, Washington. 

 V.10 COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 
the same Agreement. 

V.11  AUTHORITY TO BIND PARTIES AND ENTER INTO AGREEMENT.  
The undersigned represent that they have full authority to enter into this Agreement and to bind 
the parties for and on behalf of the legal entities set forth below. 

DATED this ______ day of ________________, 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR MOFFATT & NICHOL 

By______________________________  By _______________________________ 
Robert Severns, Mayor BRUCE OSTBO, PE, SE 

Approved as to form: 

______________________________ 
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

184



10 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

185



600 University Street, 
Suite 610 
Seattle, WA  98101 

March 15, 2016  

Alex Warner, PE 
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Dive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 

RE:  Oak Harbor Marina F-Dock Breakwater Repair – REVISION 1 

Dear Mr. Warner: 

Moffatt & Nichol (M&N) truly appreciates being selected by the City of Oak Harbor to provide 
professional engineering services for inspection and design of the F-Dock Breakwater Repair. This 
proposal follows our understanding of the scope of work required to inspect, design repairs, permit, 
and provide bid and construction support for the storm-damaged breakwater at the Oak Harbor 
Marina. The scope of services (Attachment A) details the work, its associated deliverables, schedule, 
and assumptions to support the level of effort currently understood by M&N.  

M&N will complete the work on a time-and-expense reimbursable basis for an amount not to exceed 
Seventy-Four Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-Seven dollars ($74,957.00). The level of effort estimated 
to complete the scope of services is attached (Attachment B). The fee is split into base tasks and an 
optional task. The base tasks include the storm-damage related scope of work. The optional task 
includes the supplementary south breakwater inspection. A summary of the budget by task follows: 

BASE TASK Budget  

1. North Breakwater Inspection $5,870.00 

2. Facility Condition Assessment Report $5,527.00 

3. 90% Design Repair PS&E’s $28,160.00 

4. Final Design PS&E’s $4,675.00 

5. Permit Support $14,860.00 

6. Bid Support $3,230.00 

7. Construction Support $6,835.00 

Other Direct Costs $1,385.00 

TOTAL BASE TASK FEE $70,542.00 

OPTIONAL TASK 

8. South Breakwater Inspection $4,415.00 

TOTAL BASE TASK + OPTIONAL TASK FEE $74,957.00 

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

186



Alex Warner, PE, Civil Engineer 
City of Oak Harbor 
March 15, 2016 

2

Should additional fee be required as a result of a change in scope, M&N will inform the City of Oak 
Harbor prior to expending any additional funds. M&N will not proceed with any extra services outside 
of this scope of work without prior written authorization.  

Please contact Byron Haley or me at (206) 622-0222 if there are any questions. We look forward to 
working with you and your staff on this important project. 

Sincerely, 

MOFFATT & NICHOL 

Bruce Ostbo, PE, SE 
Vice President 

Attachments: Attachment A – Scope of Services 
Attachment B – Project Fee Proposal 

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

187



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 1
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
City of Oak Harbor 

Project Title:  Oak Harbor Marina F‐Dock Breakwater Repair  

Project Location:  OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON 

Date of Scope:   March 15, 2016 

BACKGROUND 
A  storm  in  the  fall of 2015 damaged  the F‐Dock Breakwater at  the City of Oak Harbor  (City) 
Marina.  The  City  has  reported  damage  in  the  vicinity  of  Slips  6  through  12  of  the  F‐Dock 
Breakwater and has  requested  the preparation of plans and  specifications  suitable  for public 
bid to repair the breakwater. Moffatt & Nichol (M&N) has been retained by the City to support 
the  repair  design  of  the  breakwater. M&N will  provide  an  inspection  of  the  breakwater,  a 
facility condition assessment  report  summarizing  the  findings, a  repair design and associated 
bid documents, permitting, bid support, and construction support.  

The City‐observed damage  is  isolated  to  the northern part of  the breakwater; however,  it  is 
desired to inspect the full breakwater. The boundary between the south and north breakwater 
is  between  F‐Dock  Slips  17  and  18.  Since  the  storm‐damage  inspection  and  repair  is  being 
funded  by  insurance,  it  is  necessary  to  track  the  level  of  effort  for  the  south  breakwater 
separately.  Therefore,  the  inspection  and  report  preparation  for  the  south  breakwater  is 
provided in a separate task.  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
The scope of services are split  into base tasks related to the north breakwater storm‐damage 
repair and an optional task for the supplementary south breakwater inspection.  

BASE TASKS 

Task 1: North Breakwater Repair‐Design Inspection 

Objective: Conduct a detailed above‐water and underwater inspection of the north breakwater. 

1.1 North Breakwater Repair‐Design Inspection 
The  north  breakwater  includes  F‐Dock  Slips  1  through  17  –  approximately  the  northern 
310 feet. The repair‐design inspection will include a visual and tactile inspection of 100 percent 
of the accessible components. Components will not be disassembled as part of the inspection. 
The  extent  of  storm‐related  damage will  be  noted  along  with  the  information  required  to 
design the repairs. This includes verifying the record drawings and noting ancillary components 
that require replacement.  

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

188



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 2
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

Preparation 
M&N will develop a Safety Plan including a Job Safety Analysis, a Dive Operations Plan, and an 
Emergency Management Plan. The Safety Plan will be provided to the City if requested.  

Underwater Inspection 
A  three‐person  SCUBA dive  team will be employed  in  accordance with Association of Diving 
Contractors  International  diving  standard.  The  inspection method  will  follow  the  American 
Society  of  Civil  Engineers  ASCE  Manuals  and  Reports  on  Engineering  Practice  No.  130, 
Waterfront  Facilities  Inspection  and  Assessment,  (MOP‐130)  procedures  for  a  repair‐design 
inspection. Components  include  timber wales, concrete  float units,  through‐rods, breakwater 
panels, and guide piles. We will provide all gear necessary to complete the inspection. 

Above‐water Inspection 
The  above‐water  inspection  will  include  a  visual  repair‐design  inspection  of  all  accessible 
components  following  the  guidelines  set  by  MOP‐130.  Components  include  timber  wales, 
concrete float units, through‐rods, and breakwater panels.  

Task 2: Facility Condition Assessment Report (FCAR) 

Objective: Provide an inspection report summarizing the findings of the repair‐design inspection 
with the necessary detail to support the insurance claim. 

2.1 Draft FCAR 
The results of the inspections will be incorporated into a draft FCAR. The FCAR deliverable will 
contain  a  description  of  the  facility,  observed  storm  related  damage,  observed  general 
conditions,  the  implications of the observed conditions, recommendations  for repairs, and an 
opinion of probable cost to perform those repairs.   

We will  include photos of any damage  that  is  found and photos of  typical conditions. Tables 
that list the members recommended for replacement or repair will be prepared and included in 
the report. Figures will include rough hand sketches; AutoCAD figures will not be provided with 
the report. The draft report will be provided to the City for review and comment.  

2.2 Final FCAR 
City  comments  to  the  draft  FCAR will  be  reviewed  and  addressed,  and  a  final  FCAR will  be 
submitted.  

Deliverables 

Draft and Final Facility Condition Assessment Reports submitted electronically in PDF format.  

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

189



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 3
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

Task 3: 90% Repair Plans, Specifications, and Cost Estimates (PS&E) 

Objective:  Prepare  and  submit  plans,  specifications  and  cost  estimates  for  90%  submittal. 
Design package will include all recommended repairs.  

M&N will prepare contract drawings, specifications, and opinion of probable construction cost 
estimates,  and  will  keep  the  City  fully  informed  of  progress,  developments,  and  problems 
encountered  during  the  course  of  the  design  period.      The  full  scope  of  required  repairs  is 
unknown until we conduct the  inspections. The  level of effort assumed for this scope of work 
and the sheet list provided below is based on the following anticipated repairs: replacing wales, 
replacing  through‐rods,  replacing  breakwater  panels,  or  patching  concrete  float  units.  If  the 
project  scope  expands  to  include  concrete  float  unit  replacement,  additional  design may  be 
necessary  and  the  Project  schedule  and  permitting will  be  impacted,  thereby  requiring  the 
negotiation of additional  scope and  fee.  If  the  scope of  the project expands beyond general 
repair,  additional  environmental  review  and permitting may be necessary,  thereby  requiring 
the negotiation of additional scope and fee.  

3.1  90% Plans  
M&N will develop drawings for the project per M&N CADD standards. The anticipated Drawings 
include the following sheets:  

Dwg No.  Sheet Title 

1  COVER SHEET & SHEET INDEX 

2  GENERAL NOTES, ABBREVIATIONS, AND SYMBOLS 

3  OVERALL PLAN  

4  ENLARGED PLAN ‐ IMPROVEMENTS 

5  TYPICAL SECTIONS 

6  DETAILS ‐ SHEET 1 

7  DETAILS ‐ SHEET 2 

3.2  90% Specifications 
M&N  will  prepare  the  technical  sections  of  the  specifications.  The  City  will  prepare  the 
Contract, General Conditions, and Division 01 – General Requirements, of the specifications and 
incorporate the technical sections into the package. 

Technical  specifications  will  be  submitted  in  “MasterFormat”  (i.e.,  the  Construction 
Specifications Institute (CSI) format), in "Arial" 12 pitch font using Microsoft Word. 

3.3  90% Opinion of Probable Construction Cost   
M&N  will  prepare  our  opinion  of  probable  construction  costs.  The  opinion  of  probable 
construction costs will make provision for unit price or lump sum bid items as the City desires. 
The estimate will be created using Microsoft Excel. 

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

190



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 4
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

Deliverables 

The  90%  Design  Submittal  will  include  the  Drawings,  draft  specifications,  a  construction 
schedule,  and  an  opinion  of  probable  construction  costs.  All  documents  will  be  submitted 
electronically in PDF format. 90% design Drawings will be submitted as a half‐size set (11‐inches 
x  17‐inches)  without  signatures.  Microsoft  Word  files  will  also  be  provided  for  the 
specifications.  

Task 4: Final Repair PS&E’s 

Objective:  Prepare  and  submit  plans,  specifications  and  cost  estimates  for  Final  submittals. 
Design package will include all recommended repairs.  

4.1  Final Plans, Specifications, and Estimate  
M&N will further develop final drawings listed in Task 3 and incorporate City comments to the 
90 percent plans. The contract documents will be prepared so  that  the City can advertise an 
Invitation for Bids.  

Deliverables 

The  Final  Submittal  will  include  plans,  sections,  and  details;  technical  specifications;  a 
construction  schedule;  an  opinion  of  probable  construction  cost;  and  annotated  review 
comments.  

All documents will be  submitted electronically  in PDF  format. Drawings will be  submitted as 
half‐size and  full‐size  sets with  signatures. Microsoft Word  files will also be provided  for  the 
specifications. Contract Drawings will be provided  in a version  that  can be  read by AutoCAD 
2007. M&N will submit to the City a full set of electronic files for drawings. Each drawing will be 
submitted in PDF and "DWG" formats. M&N will provide the City with all other electronic files 
including font and PCP files needed to open and plot the "DWG" files. 

Task 5: Permit Support 

Objective:  Support  the  City  in  obtaining  the  following  anticipated  federal,  state  and  local 
permits and environmental reviews necessary to repair the breakwater: 
• State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Exemption
• City of Oak Harbor Shoreline Substantial Development Permit (SSDP) Exemption
• Department of Fish & Wildlife (WDFW) Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA)
• U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) Section 10 Permit. A Nationwide Permit (NWP) is

anticipated for maintenance and repair work.
• Abbreviated  Biological  Evaluation  (BE),  Essential  Fish  Habitat  (EFH)  Assessment  for

review  by  USFWS  and  NMFS  to  comply  with  the  Endangered  Species  Act  (ESA)  and
Magnuson Stevens Act.

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

191



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 5
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

The environmental review and permitting subtasks are: 

5.1 JARPA Application 
M&N will  prepare  a  Joint  Aquatic  Resource  Permit  Application  (JARPA)  for  submittal  to  the 
necessary  regulating  agencies,  including  the  City,  Corps, WDFW,  and  the Washington  State 
Department of Ecology (Ecology). Preliminary drawings (plan view, cross sections and profiles) 
will be prepared based off of about 20‐30% design for inclusion into the JARPA.  

5.2 Biological Compliance Documentation 
M&N will  complete  the Abbreviated  BE  and  EFH Assessment  for  inclusion within  the  JARPA 
application to the USACE. 

5.3 Coordination 
M&N  will  contact  and  coordinate  with  regulatory  agency  representatives  and  other 
government entities to verify and confirm the permit schedule and that the proposed permits 
and approvals are anticipated. M&N will respond, on behalf of the City to any agency questions 
or concerns. 

Deliverables 

JARPA Application – Provide a Draft and Final JARPA and drawings. M&N will submit the JARPA 
to all of the regulatory agencies for review and approval/final permits. 

Biological  Compliance  Documentation  –  Provide  a  Draft  and  Final  Abbreviated  BE  and  EFH 
Assessment. M&N will  submit  these  support documents  to all of  the  regulatory agencies  for 
review and approval. 

Task 6: Bid Support 

Objective: Provide technical engineering assistance to the City during the Project bid period. 

M&N will attend a pre‐bid conference and provide services for issuing addenda. M&N will issue 
up to two (2) addenda if required during the bidding phase of the project. If requested by the 
City, M&N will review construction bids for compliance. 

Deliverables 

Collect comments and questions from contractors during the pre‐bid walk through and include 
responses in Addendum #1. 

Prepare one additional addendum, including drawings and specification revisions, if necessary. 

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

192



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 6
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

Task 7: Construction Support 

Objective: Provide technical engineering assistance to the City during Project construction. 

7.1 Attend pre‐construction meeting 
M&N will attend the pre‐construction meeting and site walk.  

7.2 Requests for Information (RFI) 
Respond  to  RFI’s  from  the  Contractor  to  interpret  and  clarify  the  intent  of  the  plans  and 
technical specifications (allow for responding to up to 5 RFI’s). 

7.3 Contractor Submittals 
M&N will act as the primary reviewer for submittals required of the Contractor. M&N will allow 
for up to 8 submittals (re‐submittals count as one submittal).  

7.4 Meetings 
Attend  one  (1)  construction  progress  meeting  between  the  City’s  Project  Manager  and 
Contractor. Meetings shall occur concurrently with Site Visits (Task 7.5). 

7.5 Site Visits 
Conduct one (1) site visit during construction to assess that the work  is being accomplished  in 
general  conformance with  the  intent  of  the  plans  and  specifications.    Site  visits  shall  occur 
concurrently with Meetings (Task 7.4) above. 

7.6 Change Order Assistance 
Discuss with the City on issues associated with actual or potential changes to the Project. Such 
issues  could  include  unforeseen  site  conditions,  City‐solicited  Change  Proposals,  unsolicited 
Contractor Change Proposals, and disputes. Allow for up to four hours of phone call discussions 
with City staff. 

Deliverables 

 Draft Meeting Minutes – electronic copy (PDF format)

 RFI Responses – electronic copy (PDF format)

 Submittal Review Comments – electronic copy (PDF format)

OPTIONAL TASK 

Task 8: South Breakwater Inspection & Report 

Objective: Conduct a routine above‐water and underwater  inspection of the south breakwater 
and summarize the findings in a report. 

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

193



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 7
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

8.1 South Breakwater Routine Inspection 
The south breakwater  includes F‐Dock Slips 18  through 52 – approximately  the southern 630 
feet. Components include timber wales, concrete float units, through‐rods, breakwater panels, 
and guide piles. We will provide all gear necessary to complete the inspection. 

The routine above water and underwater inspection of the south breakwater will be conducted 
at  the  same  time  as  the  north  breakwater  inspection  (Task  1).  The  Routine  Inspection will 
follow the MOP‐130 procedures for a Routine Inspection. Per MOP‐130, the primary purpose of 
a  Routine  Inspection  is  to  assess  the  general  overall  condition  of  the  structure,  assign  a 
condition  assessment  rating  to  the  structure,  and  recommend what  future  course  of  action 
should be taken for the structure,  if any. A Routine  Inspection  is much  less rigorous and time 
consuming than the Repair‐Design Inspection discussed in Task 1. Since underwater portions of 
components are  likely  covered with marine growth, a  comprehensive visual  inspection of all 
component  surfaces  during  a  Routine  Inspection  is  impractical.  For  this  reason,  Routine 
Inspections focus on three levels of effort: 

1) Level  I  – Visual/tactile  inspection of underwater  components without  the  removal of

marine growth.

2) Level  II  ‐  Partial marine  growth  removal  of  all  components.  This will  include marine

growth  removal  in 1‐foot by 1‐foot square areas every 100  feet along  the breakwater

and at the connections as necessary.

3) Level  III  (Not  included  in  scope of work) – Non‐destructive  testing  (NDT) or partially‐

destructive  testing  (PDT)  of  a  statistically  representative  sample,  typically  5%,  of  all

components. May  consist  of  PDT  of wood  and  remaining  thickness measurement  of

steel components. We do not anticipate a need for conducting Level  III  inspections for

this  structure.  If  we  find  that  a  Level  III  inspection  is  necessary,  we  will  make  a

recommendation in the FCAR to conduct a follow‐up inspection.

8.2 South Breakwater Report 
The inspection findings, repair recommendations, and opinion of probable cost to perform the 
recommended repairs will be summarized in the Facility Condition Assessment Report provided 
in Task 2.  

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

194



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 8
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

PROPOSED SCHEDULE 

This proposal  is based upon  the  schedule below. M&N assumes  that  the City will  review  the 
Draft FCAR within 5 working days upon receipt and the 90% design submittal within 10 working 
days upon receipt.  

Item  Working Days after NTP 

 Inspection 10 

 Submit Draft Permits 20* 

 Draft FCAR 20 

 90% Design Submittal 25 

 Final FCAR 30 

 Final Submittal   40 

 Advertise for Bids TBD 

 Anticipated Contractor Award TBD 
* Assumes verbal consensus with the City on the extent of repairs following the inspection.

ASSUMPTIONS 

 Storm‐related  repairs  are  limited  to  replacing  timber  components  (wale),  replacing
through‐rods, replacing breakwater panels, or patching concrete  float units within  the 
north breakwater. If the project scope expands to include replacement of concrete float 
units or  repair of  the  south breakwater,  additional design may be necessary  and  the 
Project schedule and permitting will be  impacted, thereby requiring the negotiation of 
additional  scope  and  fee.  If  the  scope of  the project  expands beyond  general  repair, 
additional  environmental  review  and  permitting may  be  necessary,  thereby  requiring 
the negotiation of additional scope and fee.  

 M&N  assumes  that  the  proposed  repairs  will  comply  with  a  SEPA  Exemption  for
maintenance  and  repairs.  If  the  City  determines  that  a  SEPA  Checklist  is  required, 
additional scope and fee will be negotiated. 

 All permit fees will be will the responsibility of the City.

 Substantial  environmental  or  cultural  field  work  or  mitigation  is  not  anticipated.
Additional  work,  technical  memorandums,  field  or  biological  surveys  or  studies,
assessments or mitigation design required by any of the resource agencies beyond the
level of effort identified is not included in this scope and fee.

 Environmental monitoring services, which may be required by  the regulatory agencies
as a condition of a permit or approval, are not included in this scope and fee.

 "Formal consultation" with the Services  (USFWS and NMFS)  is not anticipated and will
be authorized separately if required.

 Comments,  and  the  request  for  testing  or  further  studies,  from  Ecology  or  the  U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) on sediment quality are not anticipated.

 Documentation  for  a  separate  Ecology  Section  401  Water  Quality  Certification  and
Certification and Coastal Zone Management Act  (CZMA) Consistency Determination  is

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

195



OAK HARBOR MARINA F-DOCK BREAKWATER REPAIR | PAGE 9
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR CITY OF OAK HARBOR – REVISION 1

MARCH  15, 2016

not  required  and  is  assumed  as  part  of  other maintenance  and  repair  permits  and 
approvals. 

 It  is  assumed  that  the  City  or  selected  project  contractor will  submit  the  necessary
information  for  any  local City  construction  permits. M&N  can  support  this  effort  but
additional scope and fee may be required.

 This  scope  and  fee  supports  effort  assumes  a moderate  level  of  effort  based  upon
current project assumptions (i.e. maintenance and repair elements for the breakwater).
SEPA and permitting services  related more substantial breakwater  improvements may
require more extensive permitting and additional scope and fee.

 The in‐water work window for Oak Harbor marine waters is currently anticipated to be
between July 15th and the following February 15th. Additional seasonal restrictions may
also be incorporated into specific project permits.

 Meetings will be held at  the City of Oak Harbor offices  such  that M&N engineers are
afforded the opportunity to conduct site visits during the same trip.

 The  south  breakwater  inspection  will  be  conducted  on  the  same  day  as  the  north
breakwater  inspection.  Splitting  the  inspections  into  separate  days  will  require
additional expenses.

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

196



ATTACHMENT B

Project Number:
Project Title: Oak Harbor F-Dock Breakwater Repair Date: 3/15/2016 Sub Mark-up: 0%
Project Manager: Byron Haley ODC Mark-up: 0%

Project PrincipalBruce Ostbo

 I.  MAN-HOUR BUDGET CLASSIFICATION/RATES

P-9, P-8 P-7 P-6 P-5 P-4 P-3 P-1, P-2 T-5 T-4 T-3 T-2, T-1 A-4, A-3 A-1, A-2 LABOR
Phase  Task Title $240.00 $215.00 $190.00 $175.00 $155.00 $135.00 $110.00 $158.00 $140.00 $121.00 $105.00 $92.00 $74.00 HOURS TOTAL

1
1.1 North Breakwater Inspection 10.00 12.00 12.00 34.0 $5,870.00

- $0.00
2 - $0.00
2.1 Draft Report 2.00 20.00 1.00 23.0 $4,022.00
2.2 Final Report 1.00 1.00 6.00 8.0 $1,505.00

- $0.00
3 - $0.00
3.1 Plans 1.00 4.00 2.00 48.00 100.00      155.0 $23,880.00
3.2 Specifications 0.50 2.00 2.00 12.00 1.00 17.5 $3,122.00
3.3 Estimate 0.50 6.00 6.5 $1,157.50

- $0.00
4 - $0.00
4.1 Plans, Specifications, and Estim 0.50 1.00 12.00 16.00 29.5 $4,675.00

- $0.00
5 PERMIT SUPPORT - $0.00
5.1 1.00 28.00 30.00 59.0 $8,755.00
5.2 Abbreviated BE or SPIF 1.00 26.00 27.0 $4,245.00
5.3 Agency Coordination 12.00 12.0 $1,860.00

- $0.00
6 BID SUPPORT - $0.00
6.1 1.00 8.00 9.0 $1,615.00
6.2 1.00 8.00 9.0 $1,615.00

- $0.00
7 CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT - $0.00
7.1 6.00 6.0 $1,050.00
7.2 0.50 1.00 6.00 7.5 $1,385.00
7.3 0.50 1.00 8.00 9.5 $1,735.00
7.4 Meetings (at site) 2.00 2.0 $350.00
7.5 4.00 4.0 $700.00
7.6 Change Orders 1.00 8.00 9.0 $1,615.00

- $0.00
8 - $0.00
8.1 South Breakwaterl Inspection 4.00 4.00 4.00 12.0 $2,100.00
8.2 South Breakwater Report 1.00 12.00 13.0 $2,315.00

 TOTAL MAN-HOURS 4.00 32.50 4.00 182.00 66.00 16.00 0.00 0.00 146.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 0.00 452.5 
II. M&N LABOR $960.00 $6,987.50 $760.00 $31,850.00 $10,230.00 $2,160.00 $0.00 $0.00 $20,440.00 $0.00 $0.00 $184.00 $0.00 $73,571.50
III. OTHER COSTS IV. PROJECT SUMMARY 30.16667
 A. Subconsultants Markup Total
  1. $0 $0 $0 Total M&N Labor $73,572
  2. $0 $0 $0 Total Subconsultant Cost: $0
  3. $0 $0 $0 Total Other Direct Costs: $1,385
  3. $0 $0 $0 Mark-up on Subconsultants: $0
  4. $0 $0 $0 Mark-up on ODCs: $0

  5. $0 $0 $0 Total Project Estimate $74,957
  6. $0 $0 $0
  7. $0 $0 $0
  8. $0 $0 $0
  9. $0 $0 $0
  10. $0 $0 $0

Total Subconsultants: $0 $0 $0
 B.  Other Direct Costs

$0 N/A $0
$0 N/A $0
$0 N/A $0

$570 N/A $570
$0 $0 $0
$0 N/A $0
$0 $0 $0

$815 N/A $815
$0 $0 $0

$1,385 $0 $1,385

Contractor Submittals

Outside Reproduction
Postage/Delivery

SOUTH BREAKWATER INSPECTION

Other

Telephone/Fax
Equipment (SCUBA Dive Station, consumable

Airfare
Lodging (1 Night, 2 people)
Meals
Mileage/Rental Car (5 Trips)

Moffatt & Nichol
Project Fee Proposal

NORTH BREAKWATER INSPECTION

Principal 
Eng./Sci

Supervisory 
Eng./Sci

Senior 
Eng./Sci Eng./Sci III Eng./Sci II Eng./Sci I

Word 
Processor

General 
ClericalCADD I

FINAL PS&E's

90% REPAIR PS&E's

Site Visits (1 Trip)

JARPA Application and Drawings

FACILITY CONDITION ASSESSMENT REPOR

Pre-bid walk through & Addundum #1
Addendum #2 (if necessary)

Pre-Construction Meeting (1 Trip)
Requests for Information

Staff Eng. Senior Tech. Designer CADD II

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

197



Other Direct Costs Detail
SCUBA Dive Station 285.00$     per day
Air Fills 20.00$        per day
Diving Consumables 50.00$        per day
UW Camera 50.00$        per day
Truck 110.00$     per day
Miles 570.00$     1,020 Miles Total (5 Trips) @ ~$0.56/m
Dive Premium 300.00$     $100 per day per diver
TOTAL 1,385.00$ 

Exhibit A
Scope of Services

198



Evergreen Adjustment Service, Inc. email: office@evergreenadjustment.com 
9750 Greenwood Ave. N, Suite 103 Phone: 800-933-4235 / 206-297-2030 
Seattle, WA 98103 Fax: 206-297-2033 

Tuesday, January 26, 2016 

Gordy Van, Senior Adjuster 
Washington Cities Insurance Authority 
PO Box 88030 
Tukwila, WA 98138 

REPORT OF INVESTIGATION 

MEMBER / INSURED: Oak Harbor, City of 

DATE OF LOSS:  11/17/2015 

COMPANY FILE:  N/A 

LOSS LOCATION: 1401 Southeast Catalina Dr., Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

OUR FILE: D15-2258 

RESERVES / ESTIMATE: 

Kind Member / Insured Indemnity Reserve Amount Paid 

REAL/Building Oak Harbor, City of 250,000.00 -0- 

BI/Extra Expense (BI/EE) Oak Harbor, City of 15,000.00 -0- 

Total Reserve 265,000.00 -0- 

Reserve is budgetary1 and is based on past repair information communicated to us from the 
City, plus a contingency factor. 

SYNOPSIS: 

A strong windstorm generated high wave action that damaged break-panels lining the west 
elevation of the Marina’s “F-Dock”. 

ASSIGNMENT: 

We received this assignment on 12/2/2015.  We made immediate contact with Chris Sublet, 
Harbormaster.  Given the logistics of the damage sustained to “F-Dock”, we have delayed 
our inspection until commencement of an exploratory process to determine the extent of 
damage. 

COVERAGE: 

In reference to the Washington Cities Insurance Authority [WCIA] “Property Joint Protection 
Program” and the Underwriter’s Policy, we note the effective dates are December 31, 2014 
to December 31, 2015.  We understand the “Individual Member Deductible” is $5,000 with a 
second coverage layer provided by the WCIA at a $750,000, per occurrence limit.  Excess this 

1 Extent of damage is unknown; further investigation is required. 

199



Tuesday, January 26, 2016 Oak Harbor, City of Page 2 of 3 

 

amount, the “Underwriters” provide a final layer that covers property loss to a $300,000,000 
aggregate occurrence limit, for all combined members.  All risk perils apply, subject to the 
described exclusions. Replacement Cost Valuation [RCV] is in effect, subject to the Members 
actual repair and/or replacement of damaged property, as described under section “12. 
VALUATION”. 
 
In reference to the cause of this loss, and per review of the Underwriters Policy [Lloyds of 
London], we note the following language in part: 

“41. DEFINITIONS 

Flood means a rising and overflowing of a body of water onto normally dry land 
including, tidal wave or series thereof caused by any one disturbance that is not a 
tsunami or seismic sea wave. Such definition does not include Storm Surge. However, 
ensuing physical loss, damage or destruction arising from a peril not otherwise 
excluded herein caused by such Flood shall not be considered Flood within the terms 
and conditions of this Policy. Such ensuing loss shall be construed to have been of the 
same occurrence but of a different proximate cause.” 

 
The flood exclusion would not apply to this event; the efficient proximate cause is 
“windstorm”, with resulting “storm surge”2 that damaged the subject property.  These perils 
are “not otherwise excluded” within the terms and conditions of the policy. 
 
CAUSE OF LOSS: 

This storm event started to impact the Oak Harbor area at approximately 9:00 am, 
increasing in intensity with the strongest winds continually sustained between 1:00 pm and 
6:00 pm. During this period, maximum gusts were recorded to 52 MPH, with wind direction 
from the northwest to west vs. the normal southwest direction. Prolonged “straight-line” 
winds generated large waves that impacted the normally protected marina. Though 
decreasing in intensity, the storm continued throughout the day.  The large wave action 
caused damage to the wooden “F-Dock” storm water panels, which provide protection to the 
marina.  The “efficient proximate cause” of this event is windstorm. 
 
RISK: 

Location number 8 is described as the Marina Docks & Breakwater, which was originally 
constructed in 1974.  It consists of approximately 4,260 LF of docks that are designed for 
private vessel moorage, of which, 1,360 LF is covered. 
 
LOSS/DAMAGE INFORMATION: 

BLDG/REAL:     Based upon the information received to date, two of 
the numerous wooden break wall panels that line the west facing perimeter of “F-Dock” 
sustained damage.  Per the enclosed City photographs of the failed panels, each one has 
slipped down on one corner, and is being held in place by resting against an adjoining panel.  
The fastening system securing the panels to the floats are hidden from view. It is apparent 
the fasteners and/or the wood panels have failed on one end of each of the two panels, 
allowing the ends to slip downward.  They appear to maintaining their current position by 
the remaining fasteners and their weight against the adjoining panels. 

                                         
2 Wind driven waves 

200



Tuesday, January 26, 2016 Oak Harbor, City of Page 3 of 3 

 

 
Mr. Sublet has informed us the panels suffered similar damage from a 2000 storm that 
damaged five of the panels.  City records indicate they were repaired at a cost of $381,000.  
He has sought to find the City documentation from the 2000 event that might give insight to 
the repair specification, but has not discovered any to date.  He has not discovered any “as-
builts” that would shed light on the construction details of “F-Dock” and the break wall 
panels. 
 
Further investigation is needed to determine the full extent of damage in order to determine 
a repair specification. To this end, the project was assigned to Alex Warner, PE with the City 
engineering department.  We have been in regular contact with Mr. Warner, who recently 
informed us he is in process of “developing an RFP to send to qualified consultants to 
evaluate the damages and prepare plans, specifications, and cost estimates for the repairs.” 
 
BUSINESS INCOME/EXTRA EXPENSE [BI/EE]:   Depending upon the scope of repair, it 
is possible the City might need to relocate vessels from F-Dock to temporary moorage. There 
are a variety of factors could come into play to affect this exposure.  We recommend 
establishing a $15,000 reserve.   
 
RECOVERY: 

There is no evidence that would lead us to a 3rd party that may be responsible for this 
event.  There are no salvage opportunities. 
 
INTENDED DISPOSITION: 

We have placed our file on a 45-day diary pending: 

 Receipt of the City RFP.  
 Receipt of F-Dock “as-built” and/or repair documentation from the 2000 event.  

 
Best regards, 

EVERGREEN ADJUSTMENT SERVICE, INC. 
 
Arlan R. Danner, G.A. 

direct: 425.922.6100  |  f: 425.642.5475  |  adanner@evergreenadjustment.com 

 
 

 
c: Marianne Ledgerwood, Paralegal – Oak Harbor, City of 
 mailto: mledgerwood@oakharbor.org 
 
AD/adD15-2258r 

 

Enclosed with this Report 

F-Dock overview image – location of damaged 
beak-panels 

Marina and F-Dock overview images 

EAS E-mail Marina Map 

City break-wall 1 - Images City break-wall 2 - Images 

E-mail Communications Available Upon Request 

201

mailto:adanner@evergreenadjustment.com


Property 

Joint Protection Program 

2015

202



WCIA Property Joint Protection Program Page 2 

WASHINGTON CITIES INSURANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Property Joint Protection Program for the 
Coverage Year December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2015 

I. PROPERTY COVERAGE 

Washington Cities Insurance Authority (WCIA) provides an optional program to its members whereby they may 
obtain protection for losses or damages to member owned property. 
 

A. COVERAGE AGREEMENT 

The coverage period for this Property Joint Protection Program is December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2015 and 
applies only to those members of WCIA who have elected to participate in this program. 

Coverage consists of two layers; a Self-Insured Layer provided by WCIA, and an Insured Layer consisting of 
purchased insurance policies.  The Insured Layer is insured by insurance policies and/or reinsurance 
agreements issued by the carriers or combinations of both with varying participation levels.  The WCIA Self-
Insured Layer provides indemnification for covered losses occurring above the members chosen deductible and 
up to a maximum of $750,000 per occurrence. Each member has a choice of an individual deductible of $1,000, 
$5,000, $25,000 or $50,000.  The terms, definitions, exclusions and conditions of the Lloyd’s of London policy 
#DP272214 are adopted and incorporated by reference herein and shall apply to the WCIA Self-Insured Layer 
with the following exceptions and clarifications: 

1. Replacement coverage in the Self-Insured Layer shall be extended to all members scheduling 
inland marine equipment regardless of equipment age. 

2. The Self-Insured Layer does not include coverage from loss from the perils of flood and 
earthquake.  

3. Boiler and Machinery coverage is excluded in the Self-Insured Layer. 

4. Builders risk coverage is excluded in the Self-Insured Layer. 

5. Coverage for tunnels, bridges, dams, catwalks, roadways, highways, streets, sidewalks, culverts, 
street lights, traffic signals, landscaping, golf tees, sand traps, golf greens and athletic fields that 
are not scheduled are excluded in the Self-Insured Layer. 

6. Only property identified and scheduled in writing to WCIA by the member is covered. 

Under any circumstances WCIA's obligation to make payment to a member for property loss or damage 
shall be limited to no more than $750,000 minus the amount of the members selected individual deductible 
per occurrence regardless of the amount or number or kinds of properties that are damaged, destroyed or 
affected by the occurrence. 

 
The Insured Layer which covers from $750,000 to a single limit of $300,000,000 million per occurrence for all 
members combined, except for damage that is subject to a separate $100 million pool annual aggregate limit to cover 
all member losses as a result of a flood subject to a $50 million annual aggregate for flood in zones A/V, a $150 
million pool annual aggregate limit to cover all member losses as a result of an earthquake, and $1,000,000 for 
unscheduled tunnels, bridges, dams, catwalks, roadways, highways, streets, sidewalks, culverts, street lights, traffic 
signals above an individual member deductible of $750,000, $25,000,000 course of construction limit per project 
above a $500,000 individual member deductible, a $100,000,000 equipment breakdown limit and other policy sub-
limits. 
 
For the Coverage period stated above, the Board of WCIA selects and approves the insurance carriers and policies 
for the Insured Layer of coverage as set forth in Schedule A attached hereto and which is incorporated herein.  The 
purchased insurance policies may differ from each other in language, exclusions, conditions and underwriter's intent.  
Coverage among the various policies may not be continuous.  The WCIA Board at is sole discretion reserves the right 
to substitute insurance carriers during the coverage period if circumstances warrant the same. 
 

B. LIMITS APPLICATIONS 

In the event a member incurs a loss which exceeds the currently available policy limits of insurance, sub-limits, 
or annual aggregate limits including partially exhausted annual aggregate limits, or if a combination of members 
incur losses which exceed available limits of insurance on a per occurrence or annual aggregate basis; the 

203



WCIA Property Joint Protection Program Page 3 

losses shall be paid on a pro rata basis from the proceeds of insurance currently available at the time the loss 
was incurred.  The calculation of pro rata payment of member losses shall be determined by taking the dollar 
value of each members loss and dividing it by the total dollar value of all members losses to determine a pro rata 
percentage which each members loss bears to the combined total dollar value of member losses being 
submitted for coverage.  Each member will then be paid the lesser of the following: either the full value of their 
loss or the percentage that their loss bears in proportion to all members losses times the total dollar value of 
insurance proceeds currently available at the time of the occurrence causing the loss. 

C. DEDUCTIBLE APPLICATIONS 

In the event more than one member sustains a flood or earthquake loss from the same occurrence that is 
covered by the insured layer, the deductible shall be applied on a pro rata basis to each member suffering loss.  
The calculation of the pro rata deductible shall be determined by taking the dollar value of each member’s loss 
and dividing it by the total dollar value of all members’ losses.  This determines a pro rata percentage which each 
member’s loss bears to the combined total dollar value of member losses being submitted for coverage.  Each 
member will then bear a portion of the flood and earthquake deductible in proportion to the total loss. 

D. COVERAGE DEFINITIONS  

The definitions are the same within the WCIA Self-Insured Layer and the Insured Layer insurance policies; set 
forth in Lloyd’s of London policy #DP272214. 

E. MEMBERS 

Current members in the Property Program include the following and new members approved by the Executive 
Committee electing coverage during the Coverage Year: 

 
A Regional Coalition for Housing (ARCH) 
Aberdeen 
Arlington 
Auburn 
Bainbridge Island 
Battle Ground 
Benton City 
Benton County Emergency Services 
Bonney Lake 
Bothell 
Brewster 
Brier 
Burien 
Burlington 
Camas 
Cashmere 
Centralia 
Chehalis 
Chelan 
Cheney 
Chewelah 
Clark Regional Emergency Services Agency 
 (CRESA) 
Clarkston 
Cle Elum 
Clyde Hill 
Coupeville 
Covington 
Cowlitz-Wahkiakum Council of Governments 
Des Moines 
Des Moines Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Eastside Public Safety Communications Agency 
 (EPSCA) 
Edgewood 
Edmonds 

Ellensburg 
Elma 
Emergency Services Coordinating Agency (ESCA) 
Enumclaw 
Ferndale 
Fife 
George 
Goldendale 
Grandview 
Grays Harbor Communications 
Hoquiam 
Issaquah 
Jefferson County 911 
Kelso 
Kenmore 
Kirkland 
Kitsap Regional Coordinating Council 
La Conner 
Lacey 
Lake Forest Park 
Lake Stevens 
Lakewood 
Leavenworth 
Long Beach 
Longview 
LOTT Clean Water Alliance 
Mabton 
Maple Valley 
Marysville 
Marysville Fire District 
Mason County Emergency Communications 
 (MACECOM) 
McCleary 
Medical Lake 
Medina 

204



WCIA Property Joint Protection Program Page 4 

Mercer Island 
Metropolitan Park District of Tacoma 
Mill Creek 
Millwood 
Milton 
Monroe 
Moses Lake 
Mount Vernon 
Mountlake Terrace 
Mukilteo 
Multi Agency Communications Center (MACC 911) 
Newcastle 
Normandy Park 
North Bonneville 
Northshore Utility District 
Northwest Incident Management Team 
Oak Harbor 
Ocean Shores 
Othello 
Peninsula Communications (PENCOM) 
Port Angeles 
Port Townsend 
Poulsbo 
Pullman-Moscow Regional Airport Board 
Puyallup 
Renton 
Richland 
Ridgefield 
Sammamish 
Shelton 
Shoreline 
Silver Lake Water and Sewer District 
Skagit 911 
Snohomish 
Snohomish County Emergency Radio System 
 (SERS) 
Snohomish County Fire District #3 (dba Monroe Fire 
District) 
Snohomish County Police Auxiliary Services Center 
 (SNOPAC) 

Snoqualmie 
Soap Lake 
South Correctional Entity Facility PDA (SCORE) 
South Sound 911 
Spokane Valley 
Stanwood 
Steilacoom 
Sumner 
Sunnyside 
SW Snohomish County Communications Agency 
 (SNOCOM) 
Three Rivers Regional Wastewater Authority 
Thurston 9-1-1 Communications 
Thurston Public Utilities District 
Thurston Regional Planning Council 
Toppenish 
Tukwila 
Tukwila Pool Metropolitan Park District 
Tumwater 
Union Gap 
University Place 
Valley Communications 
Valley Regional Fire Authority 
Walla Walla 
Walla Walla Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Warden 
Washington Cities Insurance Authority 
Washougal 
Water Operating Board 
West Richland 
Westport 
WHITCOM 911 
William Shore Memorial Pool District 
Woodinville 
Woodway 
Yakima Valley Conference of Governments 
Yarrow Point 
Zillah 

 

II. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES AND COST ALLOCATION 

A. COVERAGE ASSESSMENT BASIS 

Assessment costs per member is based on replacement cost. 

B. PROPERTY SCHEDULES 

Each member is responsible for reporting, additions or changes to property schedules including increases in 
replacement values as soon as practicable to WCIA. Claims for loss or damage to property not scheduled by a 
member will be denied in the Self-Insured Layer unless the Executive Director, in her sole discretion, determines 
that the members failure to schedule the damaged or lost property was due to an inadvertent, unintentional and 
unavoidable error or mistake by the member. 

C.  WCIA ADMINISTRATION 

The Executive Director shall administer WCIA operations and be accountable to the Board in the areas of 
insurance purchases, claims and loss control administration, coverage determinations and new membership. 

D. LEGAL SERVICES 

WCIA Legal Counsel is appointed by the Board to provide legal assistance concerning WCIA operations to the 
Board and Executive Director including legal issues related to the Property Joint Protection Program.  WCIA 
Legal Counsel is an administrative expense. 

205



WCIA Property Joint Protection Program Page 5 

 

E. SUBROGATION 

WCIA shall be subrogated to all legal rights to seek and recover damages for injury, theft, loss or destruction of 
member owned property which the member may have against any person or other entity with respect to any 
payment made by WCIA under this Property Joint Protection Program.  The member shall execute all papers 
required by WCIA and shall cooperate with WCIA to secure and protect WCIA's rights.  WCIA shall have the 
exclusive right to select, retain, and pay attorneys as necessary to pursue legal remedies for recovery of its 
subrogation interests.  In case any reimbursement is obtained or recovery is made by the member or WCIA on 
account of any loss covered by this Property Joint Protection Program, the distribution of such reimbursement or 
recovery shall be first applied in the following order: 

1. Payment of legal costs and attorney fees incurred by WCIA in making the recovery. 

2. Second, to recover the member's loss because of application of their deductible; 

3. Third, to recover WCIA's payments until WCIA is fully reimbursed. 

F. CLAIMS COSTS 

Administration of the property claims program is conducted in-house by WCIA staff and is an administrative 
expense.  Some losses are assigned by staff to an outside claims service company for resolution.  The service 
company's fees are administrative costs. 
 

III. MEMBER ASSESSMENTS 

Each member's assessments with WCIA is due within thirty (30) days of billing.  Claims reports will be distributed 
annually to the membership.  Mid-year (new) membership will be prorated against the remaining coverage year 
premium, payable within thirty (30) days.  Any assessment paid is not refundable or short rated in the event of a 
member withdrawal from Property Joint Protection Program prior to the end of a policy year. 

 

IV. CLAIMS PROCESS 

The Authority retains control of claims and settlement authority within the Self-Insured Layer. The claims process is 
supervised by WCIA and includes development and implementation of claims procedures which members agree to 
follow.  

Members shall cooperate by promptly reporting all property claims, by participating fully in any investigation 
conducted by WCIA or its claims administrator, and by adhering to the claims procedures as set forth in the WCIA 
Claims Manual.  The Executive Director may settle any claim within the WCIA Self-Insured Layer.  Failure of a 

member to cooperate in good faith with WCIA in the investigation and administration of any claim will constitute 
grounds for denial of the claim. 
 

V. COVERAGE DETERMINATION 

The Executive Director shall be responsible for making all coverage determinations within the WCIA Self-Insured 
Layer in regard to all claims filed by the member in which a question of coverage exists. 

Any member aggrieved by a coverage determination of the Executive Director shall follow the appeal process which 
has been adopted in the By-Laws, Article VII, Section 2, to allow members to bring before the Executive Committee 
any coverage decisions which they may contest.  Respective requirements of each participating party are detailed as 
appropriate in the By-Laws.  Failure to follow the stated requirements may result in a waiver of legal rights. 
 

VI. OTHER-INSURANCE 

If any member has other valid and collectible insurance which is written by another insurer, and such insurance is 
available to the member covering a loss also covered by this Property Joint Protection Program, other than insurance 
that is provided in excess of this program, the protection and excess insurance afforded by this Property Joint 
Protection Program shall be in excess of and shall not contribute with such other insurance. 
 

VII. CANCELLATION OR TERMINATION OF MEMBER PROPERTY COVERAGE 

A member's participation and coverage in the Property Joint Protection Program may terminate or cease in one of the 
following ways: 

206



WCIA Property Joint Protection Program Page 6 

A. A member withdraws from WCIA by giving its one year notice in advance of withdrawal from WCIA's 

Interlocal Agreement pursuant to Article 20 (a) thereto. 

B. A member gives 60 days advance written notice to WCIA of its intent to cease participation in the Property 

Joint Protection Program. 

C. Immediate termination of coverage will occur if a member's membership in WCIA is terminated by vote of 

the Board of Directors as provided in Article 20 (b) of the Interlocal Agreement. 

D. Termination of coverage will occur if a member fails to pay assessments when due as required by Article IV, 

Section 10 of the By-Laws of WCIA and Article 21 of the Interlocal Agreement. 

E. Coverage will cease if the Executive Committee or Board of Directors votes to cease offering coverage for 

property to a member as provided by Article 21(b) of the Interlocal, or if either votes to cease offering the 

Property Joint Protection Program to all members. 

No member shall be entitled to any return of assessment or premium or "short rate" assessment or premium in the 
event of termination of coverage under the Property Joint Protection Program or termination of membership in WCIA. 

Coverage under this program may be terminated by WCIA by a majority vote of the Board present at the meeting 
whereby such termination is proposed, or by the property insurance company.  Notice of termination shall be 
provided to the member, in writing, not less than sixty (60) days prior to the effective date of the termination, except 
that, if the member fails to pay any assessment when due, this coverage may be terminated by providing, in writing, 
ten (10) days notice. 

Limits, terms and conditions of coverage is restricted to those in force at time of cancellation or termination.  Should 
any premium credit for an individual member be returned to WCIA as a result of the cancellation in any insurance 
policy, it will be retained by WCIA and may be applied toward any outstanding or anticipated debts of the member to 
WCIA.  Any assessment or premium adjustments due to property additions during the last year of participation shall 
be payable after the assessment/premium audit of that year. 
 

VIII. ESTABLISHMENT OF CONTINGENCY FUND 

The Board may establish a contingency fund from money accumulated in excess of losses in WCIA's Self-Insured 
Layer each year, to offset future property premiums, expand program enhancements, and/or build up funds for 
unallocated loss reserves. 
 

IX. FURTHER CONDITIONS AND LIMITATIONS OF COVERAGE 

In the event that the Authority is unable for any reason to recover from insurers any portion of a loss otherwise 
payable to a member under the Insured Layer, the Authority’s obligation to the member shall be reduced by the 
amount of such non-recovery.  The Authority shall make a reasonable effort to obtain insurance recovery, but nothing 
in this Agreement shall obligate it to instigate judicial or other proceedings, nor to take any particular action to obtain 
indemnification from insurers. 

Any member seeking coverage and/or indemnification from any insurance company or reinsurer for any loss and 
occurrence within Authority’s property Insured Layer is responsible for all costs and expenses incurred in obtaining 
indemnification from insurers.  If requested by a member, the Authority may, in its sole discretion, elect to participate 
with a member in any legal effort by a member to seek or enforce indemnification from any insurance company or 
reinsurer and, if it does so, the Authority will be responsible for payment of 50% of any legal costs and expenses 
incurred in such effort and the member will be responsible for the remainder of all costs. Subject to the preceding 
sentence, any costs incurred by the Authority or individuals acting on its behalf and at its discretion obtaining 
indemnification for the loss, including but not limited to legal expenses, costs associated with hearings, arbitrations, 
mediations, negotiations or other proceedings, and any other expenses shall reduce any recovery by the member 
accordingly.  Coverage determination costs less than $1,000 per occurrence shall be a WCIA administrative cost. 

In the event that a loss exceeds the combined self insured, and insured layer coverage limits, or if any self insured or 
insured aggregate limit has been exhausted within the coverage term, any remaining obligation will be the sole 
responsibility of the applicable member and shall not be the responsibility of the Authority nor any other member. 

Further, money available for losses within WCIA Self-Insured Layer is limited to budgeted funds and a high frequency 
of losses may result in the exhaustion of all WCIA funds.  Replenishment of the Self-Insured Layer may be made by 
special assessment as approved by the Board at its discretion.  The carrier(s) for the group purchased Property 
Insurance may change during the coverage period. 

207



WCIA Property Joint Protection Program Page 7 

It is also understood and agreed that any property loss not within the coverage definitions or terms of the Property 
Insurance and/or Excess Property Insurance policies shall be the sole responsibility of the applicable member and 
not the responsibility of WCIA nor any other member. 

In the event of the financial failure of an insurer providing a policy of in the Insured Layer of coverage, the total liability 
of the Authority for the coverage year shall remain at $750,000 per occurrence.  Any loss over the $750,000 Self-
Insured coverage limit is the responsibility of the applicable member and/or any remaining insurance companies still 
providing coverage in the Insured Layer subject to their policy terms and conditions.  The Board may, at its sole 
discretion, authorize the purchase of new insurance or elect to self insure the coverage layer previously covered by a 
failed insurer.  

208



Schedule A 
WCIA 2015 Property Joint Protection Program 

 
 
ALL RISK PROPERTY 
CARRIERS AND PARTICIPATION: 

 
National Fire & Marine Insurance Company 
Policy Number: 42-PRP-000098-02 
27.5% or $82,500,000 part of $300,000,000 per occurrence 

RSUI  Indemnity Company, Policy Number: NHT420652 
12.5% or $37,500,000 part of $300,000,000 per occurrence 

Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company, Policy Number: 001219503 
10% or $10,000,000 part of $100,000,000 per occurrence 

Lloyd’s of London, Policy Number: DP272214 
10% or $10,000,000 part of $100,000,000 per occurrence 

Lloyd’s of London, Policy Number: DP272214 
40% or $10,000,000 part of $25,000,000 per occurrence 

Lloyd’s of London, Policy Number: DP272214 
40% or $30,000,000 part of $75,000,000 per occurrence excess of 
$25,000,000 per occurrence 

Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company, Policy Number: 001853801 
10% or $20,000,000 part of $200,000,000 per occurrence excess of 
$100,000,000 per occurrence 

Lloyd’s of London, Policy Number: DP272214 
50% or $100,000,000 part of $200,000,000 per occurrence excess of 
$100,000,000 per occurrence 
 
 

EXCESS EARTHQUAKE 
CARRIERS AND PARTICIPATION: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TERRORISM 
CARRIERS AND PARTICIPATION: 

 
Landmark American Insurance Company, Policy Number: LHQ420654 
50% or $25,000,000 part of $50,000,000 per occurrence excess of 
$100,000,000 per occurrence 

Lloyd’s of London, Policy Number: DP272314 
35% or $17,500,000 part of $50,000,000 per occurrence excess of 
$100,000,000 per occurrence 

Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s – London-Brit Syndicate 2987 
Policy Number: PD-10547-00 
15% or $7,500,000 part of $50,000,000 per occurrence excess of 
$100,000,000 per occurrence 
 

 
Lloyd’s of London, Beazley Syndicates 2623 and 0623  
Policy Number W17355140101 
50% or $50,000,000 part of $100,000,000 

Lloyd’s of London, Talbot Syndicate 1183 and Liberty Syndicate 4472 
Policy Number: AFJ9549A14 
50% or $50,000,000 part of $100,000,000 

  
BOILER & MACHINERY 
CARRIER AND PARTICIPATION: 

 
The Hartford Steam Boiler Inspection and Insurance Company 
Policy Number: FBP4907705 
100% of $100,000,000 Limit 
 
 

POLICY TERM  
ALL SCHEDULED CARRIERS: 

 
12/01/14 to 12/01/15 

 
 

209



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Confirmation of Finance Director 
Patricia Soule

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Confirm Mayor's appointment of Patricia R. Soule to the position of Finance Director.

2) Approve the employment contract for Patricia R. Soule as Finance Director for the City of Oak
Harbor.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
During the interview process for Finance Director, Patricia Soule was as selected as the most qualified 
candidate.  Mayor Severns appointed Ms. Soule as the new Director of Finance.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.v
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Confirmation of Finance Director 
Patricia Soule

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
1) Confirm Mayor's appointment of Patricia R. Soule to the position of Finance Director.

2) Approve the employment contract for Patricia R. Soule as Finance Director for the City of Oak
Harbor.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
During the interview process for Finance Director, Patricia Soule was as selected as the most qualified 
candidate.  Mayor Severns appointed Ms. Soule as the new Director of Finance.candidate.  Mayor Severns appointed Ms. Soule as the new Director of Finance.

Please see the contract for Finance Director attached. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Oak Harbor Municipal Code 2.07.020 directs that the Mayor has the authority to appoint the Finance 
Director and the Council must confirm such appointment. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Finance Director Contract - Patricia R. Soule
2. Patricia Soule Resume

candidate.  Mayor Severns appointed Ms. Soule as the new Director of Finance.

Please see the contract for Finance Director attached. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Oak Harbor Municipal Code 2.07.020 directs that the Mayor has the authority to appoint the Finance 
Director and the Council must confirm such appointment. 

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Finance Director Contract - Patricia R. Soule
2. Patricia Soule Resume

210

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458750506_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459528748_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Finance Director 
Employment Agreement - Soule 

Page 1 of 5 

EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 
Finance Director  

THIS AGREEMENT, effective April 18, 2016, by and between the City of Oak Harbor, hereinafter 
referred to as “City”, and Patricia Soule, hereinafter referred to as “Finance Director” 

WHEREAS, pursuant to OHMC 2.34.055, Patricia Soule has been appointed by the Mayor to the 
position of Finance Director and shall be offered an employment contract; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to provide certain benefits, establish certain conditions of 
employment, and to set working conditions for the position of Finance Director; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to OHMC 2.34.055(2) the City Council has approved the contents of the 
employment contract with Patricia Soule as Finance Director for the City of Oak Harbor; and 

WHEREAS, the Finance Director agrees to serve in that capacity subject to the terms and conditions set 
forth in this Employment Contract, 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF the terms and conditions hereinafter set 
forth, the City and Finance Director agree as follows: 

1. Employment.  The City hereby employs the Finance Director to serve in this position for the City
of Oak Harbor.  The duties of said position shall be to perform all duties assigned to the position
of Finance Director as provided in the job description, together with such other and further duties
and special projects as may be assigned to the Finance Director by the City’s Mayor or City
Administrator.  Pursuant to OHMC 2.36.030 and 2.34.055, the Finance Director shall serve at the
pleasure and at the discretion of the City’s Mayor.

2. Duration of Employment.  This Employment Agreement shall become effective on April 18,
2016, and shall continue indefinitely thereafter unless sooner terminated by the parties as
provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 below.

3. “At Will” – Termination by the City.   The Finance Director shall at all times during employment
with the City be considered an “At Will” employee, subject to termination by the City’s Mayor
at any time with or without cause.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed other than an
“At Will” employment relationship between the City and the Finance Director and the Finance
Director  expressly acknowledges that no contrary representations have been made by the City.

4. Resignation – Termination by the Finance Director .  The Finance Director reserves the right to
resign from employment at any time with or without cause.  The Finance Director agrees to give
the City not less than four (4) weeks’ notice prior to the effective date of any such resignation.

5. Compensation:  The Finance Director shall be compensated for services rendered during the term
of this Agreement as follows:

a. Base Salary.  The Finance Director shall receive a monthly salary of $9,698.  After a
satisfactory six month review, the Finance Director may be eligible for a raise to $9,989

211



  Oak Harbor Finance Director  
  Employment Agreement - Soule 
  Page 2 of 5 

per month.  The rate of pay may be adjusted annually thereafter consistent with the salary 
range and steps established for this position. 

 
b. In the event that a salary and wage study is conducted, the Finance Director position shall 

be included.  
 

c. Benefits.  The Finance Director shall be entitled to a sick leave accrual of one day each 
per month, vacation leave accrual as set forth in the City Personnel Polices, and eleven 
paid holidays which includes one floating holiday on a day of choice. 

 
 The Finance Director shall also receive all other benefits provided by the City of Oak Harbor to 

regular employees as they exist now or as they are modified in the future.  The following 
describes the benefits as they exist on the effective date of the Agreement:  

 
• Medical insurance, premium paid 100% and 75% premium paid for spouse and 

dependent children. 
• Dental insurance, premium paid 100% and 75% premium paid for spouse and 

children. 
• Standard Insurance life insurance policy of  $25,000 paid for employee only 
• Enrollment in Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) retirement system. 

 
The Finance Director shall also be entitled to elect other voluntary benefit options as they exist 
now or as they are modified in the future.  The following describes the voluntary benefits as they 
exist on the effective date of the Agreement:  
 

• Self-paid individual and/or family supplemental insurance coverage for Short-
term Disability, Cancer Care, and Critical Illness 

• Pre-tax deductions for Unreimbursed Non-Medical expenses and/or Dependent 
Day Care 

• Additional self-paid Voluntary Group Life Insurance 
• Self-paid enrollment in his choice of two Deferred Compensation Plans 

 
d. Timing of Monthly Payments – Deductions.  All monthly payments of salary and benefits 

shall be made at the same time and on the same date as the City’s regular payroll.  All 
such monthly payments shall be subject to all required state and federal deductions, 
including income tax, social security, and any other deduction required and authorized by 
law.   The City agrees to pay all employer contributions to FICA, worker’s compensation, 
and similar programs as required by law. 

 
6. Work Schedule.  The Finance Director is a confidential, exempt employee for purposes of the 

Federal Fair Labor Standards Act and as such shall not work a fixed forty hour per week 
schedule.  The Finance Director’s work shall be conducted at Oak Harbor City Hall during 
regular business hours of the City, Monday through Friday, provided, that the Finance Director 
shall receive time off for holidays according to the holiday schedule customarily observed by the 
City.  The Finance Director may be asked to attend meetings of the Oak Harbor City Council and 
shall attend such other staff meetings as requested by the Mayor or City Administrator.  

212



  Oak Harbor Finance Director  
  Employment Agreement - Soule 
  Page 3 of 5 

 
7. Severance Package.   
 
 a. Severance for At Will Termination.  In the event the Finance Director ’s employment 

with the City is terminated for any reason other than those delineated in subparagraph (b) 
below, the City will provide the Finance Director  a severance payment equal to  a period 
of six (6) months  as of the effective date of termination.  The amount shall be paid in 
accordance with the same schedule as the regular City payroll, and shall be subject to the 
same mandatory deductions as the Finance Director’s salary was prior to termination. 

 
i. Reference.  In the event of termination of the Finance Director’s employment by 

the City, the Finance Director shall be entitled to an employment reference from 
the City, the language of which shall be agreed upon by the parties, provided, that 
in the event the parties cannot agree on the form of the reference, the City will 
provide only the dates of the Finance Director’s employment, the last position 
held, the last salary received, the fact that the Finance Director is no longer 
employed by the City. 

 
  ii. Unemployment Benefits.  The City will not oppose any unemployment benefit  

  claims  made by the Finance Director. 
 

b. Termination by Resignation or for Cause.  The severance package provided for in 
subparagraph (a) above shall not be available to the Finance Director if the termination of 
the Finance Director’s employment with the City is due to: 

 
i. Resignation.  The Finance Director’s voluntary resignation from employment.  

For purposes of this paragraph, “voluntary resignation” means a resignation of 
employment resulting from the free choice of the Finance Director and not the 
result of a suggestion to resign in lieu of termination made by formal action of the 
Mayor or City Council; or 

 
ii. Misconduct.  Criminal conduct, commission of any crime, abuse of public office, 

or other gross misconduct, including, but not limited to, fraud, deceit, 
embezzlement, theft of funds or property, assault, or sexual, racial, or other 
harassment; or  

 
iii. Job Performance.  Insubordination, incompetence, inadequacy, or other events or 

actions that lead to the City having just cause to terminate employment of the 
Finance Director in the performance of official duties.   

 
c. Construction.  The severance package provided in subparagraph (a) above shall not be 

construed as an extension of the Finance Director’s employment beyond the termination 
date.  The Finance Director shall not, during the period between the termination date and 
the end of the severance payments, accrue any additional sick leave, vacation leave, 
health care benefit or other benefit accorded active City employees. 

 

213



  Oak Harbor Finance Director  
  Employment Agreement - Soule 
  Page 4 of 5 

8. Professional Development.  To promote professional knowledge, to establish a professional 
network of local peers, and to assist the Finance Director in maintaining current standing as a 
Certified Public Accountant (CPA) through the attainment of Continuing Professional Education 
(CPE), the City may pay for membership in professional associations or organizations, and may 
reimburse the Finance Director for attendance at annual conferences or the same and for such 
other professional development activities as the City Administrator may approve and as may be 
annually budgeted by the City Council. 

 

9.  Relocation Expenses.  The City will reimburse expenses related to your move in an amount not 
to exceed $7,000.  This may include items such as packing materials, plane flights, hotels, 
movers, mileage and per diem travel. Reimbursement is conditioned upon production to the City 
of documentation detailing these expenses. 

 The City views payment of your moving expenses as a long-term investment.  Therefore, the 
offer to provide reimbursement is conditioned upon your continuous employment with the 
City.  Should you choose to separate from employment with the City before the third anniversary 
of your start date, the City will require prorated repayment of those funds reimbursed to you. The 
proration would be calculated on a monthly basis (the number of months remaining in the 36-
month period divided by 36).   

 
10. The City agrees to cover the Finance Director on the City’s liability insurance policies to the 

same extent as any regular employee of the City is covered for acts, errors, or omissions within 
the scope of employment.  All such liability insurance coverage shall be provided at the City’s 
sole cost and expense. 

 
11. The City of Oak Harbor agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Finance Director from any 

and all costs, risk or liability associated with or arising out of acts or failures to act which are 
performed within the scope of employment as the Finance Director including the reasonable cost 
of legal defense by counsel appointed by the City or its insurance carrier, as applicable. This 
promise to indemnify shall exclude only criminal acts of the Finance Director and acts or failure 
to act which would constitute an intentional tort or intentional wrongdoing knowingly committed 
by the Finance Director without the express direction of the Mayor or City Administrator of the 
City of Oak Harbor.  This promise to hold harmless and indemnify shall survive beyond the 
employment of the Finance Director with the City of Oak Harbor in order that the Finance 
Director shall be held harmless, indemnified and defended in the future for all acts taken as the 
Finance Director subject to the limitations contained herein. 

 
12. Severability.  If any paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Agreement shall be held by a 
 court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, said invalidity or unenforceability 
 shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase, 
 and to that end the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement shall be severable. 
 
13. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between 
the parties as to the terms and conditions of the Finance Director’s employment by the City and no other 

214



  Oak Harbor Finance Director  
  Employment Agreement - Soule 
  Page 5 of 5 

agreements or understandings, oral or otherwise, exist or shall be deemed binding upon the parties.  The 
Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. 
Dated this __________________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
        For the City of Oak Harbor:    
  
 
        ____________________________________ 
        Robert T. Severn, Mayor    
  
 
 
               
        Patricia Soule, Finance Director  
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
        
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

215



Patricia Soule, CPA 
PO Box 824 ● Unalaska, AK  99685 ● psoule11@gmail.com  ● (907) 359‐5923 

November 16, 2015 

City of Oak Harbor 
Human Resources 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

Dear S. Piccone, PHR: 

Please find included my application and resume for the Director of Finance position with the City of Oak Harbor. 

I would like to be considered for this position and have listed below how I meet the qualifications: 

 In 1998, I received my Bachelors of Science in Accounting from the University of Idaho.  I have a current CPA

license and have a valid Alaska Driver’s license.

 I began my accounting career in a CPA firm after graduation in 1998 and have taken progressively responsible

positions in governmental, grant management and fund based accounting.  As the Finance Director for

Community Action Partnership I was responsible for GAAP based financial management of 30+ grant funded

programs for over eight years, and directing the City of Unalaska finance and Information systems department

as the Finance Director since January 2014.

 As the director of the finance department I direct a staff of 14 that includes:  information systems, the City

Treasurer, project and grant reporting, utility, ports and airport billing, payroll, accounts payable, and

purchasing.  At Community Action Partnership I supervised three finance staff and indirectly supervised two

weatherization inventory staff.

 My direct experience in governmental and fund accounting began at the CPA firm from the audit side,

governmental and grant management at both Nez Perce County and the University of Idaho.  I continued the

fund based accounting and grant management experience at Community Action Partnership as we tracked

seventy different funds that were either grant funded, contribution based, or fee driven.  Those funds were

accounted for separately and then merged into consolidated GAAP based financial statements.  At the City of

Unalaska I have broadened my governmental accounting experience with municipal accounting in a city that

does large capital projects, has a healthy investment portfolio and debt ratio, a varied general fund, and

proprietary funds such as: utilities, ports, airport, and housing.

I hope you find my experience and qualification at the level you require and look forward to hearing from you. 

Sincerely, 

Patricia Soule, CPA 

216



 
 

Patricia Soule, CPA 
PO Box 824 ● Unalaska, AK  99685 ● psoule11@gmail.com  ● (907) 359‐5923 

                  

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS 

 17 years Accounting Experience 
 11 years Supervisory Financial Management 
 Leadership, Coaching, and Mentoring 
 Budget Preparation, Training, and Oversight 
 Audit Oversight and Annual Financial Reporting 
 Grant Management and Compliance  
 Cash Flow and Debt Management  
 Consulting and Auditing  

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 

Finance Director  
City of Unalaska                                                                                                                                               Unalaska, AK 
January 2014 – Present 

 Executive level position, functioning as the Chief Financial Officer, responsible for all aspects of the city’s $70M 

municipal finances in accordance with GASB, GAAP and federal and state grant reporting guidelines 

 Member of the executive leadership team with the City Manger and other department directors to coordinate 

and ensure city processes and goals are achieved  

 Represents the finance department at Council meetings and any other meetings as needed 

 Oversees the external audit and CAFR (Comprehensive Annual Financial Report) preparation and presentation 

 Supervises all accounting activity of the City including the budget preparation, monitoring and final presentation 

to Council, monthly, quarterly and annual financial reporting,  fixed asset and project accounting,  and billing 

and collection for the proprietary funds 

 Directly supervises the city treasurer, information systems supervisor, project and fixed asset accountant, and 

purchasing agent to ensure accounting and information technology goals are achieved 

 Oversees the investments of the City, debt service and issuance, computerized accounting system, management 

of the internal controls, implement new financial procedures and policies, and department personnel matters  

 
Finance Director  
Community Action Partnership                                                                                                                  Lewiston, ID 
March 2005 – January 2014 

 Executive level position, responsible for all aspects of the organization’s $8M grant‐funded non‐profit finances in 

accordance with GAAP and Not‐for‐Profit OMB Circulars 

 Served on Executive Leadership Team to coordinate and ensure short and long term strategic goals were set and 

implemented 

 Directed and supervised the accounting staff and indirectly supervised the administrative assistant and 

weatherization inventory staff and their fiscal procedures 

217



 
 

 Ensured compliance with audit standards and proper handling of grant funds through fiscal policies, training 

staff and department directors, and analysis of financial records 

 Responsible for all accounting activity, budget preparation and monitoring, grant billing and reporting, inventory 
oversight, general liability and property insurance, and cash management 

 Responsible for analyzing, preparing, and presenting the consolidated financial statements for the Board of 

Directors at monthly board meetings 

 Acted as primary point of contact for the external auditors, grant fiscal monitors, IT subcontractors, insurance, 

and any infrastructure or organization related issues 

 Established and maintained internal controls over financial assets and staff in positions dealing with financial 

assets, and ensure financial policies are updated to reflect most current regulations and best practices 

 
Owner/Consultant 
Patricia Soule Consulting                                                                                                                  Lewiston, ID 
2003 – Present 
 

 Responsible for unique, and complex QuickBooks setup and training for local area business owners 

 Review business plans, recommend business and financial strategies, troubleshoot system issues, and maintain 

financial compliance 

 
Financial Specialist                                                                                                                                                               
University of Idaho   ‐   Grants and Contracts                                                                                                              Moscow, ID 
April 2004‐ March 2005 
 

 Responsible for the compliance accounting and maintenance of University grants and contracts 

 Reviewed new grants, obtained required signatures and approval of the contract terms, generated subcontracts, 

set up new contracts using BANNER (University Enterprise System) 

 Managed the grants compliance by approving expenditures, receipting revenues, processing unusual billings, 

assisting departments with compliance issues, filing quarterly and final reports, and maintaining the grant files 

while active 

 
Staff Accountant                            
Nez Perce County – Auditor’s Office                                                 Lewiston, ID 
June 2002‐ April 2004 
  

 Performed annual budgeting and financial statement preparation, payroll, A/P, A/R, general ledger accounting, 

prepared annual financial report, grant reports and researched any accounting or compliance issues 

 Performed internal audits and reported those findings to the County Clerk and Departments to assist with 

department internal controls and financial processing 

 

Staff Accountant 
Presnell Gage, LLP                                                     Lewiston, ID 
October 1998‐June 2002 

 

 Performed tax, accounting, audit, and software solution services for clients, including; preparing and analyzing 

federal and state income tax returns for individuals, corporations, partnerships, and not‐for‐profit organizations 

 Prepared and analyzed monthly, quarterly, and yearly financial statements 

218



 
 

 Prepared payroll and payroll tax returns 

 Assisted with audits of governmental, for‐profit, and non‐profit entities 

 Certified as a QuickBooks Pro advisor, as such, setup, troubleshoot, and trained clients on QuickBooks 

 
EDUCATION, TRAINING & CERTIFICATIONS 
 

 University of Idaho – Moscow, Idaho, Bachelors of Science in Accounting, May 1988 

 Lewis Clark State College – Lewiston, Idaho 
 
Trainings & Certifications 

 Certified Public Accountant (CPA) 

 ICS (Incident Command System) certified in training levels 100‐400  

 GASB Intermediate and Advanced Governmental Accounting seminars  

 State (ID, WA, and AK) CPA and GFOA training (on site and webinars) on a variety of accounting issues (17 years) 

 AICPA Not‐for‐Profit Industry Conferences  

 WIPFLI Not‐for‐Profit Grant Management / OMB Circular Conference  

 Strategic Planning and development training  

 Community Action Partnership Annual Conference  

 
REFERENCES 
  
K.D. Hathaway‐Dial, CIA 
Faculty ‐ Accounting, University of Idaho 
(208) 310‐0648 (cell) 
 
Lisa Stoddard 
Executive Director 
Community Action Partnership 
208‐816‐2305 (cell) 
 
Angie Titus 
Community Service Director 
Community Action Partnership 
(208) 791‐7177 (cell) 
 
Donald L. Moore 
Interim City Manager 
City of Unalaska 
managermoore@gmail.com 
907‐315‐5296 (cell) 
 
Erin Reinders 
Planning Director 
City of Unalaska 
(907) 359‐1962 (cell) 
 
Nate Strong, CPA/PFS 
Hayden Ross PLLC 
208‐882‐5547 (work) 

219



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Engineering

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review bi-monthly update regarding the Clean Water Facility Project. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Engineering

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review bi-monthly update regarding the Clean Water Facility Project. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by Council.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. CWF Update

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. CWF Update

220

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1458940275_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update April 5, 2016 
1 

CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – April 5, 2016
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  

RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B (Deep Excavation)

• Continued installing the PSE underground powerline
• Completed
• Started excavating to tie back elevation

• Presented GMP #7 at March 23rd City Council Workshop
• Windjammer Park Integration Plan

• Citizen Advisory Group meeting #4 and Open House held on March 29th

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B

• Start tie back installation
• Continued excavation of cofferdam
• Underground powerline

• Windjammer Park Integration Plan
• Citizen Advisory Group meeting #5 on April 20

CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers is completing the 90% design drawings 
for the process structures associated with the treatment 
plant. 

90% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is at approximately 30%. 30% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance and Community room 
are at approximately 30%. 

30% 

CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete. 
Construction has begun. 

Completed 

Site Preparation 
Package C  

Preliminary work has begun on Site Preparation Package C. 
Work will include micro-piles in the bottom of the deep 
excavation and installation of a tower crane 

Completed 

Concrete Package Design of the concrete structures for the Membrane 
Bioreactors and Aeration Basins has been completed. 
GMP #7 has been prepared for Council decision. 

Completed 

221



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 

Pending Permits Description 

• Foundation permit 
 

• Site Plan Amendment 

• Site Prep C – Micropiles – The design team has applied for a 
foundation permit. 

• The design team submitted the  revised the site plan submittal to 
reflect Concept B. 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Construction activities have begun – Driving 
sheet piles completed.  Excavation and tie backs 
have started. 

May 2016 

GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Reviewing shop drawings and preparing for 
extension of effluent outfall 

July 2016 

 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 
approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

222



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 
3 

 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffman completed cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 
September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% design for the 
process buildings is expected in April. 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On January 21, 2016 we received news that the CWF is on the 2017 proposed 
funding list for an additional $42,632,742 in SRF Loans at an interest rate of 
1.6%.  The final approved list comes from the state legislature and typically 
occurs around July. 

Bonds The City is actively pursuing issuance of bonds. 

Rates Ordinance 1760 was passed by City Council on March 15, 2016.  Staff will 
continue to evaluate rates as the project progresses. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant has also been 
obtained.  

2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction  

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant  

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program.  Staff has applied for grant reimbursement 

Bond Anticipation Note  Staff has secured interim financing through US Bank to bridge the gap between 
CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  We are anticipating 
a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 
Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

The project team continues to implement the project communications plan 
through weekly e-mail updates, drop-in times at the construction site, project 
signage and regular mailers at major milestones. 

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

The project team is preparing for the Fifth Citizen Advisory Group meeting to be 
held on April 20th. 

 

223



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 
4 

 

 PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 

 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 
Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org

224

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  April 5, 2016 
5 

 

 

   

We are here  

225



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: 2016 Marathon Update by Race 
Director

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Monthly updated regarding the 2016 Marathon event.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.ii
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: 2016 Marathon Update by Race 
Director

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Monthly updated regarding the 2016 Marathon event.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

226



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #7

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #7) in the amount of 
$9,355,969 plus Sales Tax ($813,969) with Hoffman Construction for Deep Concrete Work at Area 30 
and Miscellaneous Changes.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process. Deep Concrete Work at Area 30 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a
Date: April 5, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #7

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #7) in the amount of 
$9,355,969 plus Sales Tax ($813,969) with Hoffman Construction for Deep Concrete Work at Area 30 
and Miscellaneous Changes.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Clean Water Facility project has been broken into multiple packages to take advantage of the 
General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process. Deep Concrete Work at Area 30 General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process. Deep Concrete Work at Area 30 
(GMP#7) is the next phase of construction which constructs the foundation and walls for the Membrane 
Building (Area 30). The work involves placing approximately 5300 yds. of concrete in 10 months. The 
work also involves additional excavation and tie-backs to accommodate underslab piping associated with
the structure. This GMP essentially brings the Membrane building to grade and keeps the project on the 
critical path.

In addition to the concrete structural work, GMP #7 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:
- Changes to GE/Zenon Equipment Package (GMP #1) arising from the submittal review process. 
Several items are being added or deducted from the contract which results in project savings and 
improved operational flexibility.
- This GMP also funds a change of condition that occurred when the sheet pile contractor encountered 
large erratic rocks and had to shatter them.
- Several allowances were established to deal with water testing, crack repair, and future mechanical 
detailing.
- This GMP also funds the emergency repair of the surge tank at the existing treatment plant which will be 
funded as an operational cost. 
Hoffman is proposing to perform the concrete work on a Self-Perform Basis as allowed by RCW 39.10. 
The concrete work will be on a time and materials basis with a not to exceed amount of $5,444,830. To 
ensure cost efficiency, performance measures have been incorporated into the contract document. KBA

General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) process. Deep Concrete Work at Area 30 
(GMP#7) is the next phase of construction which constructs the foundation and walls for the Membrane 
Building (Area 30). The work involves placing approximately 5300 yds. of concrete in 10 months. The 
work also involves additional excavation and tie-backs to accommodate underslab piping associated with 
the structure. This GMP essentially brings the Membrane building to grade and keeps the project on the 
critical path.

In addition to the concrete structural work, GMP #7 includes the following changes or additions to the 
scope of work:
- Changes to GE/Zenon Equipment Package (GMP #1) arising from the submittal review process. 
Several items are being added or deducted from the contract which results in project savings and 
improved operational flexibility.
- This GMP also funds a change of condition that occurred when the sheet pile contractor encountered 
large erratic rocks and had to shatter them.
- Several allowances were established to deal with water testing, crack repair, and future mechanical 
detailing.
- This GMP also funds the emergency repair of the surge tank at the existing treatment plant which will be 
funded as an operational cost. 
Hoffman is proposing to perform the concrete work on a Self-Perform Basis as allowed by RCW 39.10. 
The concrete work will be on a time and materials basis with a not to exceed amount of $5,444,830. To 
ensure cost efficiency, performance measures have been incorporated into the contract document. KBA 

.

227



and staff will be monitoring the progress on a daily, weekly and monthly basis. The City’s construction 
manager KBA has performed an independent cost evaluation as required by RCW 39.10350 (e) and 
found the project cost acceptable (Attachment C).

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #7) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A). This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingency, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions. These amounts are summarized in 
Attachment B. At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax 
amounts but those amounts are included in the contract.

GMP #7 totals to $9,355,968 plus $813,969 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work is included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:
• July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
o Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
o Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
• December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council for early procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317. 
• April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the amount of 
$2,337,687. 
• June 16, 2015—GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the amount of 
$908,872
• October 20, 2015 GMP #4 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep B 
• October 20, 2015 GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer Prep B

and staff will be monitoring the progress on a daily, weekly and monthly basis. The City’s construction 
manager KBA has performed an independent cost evaluation as required by RCW 39.10350 (e) and 
found the project cost acceptable (Attachment C).

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #7) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A). This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingency, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions. These amounts are summarized in 
Attachment B. At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax 
amounts but those amounts are included in the contract.

GMP #7 totals to $9,355,968 plus $813,969 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work is included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:
• July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
o Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
o Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
• December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council for early procurement of Membrane Bioreactor 
(MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317. 
• April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the amount of 
$2,337,687. 
• June 16, 2015—GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the amount of 
$908,872
• October 20, 2015 GMP #4 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep B 
• October 20, 2015 GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer Prep B• October 20, 2015 GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer Prep B
• January 19, 2016 GMP #6 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep C 
• Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:
o Additional early equipment procurement (mechanical equipment, data processing equipment, etc.)
o Process Building construction
o Non-Process Building Construction
o Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869)    

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
12-3-2013 –     City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery 
  method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 -   City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include 
a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

• October 20, 2015 GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer Prep B
• January 19, 2016 GMP #6 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep C 
• Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project GMP:
o Additional early equipment procurement (mechanical equipment, data processing equipment, etc.)
o Process Building construction
o Non-Process Building Construction
o Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $9,355,968 + Sales Tax ($813,869)    

Appropriation Source:             Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
12-3-2013 –     City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery 
  method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 -   City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to include 
a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

228



2-18-2014 –     City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a     
General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment     plant 
project.

2-18-2014 –     City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 –       City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman 
                                         Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) 
project. 

12-2-14 –         City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and 
   Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

4-21-15 –         City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount 
           of $2,337,687.

6-16-15 –         City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount of 
$908,872.

10-20-15 –       City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the amount of 
$5,109,549.

10-20-15 –       City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount of 
    $2,028,222.

1-19-16 –         City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 

2-18-2014 –     City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a     
General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment     plant 
project.

2-18-2014 –     City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to           the State 
of Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 –       City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman 
                                         Construction in connection with the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) 
project. 

12-2-14 –         City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and 
   Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

4-21-15 –         City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount 
           of $2,337,687.

6-16-15 –         City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount of 
$908,872.

10-20-15 –       City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the amount of 
$5,109,549.

10-20-15 –       City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount of 
    $2,028,222.

1-19-16 –         City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 1-19-16 –         City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of             $3,966,503.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 

11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

1-19-16 –         City Council authorized GMP #6 for procurement of the Site Preparation C in the 
amount of             $3,966,503.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

 

11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

229



09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

03-23-2016 – Council presentation of GMP #7.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #7)
2. Attachment B - GMP #7 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #3)
8. Attachment H - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #4)
9. Attachment I - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #5)
10. Attachment J - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #6)

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

03-23-2016 – Council presentation of GMP #7.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #7)
2. Attachment B - GMP #7 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #3)
8. Attachment H - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #4)
9. Attachment I - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #5)
10. Attachment J - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #6)

230

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208205_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208238_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208263_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208297_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208371_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208401_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208460_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208507_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208550_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab082b489d0a43730e6cbdfaf0480a5e&aName=1459208580_at.pdf


CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A 231



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A 232



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A 233



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment A 234



City of Oak Harbor,  Washington

Clean Water Facility Project
15-Mar-16

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 Rev 1

GMP Amendment No. 7 Recapitulation

Deep Concrete Work @ Area 30 & Misc. Changes

Direct Cost of Work

Concrete Foundations and Walls -- Area 30 HSI 5,444,830$     

 Deep Concrete Structural Excavation and Backfill Pellco 120,697$    

Underslab Piping at Area 30 TBD 120,320$    

Aluminum Embedded edge angle at trenches WIW 24,118$     

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GL9 CJA 90,000$     

Additional Tie-backs at Sheet Piling - GLA at sump CJA 50,000$     

 CE 0048 Additional MBR Cassette Support Beams GE-Zenon 55,000$     

CE 0049  Remove 40hp VFD's from GE Scope GE-Zenon (8,408)$      

CE 0050  Remove Blower Starter from GE Scope GE-Zenon (25,988)$     

CE 0051 - Change MBR RIO Panels to Floor Mount GE-Zenon 11,467$     

CE 0058 -- Increased MBR Hanger Arm Lengths GE-Zenon 10,207$     

CE 0043 - Sheet Piling Obstruction Mitigation CJA, 

Pellco 76,942$     

Allowance - Structure crack injection 100,000$    

Allowance - Structure water testing 50,000$     

Allowance - Emergency Repair at Exist. Surge Tank CE 0057 45,000$     

Allowance -Early mechanical BIM detailing and Spool 

Sheets HCC 75,000$     

Total Direct Costs 6,239,185$     

Negotiated Support Services

Negotiated Support Services HCC 1,307,264$     

Builders Risk --  Premium for Projected Total GMP Woodruff 351,959$    

Additional Dewatering Well for Deep Excavation Pellco 5,660$     

Corrosion Resistant Dewatering Pumps (Purchase -3ea) Mitchell 10,070$     

Self Dumping Dirt Hoppers for Str. Exc. (purchase) 2 ea HCC 22,116$     

Total NSS 1,697,069$     

Total NSS and Direct Costs 7,936,254$     

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 277,769$    

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 158,725$    

Total Direct+NSS+Contingencies 8,372,748$     

Specified General Conditions 599,220$    

Sub-Total NSS and Spec Gen Conditions 8,971,968$     

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 384,000$    

Total GMP Cost 9,355,968$     

Washington State Sales Tax @ 8.7% 813,969$    

Total Amendment No 7 (Incl. Sales Tax) 10,169,937$     
Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST)

Preconstruction Services 790,050$    

GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 2,553,317$     

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 1,991,249$     

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 836,130$    

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 5,109,549$     

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 2,028,222$     

GMP Amendment No. 6 -- Site Prep C 3,966,503$     

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 26,630,988$     

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 235



City of Oak Harbor Washington

Clean Water Facility Project

Hoffman Project Number 5100014

GMP Amendment No 7 - Area 30 Foundation and Walls

Negotiated Support Services Scope

40 Week Duration 

Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance   (.01 TCC) -$                                         

Remaining Premium on 

Summary

NSS 007001 Office manager (10 mos) 50,920.00$                             

NSS 007001 Job services   / field supt - E Spicer  (10 mos) 117,800.00$                           

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce  -- BIM modeling   (8  hours per week x 20 weeks) 16,000.00$                             

NSS 007012 Temp housing (40 weeks) 15,000.00$                             

NSS 007024 Construction and Aerial Photographs (10 mos) 5,000.00$                               

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints  (10mos) 1,000.00$                               

TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental Incl w-amend 4

TC 007065 Tower crane inbound freight Incl w-amend 4

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel Incl w-amend 6

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design Incl w-amend 6

TC 015200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase Incl w-amend 6

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns  (16 each) Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower crane erection Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower crane tower retorque Incl w-amend 6

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015750 Tower crane operator (7/19/16 - 6/1/17) Garner 213,360.00$                           

NSS 015750 Rigger / Bellman for tower crane (7/19/16 - 6/1/17) Garner 208,080.00$                           

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts Incl w-amend 6

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor Incl w-amend 6

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply Incl w-amend 6

NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Micropile Work (16 weeks) Incl w-amend 6

NSS 007065 Transport Equipment (10 mos) 30,000.00$                             

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob Incl w-amend 6

NSS 007069 Small Tools (10 months) 8,000.00$                               

NSS 015750 Operator for RT Crane  (4/4/16 - 7/31/16) - 16 weeks Incl w-amend 6

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party  (40 weeks) 20,000.00$                             

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup w-spec GC

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension - 4 units (40 weeks) 3,040.00$                               

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 40 weeks) 3,040.00$                               

Add radios for operators 

and bellman

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 40 weeks rental 1,500.00$                               

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters  for debris and recycle hndlg (4 each x 40 weeks) 24,000.00$                             

NSS 007063 Gas Oil and Maint 35,188.00$                             

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 17,701.00$                             

NSS 007098 Computer Charges (40 weeks) 4,000.00$                               

NSS 015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month  for 10mos)

Answering 

Innovations 1,300.00$                               

NSS 010500

Ming Survey  $95/hr st and $117/hr ot 

(1600hrs ST and 160hrs OT) Ming 127,200.00$                           

Half time 2 man crew, 2 

hours OT / week 75% of 

period

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 236



Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design Soundview Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (212lf)  10 months Yard 5,610.00$                               

NSS 015300 Fence Rental Extension  (10 months) United 5,750.00$                               

NSS 015180 Temp Water Service (10 months) 1,600.00$                               

NSS 015200 Temporary Structure Construction and Maint (10 months) 20,000.00$                             

NSS 015220 Temp Road Maint 8,000.00$                               

NSS 015240 Temp Work Base Maintenance (10 months) 28,000.00$                             

NSS 015280 First Aid / Water Stations  (2 each additional- Purchase) Yard 1,500.00$                               

NSS 015280 First Aid Station Maintenance & Supply ( 10 months) 3,000.00$                               

NSS 015280 Safety Glasses, Gloves, Hearing Protection (10 months) 5,000.00$                               

NSS 015100

Temporary Electric

 -- Power and lighting distribution maintenance, 10 months 10,000.00$                             

TC 015100 Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existing pole, 300' Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area Incl w-amend 6

3ea 4" conduits x 200lf 

w/SO Cord

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each , 40 weeks) 16,875.00$                             

NSS 015150 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 40 weeks) 82,000.00$                             

NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service By COH

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter  -- field office Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side of WIB Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (40wks) 12,000.00$                             

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015200 Extension of Second stair tower rental (40 weeks) 12,000.00$                             

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" Incl w-amend 6

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 40 weeks) 20,000.00$                             

NSS 015282 Drug Tests  (180 ea) 15,300.00$                             

NSS 015800 Signage  (10 mos) 8,000.00$                               

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply  (10 months) 9,500.00$                               

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage ( 10 mos) 5,000.00$                               

NSS 017990 Job Services (40 weeks, one individual) 136,000.00$                           

1,307,264.00$                    

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 237



Specified General Conditions & Staffing

Weeks Weekly Rate Total

Trevor Thies 30 3,270$                98,100$          

Bryan Shirley 40 3,818$                152,720$        

Ben Larson 40 2,745$                109,800$        

Kevin Ryan 40 2,840$                113,600$        

474,220$        

Other LS GC 125,000$        

Total Specified GC 599,220$        

RFFP Total: 2,007,490$        

Total Specified GC's Included to Date by Amendment

Amount % of Total

Amendment 1 -$               0%

Amendment 2 108,034$       5%

Amendment 3 -$               0%

Amendment 4 162,180$       8%

Amendment 5 -$               0%

Amendment 6 147,112$       7%

Amendment 7 599,220$       30%

Total To Date 1,016,546$   51%

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment B 238



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment C 239



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 240



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 241



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 242



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 243



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 244



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 245



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 246



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 247



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 248



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 249



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 250



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 251



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 252



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 253



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 254



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 255



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 256



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 257



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 258



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 259



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 260



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 261



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 262



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 263



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 264



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 265



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 266



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 267



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 268



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 269



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 270



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 271



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 272



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 273



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 274



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 275



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 276



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 277



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 278



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 279



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 280



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 281



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 282



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 283



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 284



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 285



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 286



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 287



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 288



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 289



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 290



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 291



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 292



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 293



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 294



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 295



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 296



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 297



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 298



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 299



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 300



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 301



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 302



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 303



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 304



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 305



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 306



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 307



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 308



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 309



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 310



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 311



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 312



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 313



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 314



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 315



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 316



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 317



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 318



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 319



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 320



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 321



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 322



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 323



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 324



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 325



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 326



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 327



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 328



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 329



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 330



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 331



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 332



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 333



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 334



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 335



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 336



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 337



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 338



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 339



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 340



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 341



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 342



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 343



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 344



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 345



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 346



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 347



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 348



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 349



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 350



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 351



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 352



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 353



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 354



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 355



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 356



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 357



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 358



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 359



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 360



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 361



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 362



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 363



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 364



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 365



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 366



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 367



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 368



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 369



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 370



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 371



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 372



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 373



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 374



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 375



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 376



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 377



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 378



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 379



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 380



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 381



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 382



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 383



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 384



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 385



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 386



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 387



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment D 388



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment E 389



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment E 390



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment E 391



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment E 392



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment F 393



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment F 394



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment F 395



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment F 396



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133111 

- 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name a11d address or locat/011) 

Oak Barbor Clean W.ter Fac!Uty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status a11d address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak HarbQr. WMfijnston 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hol!maa Construction Company of Washington 
I SOS WistJake Aym\12 N .. Suite 500 
Settle. Wasbjngton 98109 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement. the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agi:cemcnt to estelish a Q1tw1eed MuiMttlft Priee. avthorizc tbe 
Constmctim Manam to procees! wjth the Work of Sjtc Peco A - J>artja! Excavation and 
Arcbeologica! Survey <"Site Prmr A'!) and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for 
the Site Prm A Work and relatijl •NCiOtjated Support Services and Soecified General 
Coniiirions. The Owner and'CjjstrnctiOn Manager anticipate subsequent amendment(s) to 
tbg Agrec;ment to establish a Gtiapnteed Maximum Price for tbc rm aindq of!he Work. 
Jhjs js the Third GMP Ammdinmt fq tbis Project. As agreed by the Owner and 
Construction Manager, die Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount that the Contract 
Sum·shal! not e11eeed1 exceed for.the Site Prm A Work and related Negotiates! Suwgrt 
Services and Soccified 'Genera! 'Conditions. The Contract Sum consists of the Construction 
Manager's Fee plus' the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 of this 
AgreemenL 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed ES 
r,.Ejght Hundred Thitty-Six Thousand One Huncted Thirty Dollars ($836.130.00) fq the 
Site Prm A WorJc and includes all related Nesotiated Support Services. Specified General 
Conditions, Cootingency. and the Construction Manaeq's Fee of 4.28%, subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
lll! is not jncludCd jn the aboVC amount and wj!I be added to the Cost of the Wor!s. 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingmcies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Pro1'ide below or n fere11ce a11 anac/1me11t.) 

Thls document has lmpcrtant 
legal consequences. 
CansullaUon wilh an attorney 
Is encouraged wilh respect to 
Its completion or modification. 

AtA Document A201 ""-2007, 
General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, Is 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do not use with other 
general condlUons unless this 
document Is modified. 

AJA Document A133"' -2009 Eahlblt A. CopyrightO 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The Amark:an lnslltute Df An:hltecta. All rights reserved. WARHING: This 
AJA• Document 19 protected by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlematlonal Treaties. Unauthorized n1procluc:tlon ordlseributlon of this AJA" Document, <rK 1 
..., portion of It, ...., rwult In HVere c:lvll and erlmlnal penaltle1, and will be prosecuted to the maalmum •atn poulble und• the law. Thia 
document was pniduced by AJA llOftware at 08:28:11 on 0lilll9/2015 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 whlc:h explras on 04l22/2016, and Is not far resale. 
User Notes: {18319417501 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 397



lnlt. 

See the Ho[man Construction Company GMP Ameodmcnt No. 3 Recapitulation for SjJe frm A - Partial 
Excavation and Archeologiql Swvey. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(Slate tlie 1111mbers or other identificatio11 of accepted altemates. /f tlie Co11tract Doc11ments pem1it tlie Owner to 
accept oilier alternates subseq11ellt to tlie execution of this Ame,,dme111. attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amo1mt for eacll a11d the date wlien the amo1111t expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Pcrfonnance Bond. included within the above prjce. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and state e:cclmions, if a1!)', from tire a/fowa11ce price.) 

Item 
' Arcbco!ogical discovsrjq 

Dcwatcr!ne 

Price ($0.00) 
$57.114.00 
$14.400.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffman Construction ComDaDv GMP Amendment No. 3 Recapitulation for Site Prco A· Panjal 
Exavatjoo and ArchaeoloSjcal Survey. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: See the Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Preparation and Archeologica! Exolm tjon 
TcchniCal Specifi cations elated June 8. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maidmurn Price 
Amendment. 

Doc:umant Title Date 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications l1ere. or refer to a11 e.Tl1ibit attaclred to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wu1cwa1er Treatment Plant Sjte Pre;paratjon and Archeologica! Ewloratim Technical Soecifications 
c!atcc! Jvni S. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maximum Ptjcc AD1endmc:nt. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an e:x/1iblt attac/1ed to tliis Agreeme11t.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Clean Water facility Sjte Preparation and Arclteo!ogical Exploration PacJsage dated June 8. 201 S and 
other documeots list·cd in thjs Guaranleed Maximum Price Amendment 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(list any other doc11me11ts or i11fom1atio11 here. or refer to a11 e.Thibit attached to this Agreeme111.) 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washjngton Pcoanment of Ecology fimd jng requirements including the 
Water POllUtion Control Revolving Fund Spscjfications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance wjth !he City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21. 2015. 

ARTICLE A:I. 
I § A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion for Site Peco A Work established by this Amendment: 

AIA Document AU31M - 2009 Exhllllt A. Copyright 0 1991, 2003 llld 2009 by The American lnstltu1e of An:hltacts. All rtg"'9 rallmld. WARNING: This 
AIA• Document I• pnitecttld by U.S. Copyright Law and lnc.matlonal TIWlllln. Unauthorized 1Wprocluctlon 0t dlstrlbullan of this AIA8 Document. or 2 
my portion of It, mmy Mull In....,.,. ctvn and crlmlnlll jMNl!tln, end will be proMCUted to the mulmum utent poslllble under the llw. This 
doc:umllnt wat produced by AIA IOllwanl at 08:28:11 on 06l09l201S under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which expires on 04/22/2016, and 19 not far l1IS8le. 
UNI' Notes: (1831941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 398



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 399



Certlflcatlcm of Document's Authenticity 
AfA®'Document D401TM- 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and bclier, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certillcation at 08:28: II on 06/09/2015 under Order No. 
1248342233_1 fi'om AlA Contract Documents sol\ ware and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
chflflges to th~ original text of AIA10 Document AIJJTM- 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AlA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and strik. ng over deleted text. 

------~ ( v_~-+-(__;r 5==----------
roaredJ 

AlA Documont 0401"'- 2001 Cop~lf)ht 0 1992 and 2003 by The Amerlc:onlnaUMII of .Alehltacts. All tlghtu 1'11118rvod. WARNING: Thlu AIA0 Document Is 
protected by U.S, Copylfght t..ow and lnlomattonal Treatloo. Unauti\Qiiufl roproduetlon or dlalrlbutlon of lhls AIAQ Document, or any portion of It, 1 
may mutt In IHIV&I'il clvU Md criminal panal!leu, and wHI be proG<Jcu!Mito the mW<Imum extent poll!llblo undor tho raw. Thl9 docLO'llent was produced by 
AlA software at 06·28:11 or1 05/09/20151Rldar0rdar No.1240342233_1 which OI<JlilllB on0<1122J201&, 11M lo notror reaillo. 
Uaer Notllll: (1031941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 400



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY n OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 
Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 3 Recapit ulation 
Site Prep A - Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey 

1 Direct Cost of Work 

2 Site Prep A 
3 Allowances for Archaeological Discoveries 
4 Allowance for Dewatering Pumping 
5 Total Direct Costs 

6 
7 Negotiated Support Services 

8 
9 

10 
11 

See Detail 

Total NSS 

12 
13 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

14 GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% of Direct Costs 
15 
16 Total Dlrect+NSS+Risk Contlng. 
17 
18 Specified General Conditions 
19 
20 Sub Bonds 
21 
22 Sub-Total 
23 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

546,562 
57,114 
14.400 

618,076 

152,834 

770.909 I 

21,633 

192.541 I 

9,271 

801.812 I 
24 GCCM Fee at 4.28% $ 34.318 

25 ..-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~,r--~~~~~-, 
26 TotalGMPCostThisAmendment IS 836.130 I 
27 Washington State Sales Tax@8.7% $ 72.743 
28 Total Amendment No 3 (lncls Sales Tax) I $ 908,872 I 

Previously Issued Amendments (Including WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 
GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 
Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment incl WSST 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Is 

790,050 
2,775,456 
2.1§4.488 
6,638,866 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 401



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUC'nON COMPANY noF-
BUILDING 
LOCA TION 
ENGINEE R 
SU BJECT 

o •. H • ••• . c ... . .. w .. .. f .. .... . 
O • • H . .... , W'4 
c . ... . 
GMP [ ••• .,. S • • P •• • A 

"'"•' Oe•••• u•• 
BuUdlna Gross .<:nuare ...,,,,,_ 

Reid Dintion 

DIVISION i! - EXISTING CONDITIONS 
0241 13 s •.• u ••• s.,. o .......... .. 
oz., 18 s ..... ..... o . ... ..... .. 
024119 s . .. .... . e ...... n. o .. .......... .. 
025000 S ... R. - . ........ .. 
021000 w •••. ~ .... .. ........ .. 
OZIOOO F ...... R.- ....... . 

DIVISION JI - EA RTllWORX 
312200 G . • • • o 

312300 E. . . ......... F.,, 
312319 o .......... . 
312500 E . . . ........ $.,,. __ ., ,., ....... c ... , ... , 
31 <COCO S .... ., .. ,. . ... . u .... . ... ,,,,,, .. "' 
31 tlCIO O.,, ... P., .. . 
316100 & ... ... P .... . 

SUBTOTAL. DIA.[CT COSTS 

GENERAL CONDITIONSANSIJRANCE 
G •• •• • • c ........ . 
s • ., a ... ,,. . 
P ...... .. . . B .. .. 
PL & POt .. ....... . . 
8 .. .. ... . , R,, . 1 ...... . ... . 
B&OT •• 

NEGOTIATED SUPPORT SERVICES 
DESIGN & EST/MA TING CONnNCENCY 
GCCM RISK CONTINGENCY 
GCCMFEE 

TOTAL. ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST 

SAL£STAX 
s ..... .. . .... s •... 1 •. 

S .. . P •• ., A 

TO!Al . E.:>llt.IATED GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

E .. 
o .. u •• 

0 

0 

t .. 
1 .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

I .. 
I .. 
t .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

1 .. 
I 5% •• 

r ·-
F • • 

NSS 

··-
I .. 

.1'·!'.\ 
1 .. 

~ IO'i< •• 

S ... P . • ,. A ~2 

PROJECT csr ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• 
P ... . 

S )l 4S!i, 56 

1000 
1000 
>ODO 
5000 

SSS l lO 88 
1263 88• 96 
S6U38 00 

S129 798 40 

$0.00 
SGIB.015 80 

F •• 
F • • 

NSS 
F • • 

51 52 83•00 
1000 

5818 015 80 
n• 311 &2 

Hl6 1'l1 

P . ,. .. i .,, 6, 

s ... 

111 •8& 

10 
10 

s8n11 
5263 805 
161 536 

1129 798 

S6 1B 076 

50 
U 2'1 

f •• 
f •• 
NSS 
f • • 

11 52 83' 
so 

S21 6Jl 
SJ< 318 

$836,131 

172 HJ 

,..,...175 

T ••• • P • ., • •• 
c ••. 

S71 486 
so 
so 
10 
so 
so 

185 371 
S263 885 

167.536 
s 12g198 

10 
so 
so 

$618 076 

F • • 
r •• 

so 
S9 21 1 

'155 
F •• 

S1 52 834 
so 

S21.633 
U 4 318 

$838.131 

s 72 14 3 

$908,875 

JOB NO 51 0001' 
ESTIMATOR IH T 

CHFCKED BY CAB 
DATE 61' 11 S> 

DWG DATE 

'···· c • • Jo .•••••• 

S7l 486 

$5•6 51)() 

SG l 8 076 

S118 055 

c •• • ••.. 

OOO'lo .. . .. . . . .... . 

1 . ...... •• F •• 

1 .... q .... .. ,., tiSS 
1 .. .., .., ....... F .... 

N . .. . , • • SP Jt. 

4 281' •• ,. •• , . ..... . , . 

$838.131 

112 70 

S908.875 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 402



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ,-,OFWAIHINmlN 
BUILDING 
LOCATION 
ENGINEER 
SUBJECT 

A • .,, 

Q .. . H . . .... C .... . \V •• r "" "" ' 5,.. P . ... A 
O ... tt .. , .... Wflo. 
c ...... 
GMP E •• ,...... S ... P .• ,. A 

u ... ..... . 

c ..... ... , ,, .• , ....... : 

c .. 
o. 

S .. .. A11 .. . ... ,. S .... , ,., , A, . -••-* • t; . . ..... ... .. .. , ... .. £ . ... ... ... .. . 

S ., . p . .. . A ,2 

PROJECT CSI ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• I P ..... s •. u •• 
I 

r . •• J .. . & 

JOB NO \ 100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHEC(ED BV CAB 
DATE GJ111S 

owe; DATE 

I f ••u P••i•'"' I T • •" I c •.. c •• Jo .•••.•• 
I I I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 403



R0n')1.\S CO~STRUCTtO:'l COMPA.lll(y 
er \\'ASIUJ\'.GTON 

5, . P ••• A.2 

LIST OF ASSUMPTIONS. CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

BUILDING o ... H . ...... Ci.en Wet• • Fu ;oi.t :r S.r. p, • • A 
LOCATION Q. , H..... WA 
ENGINEER C . ..... 
SUBJECT L. ., • ' A .. ... ... ~ .... , & c ,. o"r•••••u P ....... . . E. ,,..,. . u 

BASIS OF ESTIMATE 
~ ... o._. 

1 6/3/1 5 HCC 
2 6/411 5 HCC 

1. 6/4/15 HCC 
4 
s 
~ 

7 

" 
ASSUMP1IONS OlJAl!E!CAJQNS INCL l/S!ONS AND EXCLUSIONS· 
~OM A.oo D•o••••n 

1. Hr r 
? Hr r 

HCC 

HCC 

1.1 r r 

6. 
1 
A 
Q 

11 
12 
n ,. 

Ill 

n ,, 
,. ,. 
26 

'"· on 

31 
12 

,. 

1A 

41 

44 
45 

47 

•• 
4Q 

51. 

• ..... S.,. P ••• A •• ., ~ . . .. 

o ... ., ....... .. 

N. • , .... .. .. , ""'"o,.. ar •• • '" " " "' "' , .., ,,.6 1M •• d 

108 NO 5100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHECKED ev CAB 
DATE &111 5 

DWC.. DATE 0 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 404



Site Prep A r2 
HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility - Site Prep A ESTIMATE NO. 5100014 
LOCATION: Oak Harbor , WA ESTIMATOR: THT 
ARCHITECT: Carollo CHECKED BY: CAB 
SUBJECT: Division 2 Summary DATE: 6/1/15 

Dwr... nATE: 0 
TOTAL ES T UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST TOT/IL EST 

ACCT Df<;r.RIPTION OF WORK n llANTITY UNIT LABOR • ARnRCOST MTL MTL COST COST 

02 4113 
,_ 

CIHa -

Demolish Asnhall P"vfnn 48000 sf I0.7' 134 733 
Demo curbs Planters and Tr....., 60 tns S234.36 '-14 OR? 
Demo Undemround Utlllties 490 If 124.30 111907 
CaoUtillties ea incl 
Demo Site Liaht Pnl- and Circuits 6 ea !1:1 080.00 S6480 
Demo Uoht Pole Bases 6 ea C:'U2.36 520541 
Prntect Fire Hvdrant 1 ea !l:."'10.00 S500 

Protect monilorino wel 1 8 " 1250.nn $250 
Relocate Postal Service Gano Box 1 ea 11 500.00 S1 500 

171486 

!!:71486 571486 
Subcontractor GC, Eouic. OH&P incl 

Total, S.....,. Sect. 02 4113: ---> $71486 

Page 5 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 405



Site Prep A r2 

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Q • k Harbor C1aan Wacor Fe c-111t:t . Sil• Prop A ESTIMATE NO 51 0001 4 
LOCATION Q .... Harbor . WA ESTIMATOR. THT 
ARCHITECT- C., .... CHECKED BY- CAB 
SUBJECT- D1v1 ·1 .. on 31 Summuy DATE: 611115 

DWG- DATE. 0-J •• 00 
fOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST 101AI l Sl 

ACC T DESCRIPTION OF WORr; QUANTITY UNIT LABOR LABOR COST MH MTL COST COS! 

312200 r. .• ~·- -
Erau 1p m •"l mo b 111• a u on end d•moD1h 1t Dt1on 1 .. $39.000.00 $39.000 
Str ip 6 "' T opsotl •t Guas Ar •eu & Disp oso 2,700 .. $3.41 $9.215 
p,.•P and r ock hau l ro•d to stoc:koll• (515. 201 10.300 ., $1.62 $1 6.686 
Pr. a • nd roc k •cc••• roa d lo B••k•m• tt v RV P. , ... 0 " $1.62 so dete r 

Ramps into e1ca v H1 0n (6' high• 20' w ld a) 10:1 ..,...l\ h pad 729 ... $28.08 $20.470 

$85.371 $85,371 
S uocontroc:tor GC, Equip , OH&P tf'ICI 

Toto•, S.oc . s •••. 31 2200: - -> lln~,.J/ I 

31 2300 i ~ , .. ., ., - .. "'a n• F&u 
U nraslrt c-t. oa £ 111 cov•t•on at E 'llltStl ng Fm · P.'"' '"9 Ar • • 9,219 ... $9.75 $89.881 
~chaeolo u 1~•11y s.".IUVO Eicco wot;on 

6" Cut.•, cioonup bu 1; 1t•t. h•\11 to 1o100 111.p1tu 6.981 D<v $15.66 $109.330 
Auow•nc• fa,. Vacuum E•covotjon i8 1o c atton " ) 20 "" $378.00 $7.560 

A11ow•nc• to,. 1/2 p,.oduatlon r' oto ••c • vet.1on 698 ... $21 .17 $14 .778 
As1ow•nc• tor l,; row St.•ndby (••ngl• c ' ew} 40 "'" $1 .058.40 $42.336 

$263.885 

$263.885 $263.885 
Sub c onu- o cno,. GC, Equ i p, OH&P i nlOI 

I oUI , Speo . Soot. 31 23 00: - ------> >LO.>,<><>:> 

31 2319 10 -.w•t•r• • ... 
A 11 owanc• ror pu m po n l'I 12 wk • $1.200.00 $14.400 
Ecc. 1o~:r Stock W,.u D r ain 1.200 ,, $44.28 $53.136 

$67.536 

$67.536 S67,536 
Suoco~vuot•r GC, Equ 1~ , OH&P lrtC:t 

To•••· Sp•• · s •••. 31 2319: --··> .>Dt ,::J.>C 

312500 E',.""" . ....... ·-- s.d ..... -..... "Co -- I 

TESC M .... u, .~ 0\ St.oc ltpll•• 40.500 .. $0,77 $31 .055 
S11t..r •no o ot. we tlond bou nda r ,. wes t o oc ••• l" O lld 0 " $5.40 $0 d o tor 

Snt F on c o 11t. soulft bou n d •r'Y of B eok t mo a ccoaa rood do te r 

D u"t: Conirot wot.O r' uu e lil. 8 wko $1.500.00 $12.000 
Du a\ cont.t'OI •weepel' 8 wk• $1 .250.00 $10.000 

Sundsrd E co4o a'JI 8 1o ck Roulnll'\Q Wau ( 2 h rah) 222 .. $102.60 $22.743 
U1uo Bock R oto 1n •no Wou (J hlahl 313 .. $172-80 $54.000 

$129.798 

$129.798 $129. 798 
Subconuoct.or GC, Equi p . OH&P uu; I 

T ... ,. s •••. S •• •. 31 25 00: -······> :)l .nt ,/tfC 

I 
I 

division 1.ot•t: 5546,590 

Page 6 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 406



Hottrn•n Constructto"I Comp•"11' 

Building' Q • .., Hert.or Cl••" Wu.r Fa c im, E.i.a"'•t.• S""'"'. ' " Job No : 5109214 
locadon : Oak Ha r boll" . WA Preco n ·> SheH Na : 1 
E ... ,,. • • ,: C .. · 0 110 c. ,. ..: ·> 8 e .... "'.,.,: THT 
Su lloJnt: GMPA .... ,. d ... . ,.,3 ·· 5,,. P .. . . A GSF -> o ... ; 6/3/15 

E. u ... oud L ••• ,. E." '"•t•d M.~ E.u ....... T otel 

Ac et Oe • crllP UO" o ....... uc11' UOM u,.,, .. lo • or Un" M .... ,,., Ca•t Noi. • 
006088 Bulld•r• R1.1it l,..u .. •nce 1 .. 0 17.820 17.820 , 7 .820 NSS ,.,. pr•"''" m 

007001 SuP•' Wl•lon 

Ome• M•n•a•r • Fuu T • .,.. 0 w. 1,000 0 0 0 Amond 2 
s.,H)I Mar . 2 ... ,.1,.,.. 0 Oe)'I 443 0 0 0 A .. . ,.. 2 

007012 Super• llOrJ' T r a v el 

T, .... , ,. ..... b • • NSS 8 w .. 0 250 2.000 2.000 

007026 P 1a 11-• & B•u•p r1nn 

M ••e-a llanaou • 0 .0 Mo 0 250 0 0 NSS 

007060 Equip Ra .. 101· Hott"'•" LS 0 0 0 
Raa •o • • 4 •• 0 w •• 0 19 0 0 NSS 
P1a il •vp • lea J.,, s . .. ,, ,c•• OW1ita 0 150 0 0 NSS 

M11 c 10.0 w •• 0 300 3.000 3,000 NSS 

007061 f._ulp RatUal • Q,,..,,.. 0 LS 0 0 0 NSS 
fo , a. uf\ 10 --· 0 900 9.000 9.000 rr 

007063 Ga• , Ou & Ma1"'•"•nc• 
G •• . Ou & F .... , · E ••• R.cua. 12,000 0 0.20 2.400 2.400 NSS 

007080 U,.. T • • •• an Matorl a la 8 .7% PC 0 -2.600 ·226 -226 

007083 T • • anO frll'\OO 

007098 c.,.. pwt•r c .... ,v•• 0 w •• 0 50 0 0 

010500 Sur"•Y & La,.0 1n 

S ... ,..,.,, (oa "ty or 2) 10 d•1'• 0 1.700 17.000 17.000 NSS 

015100 T •"'P E t eovlo al SF 0 0.22 0 O NSS 
Pow•' D1au1bu1ion U"1t 0 E. 0 3.500 0 0 NSS 
P.- . .. Cord• & Sp•d•r• 0 LS 0 0 NSS 

015110 UtHttJ•• P • .,.,.,. Raimtt Mo 0 650 0 0 B, Owno< 

015120 Uc.nu •• W ••• , 0 Mo 0 100 0 O NSS 
T•mp Wu.rConnac1.& Ram 0 LS 0 2.250 0 0 w1U•

0

am•"'* 2 

015150 T •'"P s •. ut.atiOfl 

L•v•n•• • 2 ••c._ 0.0 Mo 0 0 0 0 whh a"'af\1:1 2 
Handw••" St•t1•11 • 1 ..... 0.0 M. 125 0 0 .... tt. .. amefld 2 

Drop Bo••• and Otapoaa t 0 , •• 0 750 0 0 with amend 2 

015180 Tamp W•ter 0 .0 Mo 0 160 0 0 .., Ith amend 2 

015200 T •mo . Suucu.ira• 
WIS Di..Udlng otn•• ••tup 

C•rpt1t ,epa lr 0 LS 0 1,500 0 0 NSS 
Roor R•P•'' 0 LS 0 1.750 0 0 NSS 
Tot1a1. room r1uur•• and "•P• lr 0 LS 0 1.250 0 0 NSS 
Mtsc. T •mp. 5' .. uct. 2 Mo 6.000 250 6.250 NSS 

015210 T •Mp P,. otao~•n 

Raacota la1td•caOl"G at. L•,.down 0 •• 0 0 0 ••tartonna t g""p 

Arcnaaologlcat S•na1U¥a P.,.,...,.,. 0" 8 0 Owltnamaftd2 

015220 T .... ,, R • ••• & p. , •• ,.. 
Ou at Con«-ol 0 .0 M. 0 750 0 0 ..... , • • , ••• , 

01 5240 T.,..P W oo 8 ••• 0 CY 0 10 0 0 
Tamp S coc1a ,ua aroa 0 .. 0 4.15 0 0 In dlr• a & C IU I 

Print Date: 6/~/m15 PagelofZ FotmRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 407



Hotrm•·" C.nu1· u cc1. ,. c • .; •• "• 

8u11 ~1n 9 : o .... Hu111or c, •• " Wu111r Feont•y E•"'"•U Su,..,,..,.,_ J.111 No: 5109214 

L•••••on: a •• Hue.or , WA Proe:an -> s,, •• t N.: 1 

Eno•"•• ' : c.,.. 11. c. "' .,-, . 8 E.v,,..,o,; THT 
s ... , •• a: GM"P A rot •1Ul,.UM 3 u-s~. p,., .A GSF ·• One! 6/3n5 

Euim•ud L.-.., Est1rq°aud M.a E.v ,,.•u• Tou• 
Aect o •• cne;ci.,, Ouof'IUty UOM U"" Lob or u.,, M ... ,.,. , c .... No••• 

015282 o ... .,. T ••U 35 •• 0 85 2.975 .. 2,975 NSS 

" 015290 f1rscA1d 0 LS 0 1.200 0 Q wlCJ\ •"'end 2 

015300 B . ,.,.lcocl•• ond F • .,, c-fng 

T •"'P fo,..co Ronuf 1,455 LF 0 0.6 87l 873 NSS 
Sotup and R • .., .... , 1.455 LF 1.35 1.964 1.964 NSS 
20' T,.uclt Gu.et 1 .. 450.00 450 450 NSS 
P ........ ""• ' G., •• 2 •• 225.00 450 450 NSS 
F•"•• a ..... , . K R.u 66 •• 75.00 4,928 4.928 NSS 
Ro111ng oc • • • llll O • li. wall 1.290" 15.00 19.350 19,350 NSS 

5 200 1.000 150 750 1,750 NsS 
015800 Consfr.,cUo" S 1111 n • 650 650 650 NSS 

ProJoet Stons 

0 .0 M. 0 800 0 Q wlU\ a "'end 2 
015920 F 0 Eq,..lpmont & SuPJl ~ lt 0 LS 0 3,000 0 0 E.1.u,.9 

f urnt1uro 0 .0 M. 450 0 Q w it~ a"'and~ 
Doc., m one Printer/So• n no,. 0 .0 LS 0 1.500 0 Q w lO• •"'Ond 2 
Oocu'" ont Pr1n1or "'0111/da moll 0 mo 0 40 0 0 WIU• •rn•nd 2 
Scanner 0 ,0 mo 0 100 0 0 wnh amontS 2 
F •• 0 Mo 0 50 0 Q wll,, •'"•nCI 2 
Owner'• Troller Fw,,. & Equip 

0.0 Mo 0 850 0 0 WICh Ofll•fl'd 2 
015940 Pho"• & Po-nao• 0 E. 0 750 0 0 .... n,. • .,..,.. 2 

T oC,l•cComputor• 2o• 0.0 M. 0 125 0 Q with alfto"d 2 
Dou Lu,. •nd Motnc 

GI• • • Ctean t .. 11 

017990 Jota s._..,.,:.. 0 MH 100 0 0 OwlU••m•fla2 
Es • •v•t•d 1aoct "'ontcor / dtr•C:IDr 8 wk• 3,800 30.400 30.400 

033062 Canon ·• • • Pu,..pln9 0 0 0 0 

37,400 115,434 152.834 0 

Print Date: 6/4/2D15 l'lplafl FormRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment G 408



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment H 409



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment H 410



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment H 411



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment H 412



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment I 413



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment I 414



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment I 415



CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment I 416



lnlL 

I AIA Document A133 .. -2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

far the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Oak Harbor Clean Water f1cillty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal ;status and addn!M) 

Citv of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrjnglm Drive 
Oak Harbor. Wasbinl!lon 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Homup Copstrgctlon ComRpy of Wasbl-cton 
1 SOS Westlake Avenue N .. Sui1e soo 
Seattle. Washington 98 I 09 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Gu11"1Ateed Mulmum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreemenl, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to estal911slt a Gwleed ManimHlll Pflee. authorize the 
Constmctjm Manager to proceed wjth the Work of Site Prep C • Microoile Installation 
and to establish a Guaranleed Maximum Price for !he Site Prep C • Miqopjle Installation 
Work and related Negotiated Suoport Senices and Specified General Conditions. The 
Owner and Coos1ruction Manaaq anticjoale svmuent amendmentCsl to the Agreement 
to establish a Guaran•eecl Maximwn P,lce for tbe remajnder of the Work. This is lhe Sixth 
OMP Amendniait for Ibis Project. As agreed by the OWner and Consaruction Manager, the 
Guaranteed Maximwn Price is an amount that the Conlract Sum shall not aeee.t. ~ 
for the Sjte Pren C • Mjcro0ile Installation and related Negotiated Supoort Seryic:es and 
Specified General Conditions. The Conlract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's 
Fee plus the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 oflhis Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed {S 
)..Three Million Nine Hundred Sixtv-Six Thousand Five Hundred Three Dollars 
CS3.9§6.S03.00l for the Site Prep C- Mjqppilc Jnstpll&tion WorJc. which ContJJct Sum 
includes all related Nenotiated Suooort Services. Specified General Conditions. 
Contin11ency. and lhe Construction Manager's Fee of 4.28%. subject to additions and 
deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract DocumenlS. Sales tax is not 
included in the above amount and wjl! be added lo the Cost oflbe Work, 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximwn Price. 
(Provide below or reference an allachmenL) 

This document hn lmpcr1ant 
legal consequences. 
Consultatlon with 1n .uomev 
Is encouraged with raped to 
Its ccmpleUon or modlricallon. 

AIA Document A201 111-2007. 
General Concfdlons d the 
Contract for ConstNctlon, ii 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do nol UH with other 
general conditions unlm this 
document Is modified. 

AIA Document A1lJ .. - 200I Elhlblt A. COpyrighl C 1 H t. 21lD3 and 2009 by The American lnltitule of An:hjtects. All rights nt111Vlld. WARNING: Thlll 
AIA• Document I• protec:t9d by U.S. Copyright Law ind lntem1Uon1I r .. 1t1es. Un1uthor1zed 1'9production or distribution of thl1 AIA• Documenl, or 1 
111y portion of It, may mun In 11111e111 clvll ind crtmlnal l*!lllln, and will be prDMClltld to the mulmum utent posalllle under tht law. Thll =:":r..W:-1 produced by Alo\ IOftware at 01138:'tftFO~etit9~M~-1~flR1~1,ttvtllch espltes on D412212D1e, and 11 not ror res11te 

111211547921) CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 417



Jnlt. 

See the Hoffinan Construction ComQl!'ly GMP Amendment No. 6 RecapjtyJatjon for Site Pcm C - Mjqopile 
Installation. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alrcmates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and arc hereby accepted by lhe Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. If the Contract Documents permit the Owner to 
accept other alternates subsequent to the exec11tlon of this Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternales 
showing the amount for each and the date when the amount expires.) 

Subconblctor Pavment and Perfonnance Bond. jnclydcd wjthjn the above price. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranleed Maximum Price, if any: 
(ldentlfl allowance and slate exclusions, If any, from the alloH'ance price.) 

n..n 
Ccmnection to new outftll 

Price ($0.00) 
$310.000.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Asswnptions, if any, on which the Gwnnteed Maximwn Price is based: 

Sec dJc Hoffinm Construction Comoany GMP Ameodmeot No. 6 Rec;apitu!ation for Sjte Pn;o c • Miqo0ile 
lngl!atjon. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Ounnlecd Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplcmcntery and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

1. Addenda I tbrough 4. 

2. Hoffinan Rccommendalion of Award, 

3. Site Pren C - Mlqoojlg Rec!uest for Proposal. 

D11U1111Rl 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guanmteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
{Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit at/ached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment PIUJt Micro0ile Packasc Technical Specifications dated November 2015. 

Stdlon Datl 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawinp here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 
Oak Harbor W15tmler Treatment Plant Qctobq 2015 Miqopjle Pac!sage 90% Pesf1m. 

Number Title Dltl 

Pages 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon Che following other documents and infonnation: 
(List any other documents or information hen, or refer to an exhibit altoched to this Agreement.) 

ConstnJc:tjon Manggq shall com01y wjth Wasflington Department of Ecology funding requirements including the 
Water Pollution Conb'OI Reyolv!ng Fwd Specifications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manaaer will wforrn 
con51ruc:tjon activities in acconlancc with theCjty of Oak Harbor Cyltl!'a! Resources Memorandwn ofAvcemeot 
IDDrOved April 21. 2015. 

AIA Dowmetlt A1:13,.-200t EiihlbltA. COpyriglltC 11191 , 2003 Ind 200t1 by TneAmeflcln lnttilU!eolArc/llledl. All rlghta rwHrVmd. WARNING: Thi& 
AJA• DcM:umtnt 19 pruttcttd by U.S. Copyright L.IW and lnteml1lon11 Trtatln. Un•uthortzed rwpniducUon or dlstTlbuUon of lhls ~A· Oocumtnt, or 2 
any portion of It. may mull In'""'""' clvU and crlmln•I ptnaltln, and wlll be prvncuted to th• m1almum extent posatbl1 unctor th• law. Thlt 
documlnt wa produced by AJA toftwn 8109 38 2• on 01/08/2011 under Order Ho.124B34223:U wtllch expires on 04122l2011. Ind Is not tor r9Slle 
UHr Notes: CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 

(92H<t7821) 
CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 418



lnlt. 

ARTICLE A2. 
§ A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by 1his Amendment: 

December 29. 2017. 

CONsTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature) 

ROBERT T. SEVERNS 

(Printed name and tllle) (Printed name and title) 

'G'~- ~...,. 

AIADoe&1menlAU3•-20ot ElChlbltA. CopyrightC 11111, 2003111112009bylheAmericln lnslitute otArdlltecb. Al lights rnerved. WARNING: This 
AJA• Document Is P"'tectad by U.S. Copyr1ght Law 1nd lntlmltlonal Tn111tltt. unall1hostnd r1producUon or dlatnbutlon of tta NA• Document, or 3 
any polt.lon or It, may mull In .. ,,.,.. clvll and crtmlnal penalties, 1nd wUI b1 proHCllled to the m1aJmum 111tent poulbl• under the law. Tllil 
doc:lnent waa l)Rlduced by AIA IOftWare 11 oe·311fi1111 Ol§IAP~~~ wtllch explrea on 04/2212018, and II not ror reuia. 
UHrNota: 

(112M47D21) CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 419



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™ - 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best or my knowledge, infonnation and belief, that 1 created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certification at 08:48:55 on 01 /07/2016 under Order No. 
1248342233 I from AJA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
changes to the original text of AIAe Document A 133rn - 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AIA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and striki g over deleted text. 

(fitle) 

(Dated) 

AIA Document 0401"' - 2003. Copyright 0 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Aldlilecla • .lill rights IHUvtd. WARNING: Thia AJA" Document 11 
prut.cted by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlllmallonal TreallH , Un1uthork9d reproduction or dlatributlon of tide AIA" Document, or any portion of It, 1 mt)' rqutt In nvere i:IYll and cr!mlnal penaltlH, and will be proncut.cl to the mulmum extent ponlble under tha 1-. Thia document was produced by 
AlA 1altware al 08 48:55 on 01 10712016 under Order No.12483-42233_ 1 which eJCplre1on04/22/2016, and 11 not for resale. 
U11rNot11a: 

(1247~276) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 420



=--..HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY - 1 OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 

Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 Recapitulation 

Site Prep C -- Micropile Installation 

Direct Cost of Work 

Micro-pile installation 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 1 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 2 and Cap Break at 

Headworks Area 

Sheet pile adjustment for tower crane ftg 

Site flood protection dike 

Connection to new outfall (Allowance) 

Total Direct Costs 

Negotiated Support Services 

CJA 

Pell co 

Pell co 

CJA 
Pellco 

TBD 

Negotiated Support Services HCC 

Tower Crane Foundation and Crane Erection 

Procurement of Diesel Pump for Plant WWF Xylem 

Total NSS 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 

Total Direct+NSS+Risk Conting. 

Specified General Conditions 

Sub-Total 

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 

Total GMP Cost 

Washington State Sales Tax@ 8.7% 

Total Amendment No 6 (Incl. Sales Tax) 

Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 

GMP Amendment No 1-- Early Purchase MBR-UV 

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 

s 
s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

s 

s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

s 
s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 

Is 

s 
s 
s 
s 
s 
s 

Is 

7-Jan-16 

Rev 2 

2,087,050 

73,149 

32,513 

54,108 

9,000 

310,000 

2,565,820 

558,105 

243,415 

98,624 

900,144 

3,465,964 I 

121,309 

69,319 

3,656,592 I 

147,112 

3,803,104 I 

162,799 

3,966,503 I 
345,086 

4,311,5891 

790,050 

2,553,317 

1,991,249 

836,130 

5,109,549 

2,028,222 

11,215,020 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 421



L.J HOFFMAN CONSTRUcnON COMPANY 
,...., OF WASHIMJTON 

City of Oak Harbor Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 6 -Addition of Micropiles 

Negotiated Support Services Scope 
16 Week Duration 

Description 

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance (.01 TCC) 

NSS 007001 Office manager (4 mos) 

NSS 007001 Job services I field supt - E Spicer (4mos) 

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce -- BIM modeling (8 hours per week x 16 weeks) 

NSS 
NSS 007012 Temp housing (16 weeks) 

NSS 007024 Construction Photographs 

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints 

TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental 

TC 007065 Tower crane inbound freight 

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel 

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase 

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns (16 each) 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist 

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight 

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes 

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party 

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection 

TC 007067 Tower crane tower retorque 

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply 

NSS 015750 Initial crane operator ( 6/19/16 - 7/19/16) 

NSS 01S7SO Rigger/ Bellman for tower crane (4weeks) 

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts 

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor 

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 

NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Micropile Work (16 weeks) 

NSS 00706S Transport Equipment 

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob 
NSS 007069 Small Tools (4 months) 

NSS 0157SO Operator for RT Crane (4/4/16 - 7 /31/16) - 16 weeks 

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup 

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension (16 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 4 weeks) 

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 16 weeks 

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters (4 each x 16 weeks) 

HCC 

Larson 

Pell co 

Malcolm 

NWTC 

Morrow-HCC 

Ness 

Ness 

Kent 

ETI 

NWTC, Morrow 

HCC 

Garner 

Garner 

Condon 
Morrow 

Triad Mach 

Triad Mach 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 

&n2l!!!1 Comment 

$ 4,312.00 

$ 20,368.00 

$ 47,120.00 

$ 12,800.00 

$ 6,000.00 

$ 
$ 
Incl w-amend 4 

Incl w-amend 4 

$ 68,850.00 

$ 2,359.00 

$ 9,5S3.00 

$ 14,960.00 

$ 23,300.00 

$ 13,000.00 

$ 1,000.00 

$ 3S,648.00 

$ 8,765.00 

$ 1,830.00 

$ 5,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 17,780.00 

$ 17,340.00 

$54,108 - carry in directs 

$ 16,550.00 FOB Jobsite per Morrow 

$ 12,000.00 

$ 59,372.00 

$ 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 2,400.00 

$ 70,160.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 

$ 1,216.00 

Add radios for operators 

$ 304.00 and bellman 

$ 600.00 

$ 2,400.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 422



§ml!R 

NSS 
~ Description 

007063 Gas Oil and Maint 
NSS 007063 Fuel and Main! on Diesel Pump 

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 
NSS 007098 Computer Charges (16 weeks) 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 
Direct 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

NSS 

015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month) 

010500 Ming Survey 9Sst and 117ot {768hrs ST and lOhrs OT) 

007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design 

Berming of site perimeter (flood protection dike) 

01S300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (2121f) 4 months 

01S300 Fence Rental Extension (4 months) 

015180 Temp Water Service (4 months) 

015280 First Aid/ Water Stations (4 each - Purchase) 

NSS OlSlOO Temporary Electric 

TC OlSlOO Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existing pole, 300' 

Answering 

Innovations 

Ming 

Soundview 

Pell co 

Yard 

United 

Yard 

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each, 16 weeks) 

NSS 01Sl50 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 16 weeks) 

NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service 

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter -- field office 

NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side of WIB 

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (16wks) 

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 

NSS 015200 Second stair tower rental (12 weeks) 

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 

NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 16 weeks) 

NSS 015282 Drug Tests (50 ea) 

NSS 015800 Signage (20/ea @ 150) 

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply (4 months) 

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage 
NSS 017990 Job Services (16 weeks, one individual) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #ffl - Attachment B 

Amount Comment 

$ 25,247.00 

$ 1,965.00 

$ 10,982.00 

$ 800.00 

$ 520.00 

$ 74,060.00 

$ 4,965.00 

In direct costs 

$ 2,244.00 

$ 1,300.00 

$ 640.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 25,000.00 

$ 16,000.00 

3ea 4" conduits x 2001f 

$ 3,600.00 w/SO Cord 

$ 6,750.00 

$ 24,260.00 

ByCOH 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 4,800.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 5,000.00 

$ 3,000.00 

$ 8,000.00 

$ 4,250.00 

$ 750.00 

$ 3,200.00 

$ 3,600.00 

$ 54,400.00 

$ 801,520.00 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 423



Specified General Conditions & Staffing 

Weeks Weekly Rate Total 

Trevor Thies 12 $ 3,270 $ 39,240 
Bryan Shirley 14 $ 3,818 $ 53,452 
Ben Larson 16 $ 2,745 $ 43,920 

$ 136,612 

Other LS GC $ 10,500 

Total Specified GC $ 147,112 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 
CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 424



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 
Job No: 5100014 

Cost Dacriptio• of Work Spec HCCO 
Code Section Bud .. t 

Bid Co,..,,nrison - Microollts 01340 $2,901,440 
Pavment & Perfonnance Bonds 

Unit Price for Obstruction Abandonment of Piles 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Unit Price for Addition of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for l 5 oiles 

Unit Price for Deletion of Micro Piles 
Extended amount for JO oiles 

Unit Price for Add/Reduce Micro Pite Leni?th 
Extended amount for 200 LF 

Total Bid Amount S2,901,440 
Yd to Buy 

Totol Bud1et $2,901,440 

Bid Bond 
Addendum No. 1 - 4 
WA License# 
Federal ID 
Washinlrton UBI 
Washington ES Number 
DBE Forms 

w HOfFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 

1505 WESTlAKE AVENUE NORTlf, sum 500 

n SEJ.Tn.E. WASHINGTON 98109 

http://www.hoffmi!lncorp.com 

Work Item: Bid Comparison - Microplles 
Bid Package: #1- Site Prep C 

Condon .. Jolrin100 Donald Morphy Malcom Drillinc Budincer 

$2,071,000 $2,1 15,000 $2,649,000 $2,924,431 

$16.050 $18 050 $26.825 $23.500 

$6,000 $14,000 $5,000 $41,600 
$3Mf $70/lf S25/l S208/lf 

$52,500 $79 500 SI05,000 $204,750 
$3500/eaoh S5300/each S7000/each S13650/each 

IS20,000) ($21,000) IS20,000) ($136.500) 
S2000/oach $2100/each S2000/each S 13650/each 

Sl0.200 S18,000 $18.000 $41,600 
$51/lf $90/lf S90/ll $208/lf 

S2,135,750 S2.223,550 S2,783,825 S.l,099,381 so 

S2,ll5.750 S2.223.S50 52,783,825 S.1,099,381 so 

CONDOJA034N7 DONALl331RO MALCOD263BS BUDINAI0550M 
94-2248694 91-0826786 94-1671918 91-1684799 
601368804 278049134 6000535337 601638902 
746380008 307986000 439189009 842157006 
lndudtd Included Included lndudtd 

We recommend that this work be awarded to: Condon - Johnson 

Subcontract!Purchase Agreement Amount $2,135, 750 
We recommend that thi.< woit be bonded: Yes 

Estimated Bond Cost: Included in bid 1mount 

Hoffman Construction Company By: \...?-~ 
Date: 1/5/2016 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment C 

so 

so 

Approved: Va 

Date: 

Date Printed: 1/S/2016 

File: BC 01340 

so 

so 

I No -- --

so 

so 

CWF - GMP Amendment #7 - Attachment J 425


	Regular Agenda for April 5, 2016 Council Meeting
	C/A 4.a  Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting on March 15, 2016, and the Workshop Meeting on March 23, 2016
	 March 15, 2016 Minutes
	 March 23, 2016 Minutes

	C/A 4.b  Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
	 Voucher Listing

	C/A 4.c  Ordinance No. 1764: Amending Bond Ordinance No. 1756
	 Ordinance No. 1764

	C/A 4.d  Ordinance No. 1759: Amending OHMC 2.310.050 regarding Professional Service Contracts
	 Ordinance No. 1759

	C/A 4.e  Ordinance No. 1762:  Repealing OHMC Ch. 2.246 regarding ADA Review Committee and OHMC Ch. 2.35 regarding Program of Monetary Awards for City Employees
	 Ordinance No. 1762

	C/A 4.f  Resolution 16-12: Amending Schedule B (Finance & Utilities) of the Master Fee Schedule
	 Resolution No. 16-12
	 Schedule B - Finance & Utilities Master Fee Schedule

	C/A 4.g  Resolution 16-13: Supporting continued state funding of the MRSC with no conditions
	 Resolution 16-13

	C/A 4.h  Reappointment: Nora Daniel to the Police Community Advisory Board
	C/A 4.i  Appointment: Melissa Riker to the Parks Board as Full Member 
	C/A 4.j  Appointment: Julie Fakkema to the Park Board as the Alternate Member
	 Biography of Julie Fakkema

	C/A 4.k  Appointment: Alyssa Merriman to the Planning Commission
	 Alyssa Merriman - Biography Form

	C/A 4.l  Appointment: Cheryl Lawler to the Police Community Advisory Board
	Cheryl Lawler - Biography Form

	C/A 4.m  Appointment: Hal Hovey to the Planning Commission
	 Biography Form

	C/A 4.n  City-Wide Auctioneer Agreement 2016
	 Professional Services Agreement
	 Exhibit "A"-Auctioneer Proposal

	C/A 4.o  Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Island County
	 Interlocal Agreement-Island County

	C/A 4.p  Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Oak Harbor School District
	 Interlocal Agreement-Oak Harbor School District

	C/A 4.q  Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-North Whidbey Fire and Rescue
	 Interlocal Agreement-North Whidbey Fire and Rescue

	C/A 4.r  Interlocal Agreement for Auction Services-Town of Coupeville
	 Interlocal Agreement-Town of Coupeville

	C/A 4.s  Bid Award-Jail and Evidence Security System
	 ECS Bid

	C/A 4.t  North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association Range Agreement - Oak Harbor Police Department
	 2016 North Whidbey Sportsmen's Association Range Use Agreement 

	C/A 4.u  F-Dock Breakwater Repair - Professional Services Agreement with Moffatt & Nichol for Engineering Services
	 Professional Services Agreement - Exhibit A:  Consultant Scope of Services
	 Evergreen Adjustment Service - Report of Investigation
	 WCIA - Property joint Protection Program 2015

	C/A 4.v  Confirmation of Finance Director Patricia Soule
	 Finance Director Contract - Patricia R. Soule
	 Patricia Soule Resume

	5.a.i  Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
	 CWF Update

	5.a.ii  2016 Marathon Update by Race Director
	8.a  Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #7
	 Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #7)
	 Attachment B - GMP #7 Summary of Amendment Costs
	 Attachment C - KBA Cost Validation Letter
	 Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (base agreement)
	 Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
	 Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #2)
	 Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #3)
	 Attachment H - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #4)
	 Attachment I - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #5)
	 Attachment J - A-133 - 2009 Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #6)




